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Capital Markets. Capital Markets is the largest of the three business
segments, encompassing institutional equities, fixed income and
investment banking. The firm's equity business includes sales;trading and
research, including portfolio block trading, convertible bonds; over-the-
counter equities, equity derivatives and risk arbitrage. Fixed income offers
sales, trading and research for institutional clients in products such as
mortgage- and asset-backed securities, corporate and government bonds,
municipal and high yield debt securities, foreign exchange and fixed
income derivatives. Investrent banking provides clients with capital
raising, strategic advisory, mergers and acquisitions, venture capital and
merchant banking capabilities.

BTEARNS AT A GLANCE

Global Clearing Services. Global Clearing Services cffers a completerange of
customized services such as securities processing, margin lendk)g,EECUﬁM.
global securities borrowing and custody. As of November 39, 2002,
approximately 3,000 clients — including hedge funds, broker-deaters and
registered investment advisors — utilized the division’s broad service
platform through Bear, Stearns Securities Corp. Additionally, custody
services are offered mainly through the Custodial Trust Company.

Wealth Management. Wealth Management includes Private Client
Services and Bear Stearns Asset Management, Through a sefect-group of
more than 500 brokers, Private Client Services serves high-net-worth
individuals. Bear Stearns Asset Management meets the diverse needs of
corporations, governments, nonprofit organizations, foundations,
endowments, individuals and other groups with a broad spectrum of
investment strategies, including equity and fixed income separate
accounts and mutual funds, wrap products, and alternative investments

such as hedge funds and private equity funds.
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Fiscal year ended Fiscal year ended Fiscal year ended Five months ended Fiscal year ended Fiscal year ended

November 30, 2002 November 30, 2001 November 30, 2000 November 26, 1999* June 30, 1999 June 30, 1998

(in thousands, except share and other data)
OPERATING RESULTS
Revenues, net of interest expense $ 5,128,236 $ 4,907,035 $ 5475678 $ 1,938,503 S 4,502,124 $ 4,341,423
Employee compensation and benefits 2,508,197 2,528,852 2,788,638 964,529 2,265,830 2,094,679
Non-compensation expenses 1,309,076 1,443,739 1,515,517 520,382 1,172,186 1,183,252
Total expenses 3,817,273 3,972,591 4,304,155 1,484,911 3,438,016 3,277,931
Income before provision for income taxes 1,310,963 © 934,444 1,171,523 453,592 1,064,108 1,063,492
Provision for income taxes 432,618 309,479 398,340 167,778 391,060 403,063
Income before cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle 878,345 624,965 773,183 285,814 673,048 660,429
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle, net of tax - 6,273) - - - -
Net income $ 878,345 $ 618692 $ 773,183 $ 285,814 $ 673,048 $ 660,429
Net income applicable to common shares $ 842739 § 579,579 $ 734,070 $ 269,517 $ 633618 $ 629417
FINANCIAL POSITION
Total assets $184,854,423 $185,530,228 $168,631,602 $162,037,962 $153,894,340 $154,495,895
Long-term borrowings $ 23,681,399 § 23,429,054 $ 20,095,888 $ 15,911,392 $ 14,647,092 $ 13,295,952
Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial

Interests in Company Subardinated

Debt Securities(?) $ 562,500 $ 762,500 $ 500,000 $ 500,000 $ 500,000 $ 350,000
Stockholders’ equity $ 6,382,083 $ 5628527 $ 5,654,288 $ 4941947 $ 4,955,509 $ 4291533

COMMON SHARE DATA

Basic earnings per share(2) $ 700 § 449  § 537 § 178§ 426 S 417
Diluted earnings per share(2) $ 647 $ 427 § 535 § 178§ 426 S 417
Cash dividends declared per common share(2) $ 062 S 060 § 055 § 029 § 056 § 0.54
Book value per common share(2) $ 3994 $ 3384 $ 3151 $ 2693 § 2560 21.64
Common shares outstanding(2)(3) 145,591,496 146,465,210 158,039,960 165,956,810 167,265,996 167,173,826
FINANCIAL RATIOS

Return on average common equity 18.1% 13.7% 19.1% 16.6% 18.8% 21.7%
Profit margin(4) 25.6% 19.0% 21.4% 23.4% 23.6% 24.5%
OTHER DATA (inbillions, except employees)

Margin debt balances, average for period $ 34.1 $ 393§ 564 $ 438 § 406 § 45.8
Customer short balances, average for period $ 546 $ 569 64.5 $ 586 $ 60.7 $ 59.4
Stock borrowed, average for period $ 44.1 $ 46.9 $ 52.1 $ 46.8 $ 453 $ 422
Free credit balances, average for period $ 19.3 $ 187 S 150  § 130§ 12.3 $ 10.1
Assets under management, at period end $ 24.0 $ 242 $ 19.5 S 13.0 $ 12.2 $ 9.8
Employees 10,574 10,452 11,201 10,081 9,808 9,180

* On fanuary 18, 2000, the Company's Board of Directors elected to change its fiscal year end to November 30 from fune 30, effective with the fiscal year beginning November 27, 1999.

(1) As of November 30, 2002, Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interests in Company Subordinated Debt Securities consists of $300 million of Preferred Securities issued by Bear Stearns Capital Trust Il and $262.5 million of
Preferred Securities issued by Bear Stearns Capital Trust lll. As of November 30, 2001, Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interests in Company Subordinated Debt Securities consists of $200 million of Capital Securities issued by
Bear Stearns Capital Trust f, $300 million of Preferred Securities issued by Bear Stearns Capital Trust /i and $262.5 million of Preferred Securities issued by Bear Stearns Capital Trust Ilf. As of November 30, 2000, November 26,
1999 and fune 30, 1999, Guaranteed Freferred Beneficial interests in Company Subordinated Debt Securities consists of $200 million of Capital Securities issued by Bear Stearns Capital Trust / and $300 million of Preferred
Securities issued by Bear Stearns Capital Trust Il. As of june 30, 1998, Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial interests in Company Subordinated Debt Securities consists of $150 million of Exchangeable Preferred income Cumulative
Shares, which were issued by one of our subsidiaries, and $200 million of Capital Securities issued by Bear Stearns Capital Trust I. Each of the trusts is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and holds certain of our subordi-
nated debentures as its sole asset.

(2) Reflects all stock dividends prior to November 30, 2002.

(3) Common shares outstanding include units issued under certain stock compensation plans which will be distributed as shares of common stock.

(4) Represents the ratio of incame before provision for income taxes to revenues, net of interest expense.

Note: Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts to conform to the current year's presentation.
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70 OUR STOCKHOLDERS

Dear fellow stockholders,
It takes a certain mindset to be successful.

Here, at Bear Stearns, we measure success daily. It begins by coming to work every day with the
goal of improving our performance, stretching our limits, raising our standards and delivering
stronger results — year after year — in markets both good and bad. That commitment to
excellence is the spirit that defines and distinguishes Bear Stearns.

Fiscal 2002 presented many challenges. It was a difficult year marked by as sluggish economy and
weak business conditions; yet, disciplined management of our businesses and control over expenses
allowed us to increase profit margins and report record results. Throughout the weakened
operating environment, we successfully implemented key revenue enhancement strategies and
gained market share in many of our core businesses. And our fixed income business had another
record year — surpassing the previous record set in 2001.

I am pleased to report that the market rewarded our financial performance. Over the two-year
period ended November 30, 2002, Bear Stearns’ stock price has appreciated 39%.

Our commitment to excellence and measured approach to balancing risk and reward has kept
Bear Stearns focused on its core competencies and on delivering superior financial performance.
Our business mix is resilient, generating stable revenues in virtually all business conditions. We
continue to avoid short-term trends by staying focused on the long-term strength of our businesses.
Our goal is not to grow for the sake of growth, but to grow profitably.

Bear Stearns’ businesses continue to thrive because our employees come to work each day
certain in the knowledge that they can do better. They relish the opportunity to exchange ideas,
work collaboratively and break new ground by drawing on the full resources of the firm. I
thank each of the 10,500 employees at Bear Stearns for making 2002 a great success. And I thank
you, our stockholders, for your continued support and confidence. It is a privilege to lead
this great company.

I look forward to working with you in 2003.

Very truly yours,

James E. Cayne

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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STRENGTH IS NOT RULED BY SIZE.

Since 1923 Bear Stearns has been a strong competitor, resisting
the urge to acquire or merge with another company to gain size
for size’s sake. Instead, we have kept a steadfast focus on a single
goal: to excel and remain profitable for our stockholders.

Over the years we have bilt the financial strength to survive tough
markets, employ capital wisely and safeguard stockholder assets. In
2002, in one of the most challenging operating environments, Bear
Stearns prospered. Book value per common share grew steadily,
reaching $39.94 at November 30, 2002, while total assets were

$185 billion and total capital reached $30.6 billion. Over the past
five years, book value per share has posted a compound annual
growth rate of 15.9%, with total capital improving at a 16.9%
compound annual growth rate. Net income rose by 42% to
$878 million and earnings per common share (diluted) were a
record $6.47.

In 2002 we proved once again that we have the strength to
deliver what our clients demand — not always the biggest solution,
just the best.

39.94
31.51 33.84
26.93
22.10
98 99 00 01 02
BOOK VALUE PER COMMON SHARE
s
asof 11/30 for all




SHIFT, BALANCE AND TURN ON A DIME.

We know that markets can change quickly or evolve exceedingly
stowly. That cyclicality and our goal to remain profitable led us to
create a balanced portfolio of businesses that helps us turn market
challenges to our advantage.

In 2002, as equity markets struggled, our fixed income franchise
provided record revenue. At the same time, we challenged the
equity-related businesses to improve operating efficiencies and
launch new revenue-enhancing initiatives to take advantage of
depressed market conditions and gain market share. In a period

5,476

of rising equity markets, our banking, clearing, private client
service, asset management and equity-related business segments
are poised to realize their upside potential. By expanding the
breadth of our franchise, we have also increased our ability to
adapt quickly to market changes.

Armed with an agile business built to withstand turmoil and a
culture that encourages innovation, we are singularly positioned
to meet the evolving challenges of the financial markets.

5116

3,996

4,907 5128

98 99

00

01 02

NET REVENUE
S in millions
forthe 12-month periods ended 11/30
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AT YOUR SERVICE.

We see no point in attracting the best minds in the business only
to sequester them behind closed doors. Ideas rise to the top by
eliminating barriers to the free rein of intellect and imagination.
Ours is a collegial environment where employees at every level
exchange ideas and seek support from even the most senior
members of Bear Stearns management. A place where all employees
are focused on delivering their collective expertise to clients.
Where clients can be certain that questions and answers are
only a call away and that ours is always an open door.

Nowhere is that spirit of sharing knowledge more evident than in
the efforts to establish a single point of contact for every client.
The goal is to provide clients with access to the entire firm’s
resources across every business segment — we call it "delivering
the firm."” We strive to eliminate internal hurdles that often inhibit
cross-company communication. And pride ourselves on the ability
to rapidly assemble multi-disciplinary teams focused on fulfilling
client’s complex needs. So not only do we talk to each other, we
work together to ensure easy access to the best solutions.

298 306
26.3
2%.4
18.4 \

98 99 00 01 02
TOTAL CAPITAL
$inbillions
asof 11/30 for all
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STRIKING A BALANCE BETWEEN RISK AND REWARD.

The year 2002 was marked by the fall of some of the nation’s
largest corporations. By maintaining a strict approach to risk, and
by allocating capital wisely, we have achieved one of the lowest
levels of trading revenue volatility on Wall Street. At Bear Stearns,
we know we cannot predict the future, but mitigating the risks
ahead is part of the foundation upon which this firm was built.

26.0

That certain discipline is also evident in our cost control
procedures. At the height of the bull market, Bear Stearns began
to look at opportunities to create efficiencies. In 2000 a margin
improvement program was launched. In 2002 total expenses
dropped by $193 million” and, as a resutt, profit margins increased
35%. True to our culture, we continue to search for ways to run
our business more efficiently, always balancing risk and reward.

25.6

21.2 214

19.0

98 99

01 02

PRE-TAX PROFIT MARGIN

forthe 12-month periods ended 11/30

*  Represents changes in operating expenses excluding the
effect of the merchant banking gain in Aeropostale, inc.




A PRIDE OF PURPOSE AND A COMMON PASSION.

Our success rests on our ability to attract and keep talented
individuals. Bear Stearns employees know they are empowered
to make a difference. They come to work each day with the certain
knowledge that they can contribute. That makes the difference
between a job and a career. Between work and devotion. It is
the unrelenting spirit of the people at Bear Stearns that sets us
apart. That spirit is embodied in a desire to win, to go the extra
mile by digging deep for the right solution to a client’s problem,

and by drawing on many different disciplines to serve clients
more effectively.

A certain spirit is also fostered by employee ownership; over
41% of the company's stock is held directly by employees or
through compensation programs. This pride of ownership not
only motivates our people to succeed, but also closely aligns our
employee’s interests with those of our stockholders.

878
829 773
541 619
a8 99 01 02
NET INCOME
$in millions

for the 12-month periods ended 11/30




Our industry has seen a great deal of change and consolidation.
As we reflect on our long history of stability — we will turn 80 in
2003 — we know that one of the keys to our success has been
our insistence on sticking to what we do best. Understanding
that our mission is to provide clients with the best possible
financial solutions, we use our considerable determination and
expertise to deliver. Every day.

The benefits of this focus are manifest. Acquisitions are made only

when they make strategic sense and are financially attractive. Our
investment banking focus is centered around a select group of

219

THE POWER OF CONCENTRATION.

sectors in which we excel. With a singularity of purpose, we can
quickly create new and tailored fixed income securities for specific
clients. Focus allows Global Clearing Services to support the
individual needs of thousands of hedge funds. And focus means
we attract the most productive brokers on Wall Street who
concentrate only on the high-net-worth segment.

Focus draws talent to the firm, with the knowledge that it
is possible to rise to any height. Focus has kept our expenses
down and net income up. Focus has helped us achieve for our
stockholders the highest return on equity in our sector.

19.1 18.1

16.3

13.7

98 99

01 02

RETURN ON EQUITY

for the 12-month periods ended 11/30
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Fixed Income

For the third consecutive year, the Fixed Income Division posted
an increase in net revenues. In 2002 net revenues jumped 21%
and reached $1.9 billion, topping the record-setting earnings of
2001. The interest rate-related businesses, including mortgage-
backed and asset-backed securitization, flourished during the
favorable economic and interest rate market conditions.
In contrast, credit-related businesses weathered tough times,
as many US corporations suffered credit downgrades and
even bankruptcy.

The deep strength of our mortgage platform allowed Bear
Stearns to capitalize on a wide range of profitable
opportunities. For the second year in a row, we were the
number two-ranked issuer of mortgage-backed securities, with
a 12% market share. Due to the breadth of our franchise, we
participated in every step of the mortgage securitization
process, from buying whole loans, grouping these loans into
securities that meet investor-specific needs — whether income
flow, interest rate or other loan characteristics — to servicing
loans that don't fit the standard market fare. The distribution

network is large and varied, with capabilities spanning seven
different trading desks: commercial, non-agency, adjusted-rate,
collateralized mortgage obligations, pass-throughs, mortgage-
backed securities and mortgage servicing through our wholly
owned subsidiary EMC Mortgage Corporation (EMC). EMC
specializes in the acquisition and servicing of distressed and
underperforming residential loan sectors. Supporting this entire
platform is our Financial Analytics & Structured Transactions
Group, which provides state-cof-the-art technology and
analytics. We look to build on this unique structure by
continuing to develop asset-backed products and services for
current and new asset classes.

Interest rate-sensitive businesses in general, and our franchise in
particular, have been well positioned to prosper from the steep
yield curve environment. Over the past two years, fixed income
revenues have increased 77%, demonstrating not only favorable
market conditions but also the breadth of our product offerings.
Credit markets in 2002 were extremely challenging, and as
they stabilize, corporate and high yield debt issuance, credit

DIRECTORY ASSISTANCE

Bear Stearns advised R.H. Donnalley Corporation on its $2.23 dillion acquisition of

Sprint Corporation’s yellow peges directory business.

Bear Stearns provided a capital commitment and acted as a lead arranger and joint bookrunning manager of

$2.45 billion in related bank and high vield debt financings, and a'so helped organize $200 million in private eauity finencing.
gny g { g : ity g

The deal was a success thanks to Bear Stearrs’ ability %o bring

different parts of the firm together, including M&A, leveraged lending, high yield,

and equity capital markats, for the benefit of the ciient.
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derivatives and secondary trading of debt products are set to
benefit from this recovery. The credit derivatives market was
particularly dynamic in 2002, and we took advantage of this
growth to reorganize our derivative trading operations, more
closely aligning sales and trading to serve our clients better. We
continue to build our business around structured credit
products that are driven by an intellectual value-added
component where off-the-shelf solutions fall short of client
specified needs.

The Bear Stearns Municipal and Public Finance Group solidified
its role as a leading underwriter of municipal securities and as an
originator of tax-exempt securities. In 2002 the Public Finance
Group served as a lead manager for more than $18.6 billion of
tax-exempt issues, including the $2.9 billion initial tranche of the
New York Metropolitan Transportation Authority’s $15.0 billion
debt restructuring program. Institutional Investor magazine
selected this transaction as a public finance “Deal of the Year.”
Bear Stearns has become the top-ranked senior manager of
state-level tobacco securitization. With transactions totaling

page 13

MARKET

more than $2.89 billion, we have captured a 52% share of the
market. In addition to deal origination, Bear Stearns is a
recognized leader in the distribution and trading of municipal
securities and municipal derivative products.

In Europe, as our fixed income franchise becomes more
established, Bear, Stearns International Limited (BSIL) has
partnered with a wide variety of clients to solve a multitude of
issues. BSIL broke new ground in developing a unique way to help
UK-based Everton and Manchester City football clubs raise
additional capital. Using future ticket sale revenue streams, we
created a security that raised the funds needed by the clubs to
invest in their teams.

Going forward, we will continue to focus on introducing clients
to each of the many products and services we offer — through
a single point of contact. Clients have applauded this effort,
which has resulted in an increase in the percentage of clients
who now purchase more than one type of product through
Bear Stearns.

1,938
1,401 1.602
1,093
861
98 99 00 01 02

FIXED

INCOME-NET REVENUE

$inmillions

for the 12-month periods ended 11/30
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Institutional Equities

Despite weak fundamentals, we invested in and improved
our equity business. Under difficult conditions in 2002, we gained
market share and held revenue levels — total net revenues in
equities were $1.1 billion. We expanded and upgraded our domestic
sales forces, added talent to our equity block desk, and maintained
our presence in the Nasdaq® market. Those efforts enabled us to
profitably improve our market position in domestic institutional
equities, and continued the trends of the past three years.

We are investing in our execution-only business, Institutional
Direct Inc., which offers institutional clients alternative execution
and service channels. We have combined a very strong portfolio
business with direct access execution, soft dollar service, and
added sales and marketing strength. We have high expectations
that clients will find this effort attractive.

In 2002 the derivatives area grew revenues, gained market share and
diversified its product line. We invested in the convertible bond
franchise and significant sales and trading resources were added to the
flow derivative product initiative, which includes listed index and single
stock options as well as exchange traded funds. With these efforts we
have formed new and deepened existing customer relationships.

Our equity research product remains at the center of what we offer
clients. It is thematic in nature, conceptual in tone and underpinned
by sophisticated financial medeling. And it has a loyal audience
among clients, who have voted 29 of our analysts to the highly
regarded Institutional Investor 2002 All-America Research Team.

As we broaden our equity capabilities, one area of strategic emphasis
is the specialist business. Bear Wagner Specialists LLC, a joint venture
between Hunter Partners LLC and Bear Stearns, doubled in size
through acquisition in 2001. We are the specialist for over 500 stocks
on the NYSE and, in addition, now trade Nasdaq stocks. We
remained committed to the primary market-making business as we
also expand our product reach to include cutting-edge innovations.

The focus of our European products scope narrowed, but revenues
grew through developing stronger relationships with a broader
number of European and US clients. We are working hard to
provide clients with a high-quality research product combined
with excellent execution capabilities across an array of markets
and types of securities.

Ours is a client-centric culture — a deeper understanding of their
needs has resulted in more solution-oriented research, sales and
execution and a broader introduction of our capabilities to clients.

WIN-WYNN TRANSACTIONS

While light deal flow and depressed stock prices in 2002 made the process of orchestrating initial public offerings

unusually difficuli, Bear Stearns helped clients execute winning strategies. As Steve Wynn was buiiding his highly anticipated

and newest casino in Las Vegas, Bear Stearns helped him arrange the necessary funding, serving as joint bookrunning manager

for concurrent bank, bond and equity financings totaling $1.8 billion. When China Telecom sougnt direction in making the transformation

roma governmeni-owned compeny into a publicly treded entity on the New York Stock Exchange, Bear Stearns advised them on

he privatization process and a $1.4 billion IPO.  Across the country or around the globe, regardless of markei conditions,

Bear Stearns showed that a solid strategy and good execution can win out, even if the market deals a difficult hand.
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[nvestment Banking

In 2002 the investment banking sector faced a widespread
decline in debt and equity underwriting and mergers and
acquisitions activity — domestic equity issuance activity
dropped 15% and domestically completed M&A dropped 54%
versus fiscal year 2007. In these challenging times, Bear Stearns’
mergers and acquisitions team ranked second in the league tables
for US announced activity. Equity underwriting market share
(based on book-managed dollar volume of US deals) increased by
50% over the prior year.

This success in investment banking is a culmination of important
organizational initiatives and a concentrated effort to provide
full-service, strategic assistance to our core clients. Early in 2001
we moved to right-size the investment banking business,
positioning us for the reduced deal environment we faced in
2002. While closely monitoring staffing levels and expenses, we
continue to hire senior franchise bankers to expand reach and
penetration in six key focus areas. Integration efforts between
industry and product groups continued as the close cooperation
between these areas produces positive results as we "deliver the
firm” to clients.

We have sharpened our focus on clients with whom we can
develop strong relationships and have an impact by providing
strategic, value-added advisory and financial services that draw
upon all of the resources of the firm. This is evident from the five
transactions recognized as “Deals of the Year” by /nvestment
Dealers’ Digest.These included the “Deal of the Year” in healthcare
(Trigon Healthcare Inc.'s acquisition by Anthem Inc.), as well as a
“Breakthrough Deal of the Year” in the media/telecom sector
(Nextel's international restructuring plan); media and
entertainment (AOL Time Warner's restructuring of Time Warner
Entertainment); and healthcare (Pfizer's acquisition of Pharmacia,
as well as Amgen’s merger with Immunex). Many of these
transactions involved multiple products and more than one area
of expertise within the firm.

In 2002 Bear Stearns Merchant Banking (BSMB) made a substantial
contribution to the firm's revenues through the investment in and
subsequent initial public offering of specialty retailer Aeropostale,
Inc. The resulting gain from the investment and IPO totaled $226.9
million for Bear Stearns. In addition, BSMB’s $1.5 billion fund,
which closed in 2001, continues to make investments and is
poised to become an even more significant component of the
investment banking effort going forward.

DEVELOPING THE RIGHT CHEMISTRY

Bear Stearns’ expansion throughout Europe has created an organization that complements

the strengths of the US franchise and is well positioned to capture new business

opportunities. The Bear Stearns Global Chemicals Group delivered on that potential in 2002 as they successfully established

a European presence. This team was a standout in a down market, advising and financing clients on five transactions in a brief

three-monin period. The seamless transatlantic approach the group has taken towards creating client

solutions is a tribute to how constant communication and cross-border

expertise can pay dividends for companies, regardless of which side of the Atlantic they reside.
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With a total client count approaching 3,000, Bear Stearns
remains a leading competitor and has one of the largest clearing
operations on Wall Street. The group supports clients with three
primary disciplines: broker-dealer services, whose clients are
broker-dealers; prime brokerage services, whose clients are hedge
funds and professional traders; and registered investment advisor
1 services, whose clients are large investment advisors.

| Despite 2002's formidable economic chaltenges, Global Clearing

f Services (GCS) made great strides in building its business. Daily

~ clearing volume, the average number of transactions processed,
increased 9.9% and has experienced a 15.0% compound annual
growth rate since 1997. We continue to be among the largest
margin lenders and securities borrowers in the market.

! Average customer margin debt balances were $34.1 billion at
. year-end 2002, versus $39.3 billion for year-end 2001. Although
margin balances were down, total equity in client accounts rose
7.0% to $164 billion at November 30, 2002. Assets in prime
brokerage accounts were up 17% for the year, reflecting the
industry growth in hedge funds and alternative investments.
The amount of cash in client accounts as measured by average

ADDITIONAL SERVICES,

Global Clearing Services

customer free-credit balances also increased to $19.3 billion
during fiscal 2002. These figures indicate that clients are
maintaining substantial amounts of cash and unused borrowing
capacity.

Our longstanding leadership in the prime brokerage sector
resulted in a No. 1 ranking in Hedgeworld’s most recent US prime
broker survey, as well as a first-place finish for hedge funds with
convertible arbitrage, event-driven and equity market-neutral
styles. The division achieved first-place honors in many other
categories, while ranking second on a global scale. The growing
hedge fund industry witnessed an inflow of assets from investors
seeking products uncorrelated to the US equity market.

Capitalizing on the industry’s increasing competitiveness, three
years ago we launched an enhanced service platform focused on
building profitability for leading hedge funds. This new service
package went beyond commaodity offerings and created strategic
alliances between clients and the entire firm, enabling hedge
funds worldwide to seek solutions to their operating challenges
from all Bear Stearns divisions. This year the platform greatly
expanded global product and technology offerings, hired

ADDITIONAL SOLUTIONS

Bear Stearns Global Clearing Services goes to great lengths to provide hedge funds with the tools to succeed.

That means working seamlessly with different departments in the firm
to provide hedge funds with additional services like credit and equity derivatives capabilities,
| full-service and execution-only trading systems

and short-term cash management. It is an initiative designed

to provide multiple solutions for our clients. And in 2002 more than 300 clients were introduced

| to new services designed to help them navigate the road to success.
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GLOBAL CLEARING SERVICES

additional senior managers with extensive experience and
expertise, improved direct communication between senior
managers and clients, as well as increased client access to Bear
Stearns’ most senior executives.

Global Clearing Services' emphasis on open access and
streamlined communication enables consistent and proactive
service to a client’s entire business, facilitating success while
eliminating problems before they arise. Qur distinctive business
approach and broadened service platform is designed to deliver
the specialized resources clients require — comprehensive
solutions across multiple products and strategies — whenever
and however they are needed.

Designing solutions for leading startup and established hedge
funds in Europe and the US typically begins with advanced web-
based portfolio reporting (including customized risk and
transparency tools), leverage products, term financing and risk
management. Clients develop and expand into other strategies
and products by employing our full line of worldwide services
and expertise, such as institutional equities, fixed income,
options and derivatives.

Broker-dealers engaged in retail, institutional and money
management activities can access the rare combination of
products, technology and services available worldwide.

Leading registered investment advisors who service the high-net-
worth market leverage Bear Stearns’ extensive capabilities —
from advanced applications and performance reporting to wealth
management and custody solutions — which empower them to
retain their best clients in this highly competitive arena.

We are introducing additional service enhancements in 2003,
including state-of-the-art applications that further enhance
client efficiency. These innovations are geared toward
improving productivity and enabling clients to more effectively
manage their businesses. Our tiered relationship-management
model will be expanded. Exclusive hedge fund events will be
held more frequently in the US and Europe. In addition, GCS is
building on its significant international expertise, offering
resources few firms can match — such as an extensive hedge
fund investor network in the UK, France and Switzerland — as
well as custody, trustee and technology support for funds and
administrators in Dublin.
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The markedly challenging operating environment in 2002 also
had an effect on the private client area. Declining equity
market performance for the third straight year continued to
" dampen retail investor activity — even for the most
sophisticated investors. Yet despite the consequences of the
prolonged bear market and exceptionally low levels of
individual investor activity, Private Client Services’ results
validated our solid business strategy.

As our competitors scaled back their operations in a difficult
investment environment, we focused on adding to our team of
professionals. Our efforts to recruit and retain experienced and
highly-productive brokers were tremendously successful. Since
the beginning of this initiative, more than 70 high-net-worth
brokers with $71 million in annual production and $11 billion in
client assets joined our select group of approximately 500
account executives. Bear Stearns brokers consistently rank among
the industry’s most experienced; on average, they have twice the
experience of the average industry broker and are among the
highest revenue producers.

We believe in providing an entrepreneurial platform — with few
layers of bureaucracy — for our brokers. This enables the person
who knows the client best, the broker, to respond rapidly to the
client’'s needs. Utilizing the resources of the firm, our
professionals can provide the highest quality service to meet the
sophisticated needs of their discriminating clientele, whose assets
per account are more than twice the national average. In an
industry where top brokers "vote with their feet,” in 2002 we
retained 100% of our team.

Private Client Services clients increasingly rely on our US
brokers for original investment strategies and tools to manage,
preserve and build wealth. We are developing new investments,
tax strategies and asset allocation technology, including an
integrated suite of services that combines the most advanced
techniques in financial planning, market analytics and
investment management. In 2003, the department will
continue to work to formulate new services and solutions, as
well as aggressively increase the sales force to meet the needs
of the most discerning investors.

WEALTH MANAGEMENT

The Bear Stearns Wealth Management Services Group was created to serve

clients in an innovative way. Instead of organizing our experts in traditional discipline-based silos,

we combined leaders in trust and estate law, strategic tax planning, asset allocation,

derivatives structuring and restricted stock dispositions into a single client-focused service team.

The benefits are as powerful as they are unique. Recently the team was called to help a client determine

the appropriate allocation for a complex trust. By uniting trust and asset allocation expertise, we developed

a strategy that balanced cash flow needs, diversification and tax efficiency.
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Bear Stearns Asset Management, Inc. (BSAM)® continued to
build strong client relationships and increase its product
offerings in 2002. At fiscal year-end, November 30, 2002,
despite the difficult market environment, assets under
management totaled $24 billion, compared with $24.2 billion
at the end of the prior fiscal year, and revenues were down
8.3% to $153.7 million.

On the backdrop of a difficult operating environment, BSAM
demonstrated some clear successes. Over the past five years,
assets under management have increased on average more than
25.2% per year. Separate account assets grew 24% year over
year to $10.3 billion. Our flagship large cap value product grew
14% year over year to $3 billion. Assets in our systematic equity
products grew 99% to over $550 million, up from $300 million
at the end of 2001. And fixed income hedge funds experienced
tremendous growth, with the asset-backed securities strategy
more than tripling to $260 million, and the mortgage-backed
strategy growing 45% year over year to $592 million.

MANAGEMENT

b reor e
nagement

In 2002 we were proud to welcome 75 new institutional clients
with total assets of more than $1.6 billion.

We provide comprehensive investment services. Our products
encompass US equity and fixed income separate accounts;
alternative investments, which include hedge funds, venture
capital funds, private equity fund of funds and structured
products; as well as mutual funds and managed account
programs. The department serves institutional investors such
as corporations, endowments, foundations, pension plans,
public funds and Taft-Hartley plans, as well as individual
investors.

In 2002 new products included several quantitative equity
strategies, a structured loan product, a new equity hedge fund
and a private equity fund of funds and we will continue to expand
this innovative product lineup. In addition, BSAM has and will
continue to improve its proven strengths in risk management and
portfolio diversification.

A VALUE PROPOSITION

Bear Stearns Asset Management, Inc. believes that one common denominator

for a healthy stock can be intrinsic value. Uncovering intrinsic value isn't easy however;

it takes a willingness to dig deep, a strong understanding of accounting

and a thorough knowledge about company fundamentals and the competitive landscape.

And it is no surprise that, at a time when interest in value investing has increased,

some of the largest and most successful corporations in the world invested

more than a billion dollars into BSAM’s value strategy.
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THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES INC.
MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company's principal business activities — investment banking,
securities and derivatives sales and trading, clearance and brokerage —
are, by their nature, highty competitive and subject to various risks,
including volatile trading markets and fluctuations in the volume of
market activity. Consequently, the Company’s net income and revenues
have been, and are likely to continue to be, subject to wide fluctuations,
reflecting the effect of many factors, including general economic condi-
tions, securities market conditions, the level and volatility of interest
rates and equity prices, competitive conditions, liquidity of global mar-
kets, international and regional political conditions, regulatory
developments, monetary and fiscal policy, investor sentiment, availabil-
ity and cost of capital, technological changes and events, and the size,
volume and timing of transactions.

| Certain statements contained in this discussion are “forward-look-

ing statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements
concerning management's expectations, strategic objectives, busi-
ness prospects, anticipated economic performance and financial
condition and other similar matters are subject to risks and uncer-
tainties, including those described in the prior paragraph, which
could cause actual results to differ materially from those discussed
in the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements
speak only as of the date of the document in which they are made.
We disclaim any obligation or undertaking to provide any updates
or revisions to any forward-looking statement to reflect any change
in our expectations or any change in events, conditions or circum-
stances on which the forward-looking statement is based.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. These principles require management to make certain
estimates and assumptions which could materially affect reported
amounts in the financial statements (see Note 1, “Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies,” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements). Critical accounting policies are those policies that are the
most important to the financial statements and/or those that require
significant management judgment related to matters that are uncertain.

VALUATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company has identified the valuation of financial instruments as a
critical accounting policy due to the complex nature of certain of its
products, the degree of judgment required to appropriately value these
products and the pervasive impact of such valuation on the financial con-
dition and earnings of the Company.

The Company's financial instruments can be aggregated in three broad
categories: (1) those valued based on quoted market prices or for which
the Company has independent external valuations, (2) those whose fair
value is determined based on readily observable price levels for similar
instruments and/or models or methodologies that employ data that are
observable from objective sources, and (3) those whose fair value is esti-
mated based on internally developed models or methodologies utilizing
significant assumptions or ‘other data that are generally less readily
observable from objective sources.

(1) Financial Instruments Valued Based on Quoted Market Prices or for
Which the Company Has Independent External Valuations

The Company's valuation policy is to use quoted market prices from
securities and derivatives exchanges where they are available and reliable.
Financial instruments valued based on quoted market prices are primarily
exchange-traded derivatives and listed equities. Financial instruments that
are most typically valued via alternative approaches but for which the
Company typically receives independent external valuation information
include US treasuries, most mortgage-backed securities and corporate,
emerging market, high yield and municipal bonds. Unlike most equities,
which tend to be traded on exchanges, the vast majority of fixed income
trading (including US treasuries) occurs in over-the-counter markets, and,
accordingly, the Company’s valuation policy is based on its best estimate
of the prices at which these financial instruments trade in those markets.
The Company is an active dealer in most of the over-the-counter markets
for these financial instruments, and typically has considerable insight into
the trading level of financial instruments held in inventory and/cr related
financial instruments that it uses as a basis for its valuation.

(2) Financial Instruments Whose Fair Value is Determined Based on
Internally Developed Models or Methodologies That Employ Data That Are
Readily Observable from Objective Sources

The second broad category consists of financial instruments for which
the Company does not receive quoted prices; therefore, models or other
methodologies are utilized to value these financial instruments. Such
models are primarily industry-standard models that consider various

THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES INC,
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assumptions, including time value, yield curve, volatility factors, prepay-
ment speeds, default rates, loss severity, current market and contractual
prices for the underlying financial instruments, as well as other relevant
economic measures. Substantially all these assumptions are observable
in the marketplace, can be derived from observable data or are supported
by observable levels at which transactions are executed in the market-
place. A degree of subjectivity is required to determine appropriate
models or methodologies as well as appropriate underlying assumptions.
This subjectivity makes these valuations inherently less reliable than
quoted market prices. Financial instruments in this category include non-
exchange-traded derivatives such as interest rate swaps, certain
mortgage-backed securities and certain other cash instruments. For an
indication of the Company's involvement in derivatives, including matu-
rity terms, see the table setting forth notional/contract amounts
outstanding in the “Derivative Financial Instruments” section.

(3) Financial Instruments Whose Fair Value is Estimated Based on
Internally Developed Models or Methodologies Utilizing Significant
Assumptions or Other Data That Are Generally Less Readily Observable
from Objective Sources

Certain complex financial instruments and other investments have sig-
nificant data inputs that cannot be validated by reference to readily
observable data. These instruments are typically illiquid, long-dated or
unique in nature and therefore engender considerable judgment by
traders and their management, who, as dealers in many of these instru-
ments, have the appropriate knowledge to estimate data inputs that are
less readily observable. For certain instruments, extrapolation or other
methods are applied to observed market or other data to estimate
assumptions that are not observable. At November 30, 2002, such posi-
tions (primarily fixed income cash positions) aggregated approximately
$3.7 billion in "Financial tnstruments Owned” and $328 million in
“Financial Instruments Sold, But Not Yet Purchased” in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Condition.

As part of the Company's fixed income activities, the Company participates
in the underwriting, securitization and trading of non-performing mort-
gage-related assets, real estate assets and certain residuals. In addition, the
Company has a portfolio of Chapter 13 and other credit card receivables
from individuals. Certain of these high yield positions have limited price
observability. In these instances, fair values are determined by statistical
analysis of historical cash flows, default probabilities, recovery rates, time
value of money and discount rates considered appropriate given the level
of risk in the instrument and associated investor yield requirements.

THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES INC.

As a major dealer in derivatives, the Company is engaged in structur-
ing and acting as principal in complex derivative transactions.
Complex derivatives include certain long-dated equity derivatives,
certain credit and municipal derivatives and other exotic derivative
structures. These non-exchange-traded instruments may have imma-
ture or limited markets and, by their nature, involve complex
valuation methodologies and models, which are often refined to
correlate with the market risk of these instruments.

In recognition of the importance the Company places on the accuracy of

| its valuation of financial instruments as described in the three categories

above, the Company engages in an ongoing internal review of its valua-
tions. Members of the Controllers and Risk Management Departments
perform analysis of internal valuations, typically on a monthty basis but
often on an intra-month basis as well. These departments are independ-
ent of the trading areas responsible for valuing the positions. Results of
the monthly validation process are reported to the Mark-to-Market
(MTM) Committee, which is composed of senior managing directors
from the Risk Management and Contréllers Departments. The MTM
Committee is responsible for ensuring that the approaches used to inde-
pendently validate the Company's valuations are robust, comprehensive
and effective. Typical approaches include valuation comparisons with
external sources, comparisons with observed trading, independent com-
parisons of key model valuation inputs, independent trade modeling and
a variety of other techniques.

Merchant Banking

As part of its merchant banking activities, the Company participates
from time to time in principal investments in leveraged transactions. As
part of these activities, the Company originates, structures and invests
in merger, acquisition, restructuring and leveraged capital transactions,
including leveraged buyouts. The Company's principal investments in
these transactions are generally made in the form of equity invest-
ments, equity-related investments or subordinated loans and have not
historically required significant levels of capital investment.

Equity securities acquired as a result of leveraged acquisition transac-
tions are reflected in the consolidated financial statements at their
initial cost until significant transactions or developments indicate
that a change in the carrying value of the securities is appropriate.
Generally, the carrying values of these securities will be increased only
in those instances where market values are readily ascertainable by
reference to substantial transactions occurring in the marketplace or
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quoted market prices. Reductions to the carrying value of these securities
are made in the event that the Company’s estimate of net realizable
value has declined below the carrying value (see “"Merchant Banking
Investments” for additional details).

See Note 1,"Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for a more comprehensive listing of
significant accounting policies.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

On December 20, 2002, Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc. ("Bear Stearns”) reached
an agreement in principle with the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission; the National Association of Securities Dealers; the New York
Stock Exchange, Inc.; the Offices of the Attorneys General of New York,
New Jersey, Delaware, Vermont and Hawaii; and the North American
Securities Administrators Association on behalf of all the remaining
states to resolve their investigations of Bear Stearns relating to research
analyst independence. Pursuant to the agreement in principle, Bear

Stearns agreed, among other things, to: (1) pay $50 million in retrospec- |

tive relief; (2) adopt internal, structural and operational reforms that will
further augment the steps it has already taken to ensure research analyst
independence and promote investor confidence; (3) contribute $25 mil-
lion spread over five years to provide independent, third-party research
to clients; (4) contribute $5 million for investor education programs; and
(5) in connection with the agreement in principle, adopt restrictions on
the allocation of shares in initial public offerings to corporate executives
and directors of public companies. This agreement is not expected to
have a material effect on the future results of operations.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

The business environment during fiscal 2002 continued to be character-
ized by economic uncertainty and challenging market conditions. During
the first half of fiscal 2002, several negative factors affected the business
environment, including concerns regarding the accuracy of reported
financial results and the reliability of corporate accounting practices,
weakness in capital spending and unemployment at eight-year highs.
Despite these factors, there was growing sentiment that the economy
and corporate profits were strengthening and, as a result, consumer con-

_fidence increased steadily during this period. However, concerns

pertaining to corporate accountability, along with high unemployment,
continued into the second half of fiscal 2002 as businesses adjusted their
workforces to reflect slow growth in the US economy. In addition, the
WorldCom, Inc. difficulties in the third quarter led to significant widening
of corporate credit spreads as the reliability of corporate reporting came
into question. These factors, together with the emergence of heightened
geopolitical risks, resulted in a steady decline in consumer confidence and
significant volatility in the equity markets during the second half of fiscal
2002. The Dow Jones Industrial Average (“DJIA") and Standard & Poor’s
500 index {"S&P 500"} declined 26.6% and 27.2%, respectively, from the
beginning of the second half of the fiscal year through mid-October amid
a selloff in stocks. However, over the balance of the fiscal year, the equity
markets recovered from their October lows as economic reports provided
an indication of stability in the economy.

With inflation well contained, the Federal Reserve Board (“Fed") cut
the federal funds rate twice in fiscal 2002, for a total of 75 basis points
to 1.25%, in an effort to stimulate the economy. During the year, the
Fed'’s economic bias changed three times, fluctuating between weakness
and neutral.

During fiscal 2002, the average daily trading volume on the New York
Stock Exchange, Inc. (“NYSE”) increased 16.3%, while the average daily
trading volume on the Nasdaq decreased 7.7% from fiscal 2001. The
major equity indices suffered declines for the third straight year. During
fiscal 2002, the DJIA declined 9.7% to close at 8,896 at November 30,
2002, while the S&P 500 and Nasdaq Composite Index ("NASDAQ”)
declined 17.8% and 23.4%, respectively. Equity capital markets activities
continued to be adversely affected by the impact of difficult global eco-
nomic conditions, reflecting continued lack of investor demand. Global-
and US-announced mergers and acquisitions volumes remained at low
levels. Domestic-completed mergers and acquisitions activity dropped
53.8%, reflecting unstable market conditions compared with fiscal 2001.
However, the economic and interest rate environment provided favorable
conditions for fixed income activities in fiscal 2002. The Fed rate cuts,
combined with a steep yield curve, created strong demand for domestic
debt issuances and strong secondary market activities. As'a result, the
Company experienced strong results in its fixed income activities, partic-
ularly in the mortgage- and asset-backed areas.

THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES INC.
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The business environment during fiscal 2001 was characterized by a gen- |
erally weak US economy attributable to several factors, including a |

slowdown in consumer spending, a decline in capital spending and an
increase in unemployment. The Fed cut the federal funds rate 10 times,
for a total of 450 basis points, to 2%. US equity indices were volatile dur-

ing fiscal 2001 as the market responded to numerous economic reports, |

corporate earnings reports and profit warnings. During fiscal 2001, the
average daily trading volume on the NYSE and Nasdaq rose 21.7% and
16.8%, respectively. The DJIA, S&P 500 and Nasdagq declined 5.4%, 13.4%
and 25.7%, respectively. The terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001
resulted in the US markets being closed for four consecutive business
days and, in the aftermath, unemployment reached its highest level in

five years and consumer confidence plunged. The combination of a weak
economy, a declining stock market and the terrorist attacks resulted in an

[ extremely challenging year for the securities industry. Global stock

issuance volumes declined, reflecting falling stock prices and lack of
investor demand. Global- and US-announced mergers and acquisitions
volumes dropped dramatically during fiscal 2001, reflecting unstable
equity market conditions. However, the economic and interest rate envi-
ronment provided favorable conditions for fixed income activities in
fiscal 2001. The Fed rate cuts, together with a steepening yield curve, cre-
ated strong demand for domestic debt issuances and refinancings. As a
result, investment-grade debt and mortgage-backed securities new issue
volumes increased significantly.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In the discussion to follow, results for the fiscal year ended November 30,
2002 (“fiscal 2002") will be compared with the results for the fiscal year
ended November 30, 2001 ("fiscal 2001"), and the results for fiscal 2001
will be compared with the results for the fiscal year ended November 30,
2000 (“fiscal 2000").

The Company reported net income of $878.3 million, or $6.47 per share
(diluted), for fiscal 2002, which represented an increase of 42.0% from
$618.7 million, or $4.27 per share (diluted), for fiscal 2001. Results for fis-
cal 2002 include a merchant banking gain of $226.9 million, included in

.investment banking revenues, from an investment in and initial public
offering of Aeropostale, Inc. Excluding the impact of this gain, earnings
per share (diluted) was $5.57 for fiscal 2002, an increase of 30.4% from
fiscal 2001. The Company reported net income of $773.2 million, or
$5.35 per share (diluted), in fiscal 2000.

Fiszal iscal 2007 Revenues, net of interest expense (“net
revenues”), increased 4.5% to $5.1 billion in fiscal 2002 from $4.9 billion
in fiscal 20071. Net revenues, excluding the merchant banking gain, were

$4.9 billion, unchanged from fiscal 2007.

S3Z2 versus T

Commission revenues in fiscal 2002 were virtually unchanged from fiscal
2001 at $1.7 billion. Weak economic conditions led to a reduction in
clearance and retail commission revenues, which declined a combined
10.7% to $496.8 million in fiscal 2002 from $556.6 million in fiscal 2001.
This decline was offset by increases in institutional commissions due to
increased volume. Market share increased significantly for both listed and
over-the-counter institutional volume. In addition, a new industry-wide
commission-based pricing structure (commission equivalents) for exe-

cuting transactions on the Nasdaq resulted in an increase in institutional
commissions. Previously, the Company did not charge explicit fees in this
business, but rather earned market-making revenues based generally on
the difference between bid and ask prices. Such revenues were previously
recorded in principal transactions revenues.

The Company’s principal transactions revenues by reporting categories
for the fiscal years ended November 30 were as follows:

2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)
Fixed income $1,662,952 $1,325,588 S 881,494
Equity 410,052 549,199 767,051
Derivative financial
instruments 464,795 408,010 576,473
Total principal transactions $2,537,799 $2,282,797 $2,225,018

Revenues from principal transactions in fiscal 2002 increased 11.2% to
$2.5 billion from $2.3 billion in fiscal 2001, reflecting strong results from
the Company’s fixed income activities, particularly in the mortgage- and
asset-backed securities, distressed debt and government bonds areas.
These business areas benefited from a favorable interest rate environ-
ment, characterized by a low level of short-term interest rates, a steep
yield curve and increased customer order flow. The increase in revenues
derived from fixed income activities was partially offset by a decrease in
revenues derived from equity activities, particularly in the over-the-
counter, convertible arbitrage and risk arbitrage areas. Derivative financial
instruments increased 13.9% to $464.8 million from $408.0 million in
fiscal 2001, reflecting increased equity and interest rate derivatives rev-
enues due to increased customer activity.

THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES INC.
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Investment banking revenues increased 7.9% to $833.5 mitlion in fiscal
2002 from $772.1 million in fiscal 2001. Investment banking net rev-
enues include underwriting, merchant banking and advisory services
revenues. Merchant banking revenues were $238.3 million in fiscal 2002,
including the gain on Aeropostale, Inc. of $226.9 million, up from $77.4
million in fiscal 2001. Without the merchant banking gain for
Aeropostale, Inc., investment banking revenues decreased 21.4% to
$606.6 million in fiscal 2002. Underwriting revenues increased 7.3% to
$405.1 million in fiscal 2002 from $377.6 million in fiscal 2001, reflecting
increased new issue activity. Advisory services revenues decreased 40.1%
to $190.1 million from $317.1 million in fiscal 2001 as the level of
completed mergers and acquisitions activity continued to decline.

Net interest revenues, interest and dividend revenue less interest
expense, was $469.6 million in fiscal 2002, a 13.9% decline from $545.3
million for fiscal 2001. The decrease in net interest revenues was prima-
rily attributable to lower levels of customer margin debt from prime
brokerage clients. Difficult equity market conditions experienced
throughout fiscal 2002 continued to cause professional investors to
employ generally lower levels of leverage. Average margin debit balances
fell 13.2% to $34.1 billion in fiscal 2002 from $39.3 billion in fiscal 2001.

Fiscal 2001 versus Fiscal 2000 Net revenues decreased 10.4% to
$4.9 billion in fiscal 2001 from $5.5 billion in fiscal 2000. The decrease in
net revenues reflects a decrease in net interest revenues, investment
banking revenues and commissions. Lower levels of customer margin
debt balances from professional and retail investors in fiscal 2001
resulted in reduced net interest revenues. In addition, challenging
economic conditions and weakness in the US equity markets resulted
in reduced revenue levels from the Company's equity underwriting
and mergers and acquisitions activities.

Commission revenues decreased 7.5% to $1.1 billion in fiscal 2007 from
$1.2 billion in fiscal 2000. Clearance and retail commissions declined a
combined 21.4% to $556.6 million in fiscal 2001 from $708.5 million in
fiscal 2000. Difficult equity market conditions significantly reduced retail
and fully disclosed clearance customer activity. Partially offsetting the
decline in clearance and retail commissions was an increase in both
institutional and futures commissions.

Revenues from principal transactions in fiscal 2001 increased 2.6% to
$2.3 billion from $2.2 billion in fiscal 2000, reflecting increases in

revenues from the Company's fixed income activities, particularly in the
mortgage-backed securities and distressed debt areas. These increases
reflected a favorable interest rate environment and increased customer
demand. The increase in revenues derived from fixed income activities
was offset by a decrease in revenues derived from equity activities,
particularly the risk arbitrage and over-the-counter market-making areas.
In addition, derivatives revenues declined, reflecting reduced equity
derivatives revenues due to less favorable market conditions and reduced
customer activity.

Investment banking revenues decreased 24.4% to $772.1 million from
$1.0 billion in fiscal 2000. Industry-wide weakness in equity underwriting
and completed mergers and acquisitions led to the decline. Underwriting
revenues decreased 5.4% to $377.6 million from $399.0 million in fiscal
2000, reflecting industry-wide weakness in new issue volume. Advisory
services revenues decreased to $317.1 million, or 38.4% from $515.0
million in fiscal 2000.

Net interest revenues decreased 37.3% to $545.3 million in fiscal 2001,
from $870.1 million in fiscal 2000. The decrease in net interest revenues
was primarily attributable to lower levels of margin debt financing
employed by both prime brokerage and fully disclosed clearance clients.
As a result of difficult equity market conditions, clients employed
significantly lower levels of leverage in their portfolios. Average margin
debt balances declined 30.3% to $39.3 billion in fiscal 2001 from
$56.4 billion in fiscal 2000.

Non-Interest Expenses

2002 2001 2000
{in thousands}
Employee compensation

and benefits $2,508,197 $2,528,852 $2,788,638
Floor brokerage, exchange

and clearance fees 197,266 161,363 158,940
Communications and

technology 382,857 453,261 449,681
Occupancy 152,523 146,620 134,596
Advertising and market

development 102,984 126,669 125,153
Professional fees 132,927 175,249 190,871
Other expenses 340,519 380,577 456,266
Total non-interest expenses $3,817,273 $3,972,591 $4,304,155

THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES INC.
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Fiscai 2002 versus Fiscat 2001 Employee compensation and benefits
for fiscal 2002 were $2.51 billion, down 0.8% when compared with
$2.53 billion in fiscal 2001. Employee compensation and benefits as a
percentage of net revenues was 48.9% for fiscal 2002, compared with
51.5% for fiscal 2001. Excluding the effect of the merchant banking
gain related to the Company's investment in Aeropostale, [nc., compen-
sation as a percentage of net revenues was 50.9% for the fiscal year
ended November 30, 2002. The decline in compensation as a percent-
age of net revenues was principally attributable to the full-year-effect
of workforce reductions compteted over the course of fiscal 2001. Full-
time employees increased slightly to 10,574 at November 30, 2002
from 10,452 at November 30, 2001.

Non-compensation expenses were $1.31 billion for fiscal 2002, a
decrease of 9.3% from $1.44 billion in fiscal 2001. Non-compensation
expenses excluding the merchant banking gain were $1.29 billion, a
decrease of 10.9% from fiscal 2001. Non-compensation expenses as a
percentage of net revenues for fiscal 2002 declined to 25.5%, compared
with 29.4% in fiscal 2001, Excluding the merchant banking gain, non-
compensation expenses as a percentage of net revenues was 26.3% for
fiscal 2002. The decrease in non-compensation expenses was primarily
due to decreases in communications and technology costs, severance-
related costs and professional fees, reflecting expense control measures
taken during fiscal 2001 and continuing in fiscal 2002, as further
described below.

The decline in communications and technology costs was attributable to
the Company's relocation of its corporate headquarters to 383 Madison
Avenue during fiscal 2001 and a significant reduction in the use of infor-
mation technology consultants. Professional fees decreased as a result of
decreases in employment agency fees and consulting fees not related to
information technology. Other expenses also decreased due to decreases
in litigation expenses and severance-related costs, partially offset by an
increase in the Capital Accumulation Plan for Senior Managing Directors,
as amended ("CAP Plan”) expenses. Severance-related costs during fiscal
2002 totaled $25.6 million, compared with $84.2 million during fiscal
2001.These decreases were partially offset by an increase in floor broker-
age, exchange and clearance fees, which increased 22.2% to $197.3
million from $161.4 million for fiscal 2001. These fees resulted from
increased trading volume in futures and options and the use of electronic
platforms. Expenses for the CAP Plan were $154.0 million for fiscal 2002,
a $31.0 million increase from $123.0 million in fiscal 2007, reflecting the

higher level of earnings in fiscal 2002 as compared with fiscal 2001. The
expense control measures enabled the Company to achieve a pre-tax
profit margin of 25.6% for fiscal 2002. Excluding the merchant banking
gain, the pre-tax profit margin was 22.9% for fiscal 2002, compared with
19.0% for fiscal 2001.

The Company’s effective tax rate was 33.0% in fiscal 2002 and 2001.

Fiscel 2001 varsus Fiscal 2000 Employee compensation and benefits in
fiscal 2001 decreased 9.3% to $2.5 billion from $2.8 billion in fiscat 2000.
The decrease was attributable to a decrease in incentive and discre-
tionary bonuses associated with a decrease in net revenues, a decrease in
the number of employees and a decrease in sales commissions in fiscal
2001. Employee compensation and benefits as a percentage of net rev-
enues increased to 51.5% in fiscal 2001 from 50.9% in fiscal 2000. The
generally weak operating environment experienced by many of the
Company's business areas adversely affected compensation as a percent-
age of net revenues during fiscal 2001. Included in compensation for
fiscal 2001 is approximately $67 million in salaries and benefits related
to employees who were terminated during the year. Full-time employees
decreased to 10,452 at November 30, 2001 from 11,201 at November
30, 2000.

in fiscal 2001, the Company launched a firmwide effort to reduce operat-
ing expenses and increase efficiency. During that year, the Company
reduced its workforce by approximately 1,300 people. Non-compensa-
tion expense savings were achieved in telecommunications, consulting
and professional fees and in occupancy costs related to relocation to the
Company's new headquarters.

Non-compensation expenses for fiscal 2001 were $1.4 billion, a 4.7%
decrease from $1.5 billion in fiscal 2000. Fiscal 2001 expenses included
severance costs of $84.2 million and approximately $50.0 million of non-
recurring accelerated amortization costs of technology equipment and
leasehold improvements, and expenses incurred in connection with the
Company'’s relocation to its new headquarters. During fiscal 2000,
expenses included an after-tax litigation charge of $96.0 million ($150 mil-
lion pre-tax recorded in "Other Expenses” in the Consolidated Statements
of Income). Expenses for the CAP Plan in fiscal 20071 were $123.0 million,
down from $140.0 million in fiscal 2000, due to a lower level of earnings.
Professional fees decreased to $175.2 million from $190.9 million, prima-
rily due to a decrease in employment agency fees in fiscal 2001.
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The Company's effective tax rate decreased to 33.0% in fiscal 2001,
compared with 34.0% in fiscal 2000, primarily due to higher relative lev-
els of tax preference items.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The remainder of "Results of Operations” is presented on a business seg-
ment basis. The Company's three business segments — Capital Markets,
Clobal Clearing Services and Wealth Management — are analyzed sepa-
rately due to the distinct nature of the products they provide and the
clients they serve. Certain Capital Markets products are distributed by the
Wealth Management and Global Clearing Services distribution networks,
with the related revenues of such intersegment services allocated to the
respective segments. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior
year amounts in the Capital Markets segment to conform to the current
year's presentation, including reclassification of certain revenues from
institutional equities to investment banking.

The following segment operating results exclude certain unallocated rev-
enues (predominantly interest) as well as certain corporate
administrative functions, such as certain legal costs and costs related to
the CAP Plan,

Capital Markets
2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)
Net revenues
Institutional equities $1,117,762 $1,131,124 $1,417,592
Fixed income 1,938,045 1.602,034 1,092,568
Investment banking 883,717 752,473 1,000,079
Total net revenues $3,939,524 $3,485,631 $3,510,239
Pre-tax income $1,343,912 S 867,166 $ 899,101

The Capital Markets segment comprises the institutional equities, fixed
income and investment banking areas. The Capital Markets segment
operates as a single integrated unit that provides the sales, trading and
origination effort for various fixed income, equity and advisory products
and services. Each of the three businesses works in tandem to deliver
these services to institutional and corporate clients.

Institutional equities consists of sales, trading and research in areas such
as institutional domestic and international equity sales, block trading,
convertible bonds, over-the-counter equities, equity derivatives, risk and

convertible arbitrage and NYSE, American Stock Exchange, Inc. and
International Securities Exchange specialist activities. Fixed income
includes sales, trading and research for institutional clients in a variety of
products such as mortgage- and asset-backed securities, corporate and
government bonds, municipal and high yield products, foreign exchange
and fixed income derivatives. Investment banking provides services in
capital raising, strategic advice, mergers and acquisitions and merchant
banking. Capital raising encompasses the Company's underwriting of
equity, investment-grade and high yield debt products.

Fiscal 2002 versus Fiscal 2001 Net revenues for Capital Markets were
$3.9 billion in fiscal 2002, an increase of 13.0% from $3.5 billion in fiscal
2001. Expenses decreased in fiscal 2002 from fiscal 2001 largely due to
expense reductions realized from the Company's margin improvement
program. Pre-tax income for Capital Markets was $1.3 billion in fiscal
2002, an increase of 55.0% from $867.2 million in fiscal 2001. Without
the gain on the merchant banking transaction, net revenues for Capital
Markets were $3.7 billion, an increase of 6.5% from fiscal 2001. Similarly,
pre-tax income for Capital Markets was $1.2 billion, an increase of 33.2%
from fiscal 2001.

institutional equities net revenues for fiscal 2002 decreased 1.2% to
$1.12 billion from $1.13 billion in fiscal 2001, primarily reflecting lower
revenues from the risk and convertible arbitrage areas. Risk arbitrage rev-
enues continued to be adversely affected by lower levels of announced
mergers and acquisitions activity, which consequently provided fewer risk
arbitrage opportunities. Declining volatility and widening credit spreads
served to negatively affect convertible arbitrage activity during fiscal
2002.These results were partially offset by improved results in the equity
derivatives and convertible securities areas, which benefited from
increased customer activity and improved market conditions. Despite
challenging market conditions, institutional equities sales revenues were
unchanged as compared with fiscal 2001, reflecting increased market
share in both listed and over-the-counter securities.

Fixed income net revenues increased to $1.9 billion in fiscal 2002, an
increase of 21.0% from $1.6 billion in fiscal 2001. The low level of short-
term interest rates and a steep yield curve resulted in increased levels of
activity and net revenues, particularly in the mortgage- and asset-backed
securities, distressed debt and government bonds areas, as well as inter-
est rate derivatives. The mortgage- and asset-backed area had record net
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revenues in fiscal 2002, reflecting favorable market conditions that
served to increase secondary trading activity and resulted in strong new
issue volume.

Investment banking net revenues in fiscal 2002 increased 17.4% to
$883.7 million from $752.5 million in fiscal 2001. The fiscal 2002 results
include realized and unrealized gains of $226.9 million in an investment
in Aeropostale, Inc. Excluding the merchant banking gain, net revenues for
fiscal 2002 were $656.8 million, down 12.7% from fiscal 2001.
Investment banking net revenues include those for underwriting, mer-
chant banking and advisory services. Underwriting revenues increased
18.3% to $488.6 million in fiscal 2002 from $412.9 million in fiscal 2001,
reflecting higher levels of municipal and equity underwriting activity.
Merchant banking revenues increased to $238.3 million in fiscal 2002,
including the gain from Aeropostale, Inc., as compared with $77.4 million
in fiscal 2001. However, advisory services revenues decreased to $156.8
million, or 40.2%, from $262.2 million in fiscal 2001 as the level of com-
pleted mergers and acquisitions activity continued to decline in the
unfavorable market environment.

Fisza. 2CC7 versus Fiscal 2020 Net revenues for Capital Markets were
$3.49 billion in fiscal 2001, a decrease of 0.7% compared with $3.51 bil-
lion in fiscal 2000. Pre-tax income for Capital Markets was $867.2 million
in fiscal 2001, down 3.6% from $899.1 million in fiscal 2000.

Institutional equities net revenues for fiscal 2001 decreased 20.2% to
$1.7 billion from $1.4 billion in fiscal 2000. A general downturn in the
global equities market resulted in lower levels of customer activity and
reduced revenues derived from equity derivatives, risk arbitrage and over-
the-counter market-making areas.

Fixed income net revenues in fiscal 2001 increased $509.5 million or
46.6%, from $1.1 billion in fiscal 2000. The Fed eased policy in fiscal
2001, including 10 interest rate cuts totaling 450 basis points, which con-
tributed to the strength in the Company’s fixed income businesses.
Increased levels of mortgage-backed securities, new issue volume and
strong secondary customer activity contributed to record revenues from
the Company's mortgage-backed securities area.

Investment banking net revenues in fiscal 2001 decreased 24.8% to
$752.5 million from $1.0 billion in fiscal 2000. Underwriting revenues
decreased 11.1% to $412.9 million from $464.6 million in fiscal 2000,

reflecting industry-wide weakness in equity new issue volume. Advisory
services revenues decreased to $262.2 million, or 38.7%, from $427.5
million in fiscal 2000. The level of announced US mergers and acquisi-
tions activity declined significantly in fiscal 2001. The decrease in equity
underwriting and advisory service revenues was partially offset by an
increase in high grade, high yield and municipal underwriting revenues.
Merchant banking revenues were $77.4 million and $108.0 million for
fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2000, respectively.

Global Clearing Services

2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)
Net revenues $778,087 $810,601 $1,074,498
Pre-tax income $265,327 $249,754 $ 466,217

The Global Clearing Services segment provides execution, clearing, mar-
gin lending and securities borrowing to facilitate customer short sales to
clearing clients worldwide. Prime brokerage clients include hedge funds
and clients of money managers, short sellers, arbitrageurs and other pro-
fessional investors. Fully disclosed clients engage in either the retail or
institutional brokerage business. At November 30, 2002, the Company
held approximately $164 billion in assets in Global Clearing Services
client accounts.

Fiscal 2002 versus Fiscel 2007 Net revenues for Global Clearing Services
decreased 4.0% to $778.1 million in fiscal 2002, from $810.6 million in
fiscal 2001. Lower prime brokerage and fully disclosed commissions were
primarily responsible for the decline in net revenues. Average margin bal-
ances declined 13.2% to $34.1 billion in fiscal 2002 from $39.3 billion in
fiscal 2001. Difficult equity market conditions characterized by unstable

: share prices produced fewer investment opportunities and resulted in

lower leverage levels used by prime brokerage and fully disclosed cus-
tomers, Expenses decreased in fiscal 2002 from fiscal 2001, largely due to
expense reductions realized from reduced technology, research and
administrative costs. As a result, pre-tax income for Global Clearing
Services was $265.3 million in fiscal 2002, an increase of 6.2% from
$249.8 million for fiscal 2001. Pre-tax profit margin was 34.1% for fiscal
2002 as compared with 30.8% for fiscal 2007.

Tiscal 2087 versus Fiscal 2088 Net revenues for Global Clearing
Services were $810.6 million in fiscal 2001, down 24.6% from $1.1
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billion in fiscal 2000. The decrease in net revenues was principally due to
reduced net interest revenues attributable to significantly lower levels of
customer margin debt balances and customer short balances. Difficult
equity market conditions characterized by unstable share prices pro-
duced fewer investment opportunities and resulted in hedge fund
clients deleveraging.

Average margin debt balances were $39.3 billion during fiscal 2001,
compared with $56.4 billion during fiscal 2000. Margin debt balances
totaled $34.3 billion at November 30, 2001, compared with $41.9 bil-
tion at November 30, 2000. Average customer short balances were
$56.9 billion during fiscal 2001, compared with $64.5 billion during fis-
cal 2000 and totaled $55.0 billion at November 30, 2001, down from
$57.2 billion at November 30, 2000. Pre-tax income for Global Clearing
Services was $249.8 million in fiscal 2001, down 46.4% from $466.2
million for fiscal 2000.

Wealth Management
2002 2001 2000
(in thousands)
Net revenues $498,411 $543,495 $683,791
Pre-tax income $ 11,616 $ 40,314 $127,856

The Wealth Management segment is composed of the Private Client
Services ("PCS") and asset management areas. PCS provides high-net-
worth individuals with an institutional level of investment service,
including access to the Company's resources and professionals. PCS
maintains approximately 500 account executives in its principal office
and six regional offices. Asset management manages equity, fixed income
and alternative assets for leading corporate pension plans, public sys-
tems, endowments, foundations, multi-employer plans, insurance
companies, corporations, families and high net-worth individuals in the
US and abread.

Fisca: 2002 versus Fiscal 2007 Net revenues for Wealth Management
were $498.4 million in fiscal 2002, a decrease of 8.3% from $543.5 mil-
lion for fiscal 2001. PCS revenues decreased 8.3% to $344.7 million in
fiscal 2002, from $376.0 million in fiscal 2001, due to a reduction in retail
trading volume resulting from uncertain economic conditions and lower
customer margin debt balances as individual investors continued to
retreat from the equity markets. Asset management revenues decreased

8.3% to $153.7 million in fiscal 2002, from $167.5 million in fiscal 2001,
due to lower levels of performance-based fees from proprietary hedge
funds. These results were partially offset by increased management fees
from mutual funds and wrap accotints. Pre-tax income for Wealth
Management was $11.6 million in fiscal 2002, a decrease of 71.2% from
$40.3 million for fiscal 2001.

Assets under management were $24.0 billion at November 30, 2002,
reflecting a 0.8% decrease from $24.2 billion in assets under manage-
ment at November 30, 2001. The decrease in assets under management
reflected declines in market value, substantially offset by inflows in sepa-
rate accounts.

Fiscal 2081 versus Fisczl 20CC Net revenues for Wealth Management
were $543.5 million in fiscal 2001, down 20.5% from $683.8 million for
fiscal 2000. The decrease was attributable to a reduction in retail trading
volume as a result of uncertain economic conditions and volatile equity
markets. Asset management revenues increased, reflecting higher levels
of management fees for the Company's mutual fund and alternative
investment products, partially offset by reduced performance fees
from alternative investment products. Pre-tax income for Wealth
Management was $40.3 million in fiscal 2001, down 68.5% from
$127.9 million for fiscal 2000.

The asset management area had $24.2 billion in assets under manage-
ment at November 30, 2001, which reflected a 24.1% increase over
$19.5 billion in assets under management at November 30, 2000. Strong
net inflows and performances from certain investments in the funds led
to the growth in assets under management. Assets from alternative
investment products grew sharply, up 37.8% to $6.2 billion under man-
agement at November 30, 2001, from $4.5 billion at November 30,
2000. Additionally, mutual funds under management rose 43.9% to $5.9
billion at November 30, 2001, from $4.1 billion at November 30, 2000.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

FINANCIAL LEVERAGE

The Company maintains a highly liquid balance sheet, with the vast
majority of the Company's assets consisting of cash, marketable securi-
ties inventories and collateralized receivables arising from
customer-related and proprietary securities transactions. Collateralized
receivables consist of resale agreements secured predominantly by
US government and agency securities, customer margin loans and secu-
rities borrowed, which are typically secured by marketable corporate
debt and equity securities. The nature of the Company’s business as a
securities dealer requires it to carry significant tevels of securities inven-
tories to meet its customer and proprietary trading needs. Additionally,
the Company's role as a financial intermediary for customer activities,
which it conducts on a principal basis, together with its customer-
related activities in its clearance business, results in significant levels of
customer-related balances, including customer margin debt, securities
borrowing and repurchase activity. The Company's total assets and
financial leverage can fluctuate, depending largely on economic and
market conditions, volume of activity and customer demand. The
Company's total assets at November 30, 2002 decreased to $184.9 bil-
lion from $185.5 billion at November 30, 2001. The decrease was
primarily attributable to a decrease in securities purchased under agree-
ments to resell, substantially offset by an increase in financial
instruments owned.

The Company's total capital base, which consists of long-term debt,
preferred equity issued by subsidiaries and total stockholders’ equity,
increased to $30.6 billion at November 30, 2002 from $29.8 billion
at November 30, 2001. This change was primarily due to an increase in
equity growth from operations and a net increase in long-term debt,
partially offset by the redemption of $200.0 million in preferred securi-
ties issued by Bear Stearns Capital Trust }, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, and the partial redemption and retirement of the
Company's Preferred Stock, Series £, F and G.

The amount of long-term debt, as well as total capital, that the
Company maintains is driven by its asset composition. The Company’s
ability to support increases in total assets is a function of its ability to

obtain short-term secured and unsecured funding, as well as its access |

to longer-term sources of capital (i.e., long-term debt and equity). The
Company regularly measures and monitors its total capital require-
ments, which are primarily a function of the self-funding ability of its
assets. The equity portion of total capital is primarily a function of on-
and off-balance-sheet risks (i.e., market, credit and tiquidity) and regula-
tory capital requirements. As such, the liquidity and risk characteristics
of assets being held are the primary determinants of both total capital
and the equity portion thereof, thus significantly influencing the
amount of leverage that the Company can employ.

Given the nature of the Company's market-making and customer-
financing activity, the overall size of the balance sheet fluctuates from
time to time. The Company’s total assets at quarter end are frequently
lower than would be observed on an average basis. At quarter end, the
Company typically uses excess cash to finance high-quality, highly liquid
securities inventory that otherwise would be funded via the repurchase
agreement market. In addition, the Company reduces its matched book
repurchase and reverse repurchase activities at quarter end. Finally, the
Company may reduce the aggregate level of inventories through ordi-
nary course, open market activities in the most liquid portions of the
batance sheet, which are principally US government and agency securi-
ties and agency mortgage pass-through securities. At November 30,
2002, total assets of $184.9 billion were approximately 13.3% lower
than the average of the month-end balances observed over the trailing
12-month period. Despite reduced total assets at quarter end, the
Company's overall market, credit and liquidity risk profile is not changed
materially, since the reduction in asset balances is typically in highly lig-
uid, short-term instruments that are financed on a secured basis. This
periodic reduction verifies the inherently liquid nature of the balance
sheet and provides consistency with respect to creditor constituents’
evaluation of the Company’s financial condition.

The following table presents total assets, adjusted assets and net
adjusted assets with the resultant leverage ratios at November 30, 2002
and November 30, 2001. With respect to a comparative measure of
financial risk and capital adequacy, the Company believes that the low-
risk coltateralized nature of its resale and securities borrowed assets
renders net adjusted leverage as the most relevant measure.
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2002 2001

{in billions, except ratios)

Total assets $184.9 $185.5
Adjusted assets(7) $142.7 $140.7
Net adjusted assets(?) $ 89.6 $ 888
Leverage ratiof3) 26.6 290
Adjusted leverage ratio(4) 20.5 22.0
Net adjusted leverage ratio(*) 12.9 13.9

(1) Adjusted assets is Total assets less securities purchased under agreements to resell and securities received as
collateral.

(2) Net adjusted assets is Adjusted assets less securities borrowed.

(3) teverage ratio equals Total assets divided by stockholders' equity and preferred stock issued by subsidiaries.

(4) Adjusted leverage ratio equals Adjusted assets divided by stockholders’ equity and preferred stock issued by
subsidiaries.

(5) Net adjusted leverage ratio equals Net adjusted assets divided by stockholders' equity and preferred stock
issued by subsidiaries.

FUNDING STRATEGY

The Company's general funding strategy seeks to ensure liquidity and
diversity of funding sources to meet the Company's financing needs at all
times and in all market environments. The Company attempts to finance
its balance sheet by maximizing, where economically competitive, its use
of secured funding. Short-term sources of cash consist principally of col-
lateralized borrowings, including repurchase transactions, sell/buy
arrangements, securities lending arrangements and customer free credit
balances. In addition, with respect to short-term, unsecured financing,
the Company's emphasis on diversification by product, geography, matu-
rity and instrument results in prudent, moderate usage of more
credit-sensitive, potentially less stable funding. Short-term unsecured
funding includes commercial paper, medium-term notes and bank bor-
rowings, which generally have maturities ranging from overnight to one
year. Due to the collateralized nature of the borrowing, the Company
views its secured funding as inherently less credit sensitive and therefore
a more stable source of funding. The Company seeks to prudently man-
age its reliance on short-term unsecured borrowings by maintaining an
adequate total capital base and extensive use of secured funding.

In addition to short-term funding sources, the Company utilizes equity
and long-term debt, including floating- and fixed-rate and medium-
term notes as longer-term sources of unsecured financing. The firm
regularly monitors and analyzes the size, composition and liquidity
characteristics of its asset base in the context of each asset’s ability to
be used to obtain secured financing. This analysis results in a determina-
tion of the Company's aggregate need for longer-term funding sources
(ie. long-term debt and equity). The Company views long-term debt as

a stable source of funding which effectively strengthens its overall lig-
uidity profile.

The Company maintains an alternative funding strategy focused on the
liquidity and self-funding ability of the underlying assets. The objective is
to maintain sufficient cash capital (i.e., equity plus long-term debt matur-
ing in more than 12 months) and funding sources to enable the Company
to refinance short-term, unsecured borrowings with fully secured borrow-
ings. The Company prepares an analysis that focuses on a 12-month time
period and assumes that the Company does not liquidate assets and can-
not issue any new unsecured debt, including commercial paper. Within
this context, the Company monitors its cash position and the borrowing
value of unencumbered, unhypothecated marketable securities in relation
to its unsecured debt maturing over the next 12 months, striving to main-
tain the ratio of liquidity sources to maturing debt at 100% or greater.
Within this analytical framework, the Company also endeavors to main-
tain cash capital in excess of that portion of its assets that cannot be
funded on a secured basis. These two measures, liquidity ratio and net
cash capital, are complementary and constitute the core elements of the
Company's alternative funding models and, consequently, its approach to
funding and liquidity risk management.

In addition, the Company monitors the maturity profile of its unsecured
debt to minimize refinancing risk, maintains relationships with a broad
global base of debt investors and bank creditors, establishes and adheres
to strict short-term debt investor concentration limits, and periedically
tests its secured and unsecured committed credit facilities. The
Company also maintains available sources of short-term funding that
exceed actual utilization, thus allowing it to endure changes in investor
appetite and credit capacity to hold the Company's debt obligations.

The Company has a committed revolving credit facility (“Facility”) total-
ing $3.030 billion, which permits borrowing on a secured basis by Bear
Stearns, Bear, Stearns Securities Corp. ("BSSC") and certain other sub-
sidiaries. The Facility also provides that The Bear Stearns Companies Inc.
may borrow up to $1.515 billion of the Facility on an unsecured basis.
Secured borrowings can be collateralized by both investment-grade and
non-investment-grade financial instruments as the Facility provides for
defined margin levels on a wide range of financial instruments eligible to
be pledged. The Facility contains financial covenants which require,
among other things, maintenance of specified levels of stockholders’
equity of the Company and net capital of BSSC. The Company renewed
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the Facility in February 2003 with substantially the same terms. There
were no borrowings outstanding under the Facility at November 30,
2002.

The Company has a $1.25 billion committed revolving securities repo
facility (“Repo Facility”), which permits borrowings secured by a broad
range of collateral, under a repurchase arrangement, by Bear, Stearns
International Limited ("BSIL"), Bear Stearns Internaticnal Trading
Limited (“BSIT") and Bear Stearns Bank plc ("BSB”). The Repo Facility
contains financial covenants that require, among other things, mainte-
nance of specified levels of stockholders’ equity of the Company. The
Repo Facility terminates in August 2003, with all repos outstanding at
that date payable no later than August 2004. There were no borrowings
outstanding under the Repo Facility at November 30, 2002.

The Company has a $500 million committed funding facility (“Funding
Facility”) with a third-party lender, which permits secured borrowings to
finance a portfolio of primarily non-investment-grade loans. The
Funding Facility terminates in March 2003, with all amounts outstand-
ing at that date payable no later than March 2007. The Company
expects to renew the Funding Facility on its expiration in March 2003. At
November 30, 2002, the amount outstanding under this Funding Facility
was $171.5 million.

At November 30, 2002, the Company had a $400 million committed
revolving credit facility ("Credit Facility”), which permits borrowing on a

contains financial covenants that require, among other things, mainte-
nance of specified levels of stockholders’ equity of the Company and net
| capital of BSSC. In December 2002, the Company renewed the Credit
Facility at a $300 million committed level with substantially the same
terms. The Credit Facility, as renewed, terminates in December 2003
with all loans outstanding at that date payable no later than December

November 30, 2002.

CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company conducts a substantial portion of its operating activities
within its regulated subsidiaries Bear Stearns, BSSC, BSIL, BSIT and BSB.
In connection therewith, a substantial portion of the Company's tong-
term borrowings and equity has been used to fund investments in, and
advances to, these regulated subsidiaries, including subordinated debt
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secured basis collateralized by Japanese securities. The Credit Facility |

2004. There were no borrowings outstanding under the Credit Facility at !

advances. The Company regularly monitors the nature and significance
of assets or activities conducted outside the regulated subsidiaries and
attempts to fund such assets with either capital or borrowings having
maturities consistent with the nature and self-funding ability of the
assets being financed.

Long-term debt totaling $18.8 billion and $19.7 billion had remaining
maturities beyond one year at November 30, 2002 and November 30,
2007, respectively. The Company’s access to external sources of financ-
ing, as well as the cost of that financing, is dependent on various factors
and could be adversely affected by a deterioration of the Company’s
operating performance and/or the Company’s long- and short-term
debt ratings.

At November 30, 2002, the Company's long-term/short-term debt rat-
ings were as follows:

Rating
Dominion Bond Rating Service Limited(7) A/R-1 (middle)
Fitch(2) A+/F1+
Moody's Investors Service(3) A2/P-1
Standard & Poor's(4) AIA-1
Rating & Investment Information, Inc. A+/nr

nr —does not assign a short-term rating

{1) On November 20, 2002, Dominion Bond Rating Service Limited canfirmed the above credit ratings with
“stable” trends.

(2) On fuly 6, 2001, Fitch revised the outlook for the Company's long-term debt ratings from “stable” to "neg-
ative,” while simultaneously affirming the Company’s credit ratings.

(3) On February 6, 2003, Moody'’s Investors Service revised the outlook on the Company's long-term debt
ratings from "stable” to "positive, "while simultaneously affirming the Company's credit ratings.

(4) On October 5, 2000, Standard & Poor’s revised the outlook for the Company's long-term debt ratings from
“stable”to "negative, " while simultaneously affirming the Company’s credit ratings.

STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM

The Company has various employee stock compensation plans designed
to increase the emphasis on stock-based incentive compensation and
align the compensation of its key employees with the long-term inter-
ests of stockholders. Such plans provide for annual grants of stock units
and stock options. The Company intends to offset the potentially dilu-
tive impact of the annual grants by purchasing common stock
throughout the year in open market and private transactions. On
January 8, 2002, the Board of Directors of the Company approved an
amendment to the Stock Repurchase Program (“Repurchase Program”)
to replenish the previous authorizations to atlow the Company to pur-
chase up to $1.2 billion of common stock in fiscal 2002 or beyond.
During the fiscal year ended November 30, 2002, the Company pur-
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chased under the current and prior authorizations a total of 10,430,940
shares at a cost of approximately $627.5 million. Approximately
$576.7 million was available to be purchased under the current authori-
zation as of November 30, 2002. On January 8, 2003, the Board of
Directors of the Company approved an amendment to the Repurchase
Program to replenish the previous authorization to allow the Company
to purchase up to $1.0 billion of common stock in fiscal 2003 or beyond.

CASHFLOWS

7iscel 2002 Cash and cash equivalents decreased $1.8 billion to $5.5 bil-
lion at November 30, 2002 from $7.3 billion at November 30, 2001.
Cash used in operating activities was $1.4 billion, primarily attributable
to a decrease in securities sold under agreements to repurchase and an
increase in financial instruments owned, partially offset by decreases in
securities purchased under agreements to resell, cash and securities
deposited with clearing organizations or segregated in compliance with
federal regulations and receivables from brokers, dealers and others.
Cash used in financing activities of $474.0 million primarily reflected
payments for the retirement of long-term borrowings and payments for
treasury stock purchases, partially offset by net proceeds from the
issuance of long- and short-term borrowings. Cash provided by investing
activities of $29.8 million reflected proceeds from net sales of invest-
ment securities and other assets, partially offset by purchases of
property, equipment and leasehold improvements.

Fisca: 28C7% Cash and cash equivalents increased $5.0 billion to $7.3 bil-
lion at November 30, 2001 from $2.3 billion at November 30, 2000.
Cash pravided by operating activities was $7.1 billion, primarily attribut-
able to a decrease in securities borrowed, increases in customer payables
and financial instruments sold, but not yet purchased, partially offset by
increases in securities purchased under agreements to resell, cash and
securities deposited with clearing organizations or segregated in compli-
ance with federal regulations, and financial instruments owned. Cash
used in financing activities of $1.5 billion primarily reflected payments
for the retirements of long-term borrowings and net payments of short-
term borrowings, partially offset by net proceeds from issuances of
long-term borrowings. Cash used in investing activities of $510.3 million
reflected a business acquisition (see Note 17, "Business Acquisition,” in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements), purchases of property,
equipment and leasehold improvements, as well as net purchases of
investment securities and other assets.

Fiscal 2003 Cash and cash equivalents increased $749.5 million to
$2.3 billion at November 30, 2000 from $1.6 billion at November 26,
1999. Cash used in operating activities was $6.3 billion, primarily attrib-
utable to increases in financial instruments owned and cash and
securities deposited with clearing organizations, partially offset by an
increase in customer payables. Cash provided by financing activities of
$7.2 billion reflected increased net borrowings to support the
Company’s operational growth while taking advantage of favorable
long-term financing opportunities. Cash used in investing activities of
$230.4 million reflected purchases of property, equipment and lease-
hold improvements, as well as net purchases of investment securities
and other assets.

REGULATED SUBSIDIARIES

As registered broker-dealers, Bear Stearns and BSSC are subject to the
net capital requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, the NYSE and the Commodity Futures Trading Commission,
which are designed to measure the general financial soundness and lig-
uidity of broker-dealers. BSIL and BSIT, London-based broker-dealer
subsidiaries, are subject to the regulatory capital requirements of the
Financial Services Authority. Additionally, BSB is subject to the regula-
tory capital requirements of the Central Bank of Ireland. At November
30, 2002, Bear Stearns, BSSC, BSIL, BSIT and BSB were in compliance
with their respective regulatory capital requirements.

The Company’s broker-dealer subsidiaries are subject to certain restric-
tions on the payment of dividends, which could limit the Company's
ability to withdraw capital from such regulated subsidiaries, which in
turn could limit the Company’s ability to pay dividends. See Note 7,
“Regulatory Requirements,” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

MERCHANT BANKING INVESTMENTS

At November 30, 2002, the Company held investments in 20 leveraged
transactions with an aggregate recorded value of approximately $163.2
million, reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
in "Other Assets.” Sixteen transactions are private principal investments
aggregating $35.2 million at November 30, 2002. Four transactions are
principal investments in public entities, aggregating $128.0 million at
November 30, 2002, whereby the Company may have large concen-
trated holdings, which are valued at a discount to the quoted market
value due to concentrations and/or restrictions on sale. Included in these
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public principal investments is the Company’s holding in Aeropostale,
inc. At November 30, 2002, the Company retains an ownership interest
of approximately 10.3 million shares in Aeropostale, Inc., representing
approximately 29.2% of its outstanding common shares. Also in con-
nection with the Company's merchant banking activities, the Company
has investments in private equity-related investment funds aggregating
$172.7 million at November 30, 2002. In addition to the various direct
and indirect principal investments, the Company has made commit-
ments to participate in private investment funds that invest in leveraged
transactions (see the summary table under “Commitments").

HIGH YIELD PGSITIONS

As part of the Company's fixed income activities, it participates in the
underwriting, securitization and trading of non-investment-grade debt
securities, non-performing mortgage-related assets, non-investment-
grade commercial and leveraged loans, and securities of companies that
are the subject of pending bankruptcy proceedings (collectively, “high
yield positions”). Also included in high yield positions is a portfolio of
Chapter 13 and other credit card receivables from individuals.
Non-investment-grade debt securities have been defined as non-invest-
ment-grade corporate debt, asset securitization positions and emerging
market debt rated BB+ or lower or equivalent ratings recognized by
credit rating agencies. At November 30, 2002 and November 30, 2001,
the Company held high yield positions approximating $3.6 billion and
$3.0 billion, respectively, substantially all of which are in “Financial
Instruments Owned” in the Consolidated Statements of Financial
Condition, and $561.4 million and $700.7 million, respectively, reflected
in “Financial Instruments Sold, But Not Yet Purchased” in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. Included in these
amounts is a portfolio of non-performing mortgage-related assets as
well as a portfolio of Chapter 13 and other credit card receivables aggre-
gating $1.2 billion and $1.1 billion at November 30, 2002 and
November 30, 2001, respectively.

Also included in the high yield positions are extensions of credit to
highly leveraged companies. At November 30, 2002 and November 30,
2001, the amount outstanding to highly leveraged borrowers totaled
$574.6 million (gross position of $591.6 million less $17.0 million of

associated hedges) and $413.1 million, respectively. The largest industry
concentration was to the telecommunications industry, which approxi-
mated 18.0% and 26.7% of these high yield positions at November 30,
2002 and November 30, 2001, respectively. Additionally, the Company
has lending commitments with these non-investment-grade borrowers
(see the summary table under “Commitments”). The Company also has
exposure to non-investment-grade counterparties through its trading-
related derivative activities. These amounts, net of collateral, were
$192.0 million and $55.0 million at November 30, 2002 and November
30, 2001, respectively.

The Company's Risk Management Department and senior trading man-
agers monitor exposure to market and credit risk for high yield positions
and establish limits for overall market exposure and concentrations of
risk by individual issuer. High yield positions generally involve greater
risk than investment-grade debt securities due to credit considerations,
liquidity of secondary trading markets and increased vulnerability to
changes in general economic conditions. The level of the Company's
high yield positions, and the impact of such activities on the Company’s
results of operations, can fluctuate from period to period as a result of
customer demand and economic and market considerations.

SPECIALIST ACTIVITIES

At the close of business on April 20, 2001, the Company, through a joint
venture, completed an acquisition of the assets (including specialist
rights) and the assumption of certain liabilities of Wagner Stott
Mercator. The Company participates, together with its joint venture
partner, in specialist activities on the NYSE, AMEX and International
Securities Exchange, through a limited liability company in which the
Company has just tess than a 50% profit and loss interest. For fiscal
2002 and 2001, net revenues from these specialist activities are
reflected in "Principal Transactions” revenues in the Consolidated
Statements of Income. The combination was accounted for under the
purchase method of accounting for business combinations. The pur-
chase price resulted in recordation of tangible and identifiable intangible
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair val-
ues as of the effective date of the combination.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

|
\
\ The Company’s contractual obligations, excluding derivative financial instruments, as of November 30, 2002:

Payments Due by Period

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2003 2004-2005 2006—2007 Thereafter Total
(in mitlions)
Long-term borrowings(’) $4,889 $8,378 $5,763 $4,651 $23,681
Future minimum lease payments(2)(3) 55 97 79 106 337
Guaranteed indebtedness of a non-consolidated lessor(3)(4) 570 570

(1) Amounts include fair value adjustments in accordance with SFAS No. 133. See Note 5, “Long-Term Borrowings,” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) Includes 383 Madison Avenue in New York City.
(3) See Note 15, "Commitments and Contingencies,” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

financial Statements.

COMMITMENTS
The Company’s commitments as of November 30, 2002:

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

(4) There was no deficiency as the fair value of the property was in excess of the lessor’s debt obligation at November 30, 2002. See 383 Madison Avenue in Note 15, “Commitments and Contingencies,” in the Notes to Consolidated

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2003 2004-2005 2006-2007 Thereafter Total
{in millions)
© Commercial loan commitments:(7)(2)
i Investment-grade $1,396 $ 30 $461 $ - $1,887
! Non-investment-grade 300 112 245 211 868
Commitments to invest in private equity-related investments
and partnerships(2)(3) 669
Underwriting commitments(2) 1,346 1,346
Letters of credit(2) 2,774 15 53 1 2,843
Other commercial commitments(2)(4) 548 99 695

(1) Commitments are shown gross of associated hedges of $695 million for investment-grade borrowers.
(2) See Note 15, "Commitments and Contingencies,” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

ods, primarily ending in 2071.
(4) Includes certain commitments with no stated maturity.
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instrumrients are contractual commitments between
counterparties that derive their values from changes in an underlying
interest rate, currency exchange rate, index (e.g., S&P 500), reference
rate (e.g., LIBOR), or asset value referenced in the related contract. Some
derivatives, such as futures contracts, certain options and index-refer-
enced warrants, can be traded on an exchange. Other derivatives, such
as interest rate and currency swaps, caps, floors, collars, swaptions,
equity swaps and options, structured notes and forward contracts, are
negotiated in the over-the-counter markets. Derivatives generate both
on- and off-balance-sheet risks depending on the nature of the contract.

The Company is a dealer in over-the-counter derivatives and, accord-
ingly, enters into transactions involving derivative instruments as part of
its customer-related and proprietary trading activities. The Company's
dealer activities require it to make markets and trade a variety of deriva-
tive instruments. In connection with these activities, the Company
attempts to mitigate its exposure to market risk by entering into hedg-
ing transactions that may include over-the-counter derivative contracts
or the purchase or sale of interest-bearing securities, equity securities,
financial futures and forward contracts. The Company also utilizes deriv-
ative instruments to hedge proprietary market-making and trading
activities. In this regard, the utilization of derivative instruments is
designed to reduce or mitigate market risks associated with holding
dealer inventories or in connection with arbitrage-related trading activi-
ties. The Company also utilizes interest rate and currency swaps, futures
contracts and US treasury positions to hedge its debt issuances as part
of its asset and liability management.

In connection with the Company's dealer activities, the Company
formed Bear Stearns Financial Products Inc. (“BSFP") and its wholly
owned subsidiary, Bear Stearns Trading Risk Management Inc.
("BSTRM"). BSFP is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. BSFP
and BSTRM were established to provide clients with a AAA-rated
counterparty that offers a wide range of global derivative products. BSFP
is structured so that if a specified trigger event (including certain credit
rating downgrades of the Company) occurs, BSFP will perform on all of
its contracts to their original maturities with the assistance of an inde-

pendent derivatives portfolio manager who would assume the active
management of BSFP's portfolio (“Continuation Structure”). BSTRM is
structured so that, on the occurrence of a specified trigger event, it will
cash-settle all outstanding derivative contracts in a predetermined
manner ("Termination Structure”). Clients can use either structure. The
AAA/Aaa ratings that BSFP and BSTRM have received are based on the
ability to meet their respective obligations without any additional capi-
tal from the Company. In the unlikely occurrence of a trigger event, the
Company does not expect any significant incremental impact on the lig-
uidity or financial condition of the Company. At November 30, 2002,
the potential cash settlement payable by BSTRM on the occurrence of a
trigger event was less than $20 million.

To measure derivative activity, notional or contract amounts are fre-
quently used. Notional/contract amounts are used to calculate
contractual cash flows to be exchanged and are generally not actually
paid or received, with the exception of currency swaps, foreign exchange
forwards and mortgage-backed securities forwards. The notional/con-
tract amounts of financial instruments that give rise to
off-balance-sheet market risk are indicative only to the extent of
involvement in the particular class of financial instrument and are not
necessarily an indication of overall market risk.

As of November 30, 2002 and November 30, 2001, the Company had
notional/contract amounts of approximately $1.6 trillion and $1.1 tril-
lion, respectively, of derivative financial instruments, of which
$421.1 billion and $285.4 billion, respectively, were listed futures and
option contracts. The aggregate notional/contract value of derivative
contracts is a reflection of the level of activity and does not represent the
amounts that are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Financial
Condition. The Company'’s derivative financial instruments outstanding,
which either are used to hedge trading positions, fixed-rate debt, or are
part of its derivative dealer activities, are marked to fair value.

The Company'’s derivatives have a weighted average maturity of approx-
imately 3.9 years and 3.8 years at November 30, 2002 and November
30, 2001, respectively.
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The maturities of notional/contract amounts outstanding for derivative financial instruments as of November 30, 2002 were as follows:

Less Than One to Three Three to Five Greater Than

One Year Years Years Five Years Total
(in billions)
Swap agreements, including options, swaptions, caps, collars and floors $216.4 $261.6 $237.5 $3315 $1,047.0
Futures contracts 151.0 526 31.2 43 239.1
Forward contracts 62.8 62.8
Options held 98.8 288 03 1279
Options written 60.6 13.0 0.3 73.9
Total $589.6 $356.0 $269.3 $335.8 $1,550.7
Percent of total 38.0% 23.0% 17.3% 21.7% 100.0%
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NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

in October 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF") issued guid-
ance on Issue No. 02-3, "Issues Involved in Accounting for Derivative
Contracts Held for Trading Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy
Trading and Risk Management Activities.” This guidance would gener-
ally eliminate the practice of recognizing profit at the inception of a
derivative contract unless the fair value of the derivative is obtained
from a quoted market price in an active market.or is otherwise evi-
denced by comparison to other observable current market
transactions or based on a valuation technique that incorporates
observable market data. The guidance was effective for contracts
entered into subsequent to November 22, 2002 and did not materially
impact the consolidated financial statements. The effect in future
financial statements is not currently estimable.

in November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB”)
issued FASB Interpretation ("FIN") No. 45, “Guarantors Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees
of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN No. 45 requires a guarantor to recog-
nize, at the inception of the guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the
obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. It also provides
additional guidance on the disclosure of guarantees. The recognition and
measurement provisions are effective for guarantees made or modified
after December 31, 2002. The disclosure provisions are effective for
fiscal periods ending after December 15, 2002. The Company will adopt
FIN No. 45 as required in fiscal 2003 and does not expect a material
impact on the consclidated financial statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” which amends SFAS
No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” SFAS No. 148 pro-
vides three atternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to fair
value accounting for stock-based compensation as permitted under SFAS
No. 123. It also requires prominent disclosures about the method of
accounting for stock-based compensation and its effect on reported
results. The three alternatives are: 1) the prospective method in which fair
value expense would be recognized for all awards granted in the year of
adoption, but not previous awards, 2) the modified prospective method in
which fair value expense would be recognized for the unvested portion of
all prior stock options granted and those granted in the year of adoption,
and 3) the retroactive restatement method, which is similar to the
modified prospective method, except that all prior periods are restated. The

Company will adopt fair value accounting for stock-based compensation
in fiscal 2003 using the prospective method provided by SFAS No. 148, As
a result, the Company will begin to expense the fair value of stock options
issued to employees over the related vesting period, starting with stock
options granted after November 30, 2002.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities — an Interpretation of ARB No. 51." FIN No.
46 provides guidance on the consolidation of certain entities in which
equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling
financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to
finance its activities without additional subordinated financial
support. Such entities are referred to as variable interest entities ("VIEs").
FIN No. 46 requires the primary beneficiary of a VIE to consolidate the
entity. For existing entities, FIN No. 46 is effective for fiscal periods
beginning after June 15, 2003. For new entities, FIN No. 46 was
effective after January 31, 2003. The Company will adopt FIN No. 46
as required in fiscal 2003 and is currently evaluating its impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

The transition provisions of FIN No. 46 require certain disclosures in
financial statements issued after January 31, 2003. Although the
Company is still evaluating the impact of FIN No. 46, it is reasonably
possible that FIN No. 46 will require consolidation of, or additional
disclosures related to, the entities described below.

The Company acts as portfolio manager in several collateralized debt
obligation transactions. In these transactions, the Company establishes a
trust that purchases a portfolio of assets and issues trust certificates that
represent interests in the portfolio of assets. In addition to receiving
variable compensation for managing the portfolio, the Company also may
retain certain trust certificates. The assets in these trusts at November 30,
2002 approximated $1.3 billion. The Company’s maximum exposure to
loss as a result of its relationship with these trusts is approximately $11.9
million, which represents the fair value of its interests.

The Company owns subordinated interests in several entities related to
collateralized debt obligation transactions in which it does not act as
portfolic manager. It may own these interests as a result of its
underwriting activities or by direct proprietary investment. These entities
are likely to qualify as VIEs. At November 30, 2002, the total assets of
those entities in which the Company owned significant variable interests
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approximates $1.6 billion. As owners of significant variable interests, the
Company may be required to make additional disclosures related to these
entities, but will not be required to consolidate them. The Company’s
maximum exposure to loss related to these entities is approximately
$14.5 million, which represents the fair value of its interests at November
30, 2002.

The Company has entered into a lease arrangement for its world head-
quarters at 383 Madison Avenue with an entity that may be a VIE. The
Company makes periodic LIBOR-based payments to this entity and
guarantees a portion of the value of the building to the creditors of
the entity. As a result of its involvement with this entity, the
Company’s maximum exposure to loss is $570 million, which
represents the guarantee to the entity's creditors. The entity’s sole
asset is the building, which was completed in 2002 at a cost of
approximatety $670 million.

In 1997, the Company established a program whereby it has created a
series of municipal securities trusts in which it has retained interests.
These trusts purchase fixed-rate, long-term, highly rated, insured or
escrowed municipal bonds financed by the issuance of trust certificates.
Certain of the trust certificates entitle the holder to receive future
payments of principal and variable interest and to tender such certifi-
cates at the option of the holder on a periodic basis. The Company acts as
placement agent for the trust certificates and as liquidity provider to the
trust. The purpose of the program is to allow the Company's clients to
purchase synthetic short-term, floating-rate municipal debt that does
not otherwise exist in the marketplace. In the Company’s capacity as
liquidity provider to the trusts, the maximum exposure to loss at
November 30, 2002 was approximately $2.7 billion, which represents the
outstanding amount of all trust certificates. This exposure to loss is
mitigated by the underlying municipal bonds. The underlying municipal
bonds in the trusts are either AAA- or AA-rated, insured or escrowed to

maturity. Such bonds had a market value approximating $2.7 billion at
November 30, 2002.

At November 30, 2002, the Company had an approximate 40% equity
interest in Liquid Funding, Ltd. ("LFL"), a AAA-rated special purpose vehicle
established to participate in the repurchase agreement and total return
swap markets. A subsidiary of the Company acts as investment manager.
The Company accounts for such investment under the equity method of
accounting. At November 30, 2002, the total assets of this entity
approximated $900 million. The Company's maximum exposure to loss
as a result of its investment in this entity is approximately $5.0 million.

The Company regularly creates or transacts with entities that may be
VIEs. These entities are an essential part of its securitization, asset
management and structured finance businesses. In addition, the
Company purchases and sells instruments that may be variable
interests. Given the short period of time from the issuance of FIN No. 46
and its effective date, at this time, the Company cannot definitively
quantify the impact of FIN No. 46.

EFFECTS OF INFLATION

Since the Company's assets are primarily recorded at their current
market value and to a large extent are liquid in nature, they are not
significantly affected by inflation. However, the rate of inflation affects
the Company's expenses, such as employee compensation, office leasing
costs, information technology and communications charges, which may
not be readily recoverable in the price of services offered by the
Company. To the extent that inflation causes interest rates to rise and
has other adverse effects on the securities markets and on the value of
securities held in inventory, it may adversely affect the Company’s
financial position and results of operations.
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THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES INC.
RISK MANAGEMENT

OVERALL

The Company'’s principal business activities engender significant market
and credit risks. In addition, the Company is subject to operational, legal,
funding and other risks. Effective identification, assessment and manage-
ment of these risks are critical to the success and stability of the
Company. As a result, comprehensive risk management procedures have
been established to identify, monitor and control each of these major
risks. The Company's diverse securities industry activities help to reduce
the impact that volatility in any particular market may have on its net
revenues. Funding risk is discussed in Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in the
“Liquidity and Capital Resources” section.

Managing risk at the Company begins with the expertise and experience
of trading department management. Senior managing directors in each
department have extensive knowledge of the specialized products, mar-
kets and activities in which they do business. Their experience and insight
are supplemented by risk management procedures that monitor and
evaluate the Company’s risk profile.

The cornerstone of these procedures is constant communication
between trading department management and senior management
concerning inventory positions and market risk profile. This process cul-
minates each week with the trading departments making formal
reports of positions, profits and losses and certain trading strategies to
Bear Stearns’ Risk Committee. The Risk Committee, which comprises
senior managing directors from each trading department as well as the
Risk Management Department, oversees trading departments and their
trading strategies.

The risk management process encompasses many units independent of
the trading desks, including the Risk Management, Global Credit,
Correspondent Clearing, Controllers, Operations, Compliance and
Financial Analytics & Structured Transactions Departments, and is
intended to support and enforce the Company’s policies and procedures
with a focus on market and credit risk. Those procedures begin with the
Company marking its financial instruments owned to fair value on a daily
basis and producing daily profit and loss statements for senior manage-
ment covering all trading departments.

The Company believes that a clear understanding of how its positions
generate profit or loss on a daily basis is crucial to managing risk. Many of
the independent units are actively involved in ensuring the integrity and
clarity of the daily profit and loss statements. Activities include daily and
monthly price verification procedures, position reconciliation, reviewing
pricing models and reviewing booking of complex transactions.
Furthermore, the Company uses market-based credit pricing to estimate
the appropriate credit reserves associated with certain counterparty
credit exposures.

In addition, trading desk management, senior management and inde-
pendent units also review the age and composition of proprietary
accounts and review risk reports appropriate to the risk profile of each
trading activity. Risk limits are established and monitored, market condi-
tions are evaluated, certain transactions are reviewed in detail, and
quantitative methods such as value-at-risk and stress testing are
employed (see the “Value-at-Risk” section). These activities better ensure
that trading strategies are followed within acceptable risk parameters.

The Risk Management Department is independent of all trading areas
and reports directly to the Executive Committee. The goals of the depart-
ment are to understand the market risk profile of each trading area, to
consolidate risk firmwide, to articulate large trading or position risks to
senior managément, to provide traders with perspectives on their posi-
tions and to better ensure accurate mark-to-market pricing. The
department supplements the communication between trading managers
and senior management by providing its independent perspective on the
Company's market risk profile via a daily risk highlights report that is dis-
tributed to a number of senior managers in the Company.

The Global Credit Department, in conjunction with the Credit Policy
Committee and its subcommittee, the Global Credit Committee, estab-
lishes and reviews appropriate credit limits for customers and dealer
counterparties. The Credit Policy Committee is composed of senior risk,
legal and business managers. The Credit Policy Committee establishes
policies and guidelines and reviews large exposures and other items
brought to its attention. The Global Credit Committee meets weekly or
more often as necessary to set credit limits and to monitor the exposure
of customers that enter into repurchase and resale agreement facilities,
stock borrowing or loan facilities, derivative financial instruments and
other products that may give rise to secured and unsecured credit.
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The following discussion of the Company's risk management procedures
for its principal risks and the estimated amounts of the Company’s mar-
ket risk exposure generated by the Company's statistical analyses
contains forward-looking statements. The analyses used to assess such

risks are not predictions of future events, and actual results may vary sig-
nificantly from such analyses due to events in the markets in which the
Company operates and certain other factors as described herein.

MARKET RISK

Market risk generally represents the risk of loss that may result from the
potential change in the value of a financial instrument as a result of fluc-
tuations in interest and currency exchange rates, equity and futures
prices, changes in the implied volatility of interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, equity and futures prices, and price deterioration or
changes in value due to changes in market perception or actual credit
quality of either the issuer or its country of origin. Market risk can be
exacerbated in times of illiquidity where market participants refrain
from transacting in normal quantities and/or at normal bid-offer
spreads. Market risk is inherent to both cash and derivative financial
instruments and, accordingly, the scope of the Company’s market risk
management procedures includes all market risk-sensitive financial
instruments. The Company's exposure to market risk is directly related
to its role as a financial intermediary in customer trading transactions
and to its proprietary trading, investment and arbitrage activities.

The Company makes dealer markets in investment-grade corporate
debt, non-investment-grade corporate (“high yield") debt, US govern-
ment securities, sovereign debt, emerging markets debt obligations,
mortgages and mortgage-backed securities, other collateralized securi-
ties and municipal bonds. The Company is also an active market maker
and conducts block trading activities in both listed and over-the-counter
equity markets. In connection with these activities, the Company may
be required to maintain significant inventories to ensure availability and
to facilitate customer order flow. The Company is also engaged as a
dealer in both listed and over-the-counter derivatives and, accordingly,
enters into transactions such as interest rate and cross-currency swaps,
over-the-counter swaps and options on interest rates and foreign cur-
rencies, various credit default swaps and equity swaps and options, all as
part of its customer and proprietary trading activities. In connection
with these activities, the Company attempts to mitigate its exposure to
market risk by entering into hedging transactions, which may include
listed and over-the-counter derivative contracts or the purchase or sale
of securities, financial futures and options on futures or forward con-
tracts. Additionally, the Company has a significant investment in a

limited liability company that is involved in specialist activities. Stock
exchange rules require that specialists maintain an orderly market,
including purchasing shares in a declining market, which may result in
trading losses.

The Company’s arbitrage activities are designed to take advantage of
market price discrepancies in securities trading in different markets,
between related products or derivative instruments. Arbitrage activities
involve maintaining offsetting positions in other financial instruments.
In many instances, the Company may be required to purchase or sell
derivative financial instruments as part of the arbitrage of a cash market
security. These transactions may involve forward-settling transactions
such as forwards or futures, where the objective may be to capture dif-
ferences in the time value of money, or options transactions, which seek
to capture differences between the expected and actual volatility of the
underlying instrument. The Company attempts to mitigate market risk
in these activities by entering into hedging transactions.

Following is a discussion of the Company's primary market risk expo-
sures as of November 30, 2002 and November 30, 2001, including a
discussion of how those exposures are currently managed.

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is a consequence of maintaining market-making and
proprietary inventory positions and trading in interest rate-sensitive
financial instruments. In connection with the Company's dealer
and arbitrage activities, including market making in over-the-counter
derivative contracts, the Company exposes itself to interest rate risk
arising from changes in the level or volatility of interest rates, mortgage
prepayment speeds or the level and shape of the yield curve. The
Company's fixed income activities also expose it to the risk of loss
related to changes in credit spreads on debt instruments. Credit spread
risk arises from the potential that changes in an issuer’s credit rating or
credit perception could affect the value of financial instruments. Credit
risk resulting from default on counterparty obligations is discussed in
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the Credit Risk section. The Company attempts to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk primarily through the use of interest rate swaps,
options, Eurodollar and US government securities, and futures and for-
ward contracts designed to reduce the Company'’s risk profile. Credit
spread risk is hedged through the use of credit derivatives such as credit
default swaps, as well as offsetting long or short positions in various
related securities.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE RISK

Foreign exchange rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in for-
eign exchange rates will affect the value of financial instruments. When
the Company buys or sells a foreign currency or a financial instrument
denominated in a currency other than US dollars, exposure exists from a
net open currency position. Until the position is covered by selling or
buying the equivalent amount of the same currency or by entering into
a financing arrangement denominated in the same currency, the
Company is exposed to a risk that the exchange rate may move against
it. The Company attempts to hedge the risk arising from its foreign
exchange activities primarily through the use of currency borrowing,
swaps, options, forwards and futures.

EQUITY PRICE RISK

The Company is exposed to equity price risk through making markets in
equity securities and equity derivatives as well as specialist activities.
Equity price risk results from changes in the level or volatility of equity
prices, which affect the value of equity securities or instruments that
derive their value from a particular stock, a basket of stocks or a stock
index. The Company attempts to reduce the risk of loss inherent in its
inventory of equity securities by entering into hedging transactions,
including equity options and futures, designed to mitigate the
Company's market risk profile.

VALUE-AT-RISK

An estimation of potential losses that could arise from changes in market
conditions is typically accomplished through the use of a statistical
model, known as value-at-risk (“VaR"), that seeks to predict risk of loss
based on historical and/or market-implied price and volatility patterns.
VaR estimates the probability of the value of a financial instrument rising
above or falling below a specified amount. The calculation uses the stan-
dard deviation of historical changes in value (i.e, volatility) of the market
risk-sensitive financial instruments to estimate the amount of change in
the current value that could occur at a specified probability level.

The Company has performed an entity-wide VaR analysis of the
Company'’s financial assets and liabilities, including financial instru-
ments owned and sold, repurchase and resale agreements, and funding
assets and liabilities. The Company regularly evaluates and enhances
such VaR models in an effort to more accurately measure risk of loss.
Certain equity-method investments, leveraged lending activities and
non-publicly traded investments are not reflected in the VaR results. The
VaR related to non-trading financial instruments has been included in
this analysis and is not reported separately because the amounts are not
material. The calculation is based on a methodology that uses a one-day
interval and a 95% confidence level. Interest rate and foreign exchange
rate risk use a “Monte Carlo” value-at-risk approach. Monte Carlo simu-
lation involves the generation of price movements in a portfolio using a
random number generator. The generation of random numbers is based
on the statistical properties of the securities in the portfolio. For interest
rates, each country’s yield curve has five factors that describe possible
curve movements, where appropriate. These were generated from prin-
cipal component analysis. In addition, volatility and spread risk factors as
well as intercountry correlations were used, where appropriate.

Equity price risk was measured using a combination of historical and
Monte Carlo approaches. Equity and equity derivatives risk were treated
as correlated with various domestic and international indices, of which
the Company used approximately 50 at November 30, 2002 and
November 30, 2001. Parameter estimates, such as volatilities and corre-
lations, were based on daily tests through November 30, 2002.

VaR has inherent limitations, including reliance on historical data, which
may not accurately predict future market risk, and the quantitative risk
information generated is limited by the parameters established in creat-
ing the models. There can be no assurance that actual losses occurring
on any one day arising from changes in market conditions will not
exceed the VaR amounts shown below or that such losses will not occur
more than once in 20 days. However, the Company believes VaR models
are an appropriate methodology for comparison of risk profiles across
companies in the financial services industry.
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The aggregate VaR presented below is less than the sum of the individual
components {i.e., interest rate risk, foreign exchange rate risk, equity
risk} due to the benefit of diversification among the risks. The following
table illustrates the VaR for each component of market risk as of
November 30, 2002 and 2001. Commodity risk has been excluded due
to immateriality at November 30, 2002 and 2001.

2002 2001
(in mitlions)
MARKET RISK
Interest rate $17.8 $12.6
Currency 0.6 1.1
Equity 34 53
Diversification benefit (3.7) (5.3)
Aggregate VaR $18.1 $13.7

The table below illustrates the high, low and average (calculated on a
monthly basis) VaR for each component of market risk and aggregate
market risk during fiscal 2002:

High Low Average
(in millions)
MARKET RISK
Interest rate $22.7 $ 97 $16.0
Currency 15 0.4 0.9
Equity 53 2.8 40
Aggregate VaR 229 10.7 16.5

As previously discussed, the Company utilizes a wide variety of market
risk management methods, including trading limits; marking all posi-
tions to market on a daily basis; daily profit and loss statements;
position reports; daily risk highlight reports; aged inventory position
reports; and independent verification of inventory pricing. Additionally,
management of each trading department reports positions, profits and
losses and notable trading strategies to the Risk Committee on a weekly
basis. The Company believes that these procedures, which stress timely
communication between traders, trading department management and
senior management, are the most important elements of the risk man-
agement process.

Stress testing (also referred to as scenario analysis) measures the risk
of loss over a variety of extreme market conditions that are defined in
advance. Stress testing is a key methodology used in the management
of market risk as well as counterparty credit risk (see “Credit Risk”
below). Stress tests are calculated at the firmwide tevel, for particular
trading books, for particular customer accounts and for particular indi-
vidual positions. Stress tests are performed on a regular basis as well
as on an ad hoc basis, as deemed appropriate. The ongoing evaluation
process of trading risks as well as the consideration of new trading
positions commonly incorperates an ad hoc discussion of “what-if"
stressed market conditions and their impact on profitability. This
analysis varies in its degree of formality based on the judgment of
trading department management, risk management and senior man-
agers. While the Company recognizes that no methodology can
perfectly predict future market conditions, it believes that these tools
are an important supplement to the Company's risk management
process. The Company expects to continue to develop and refine its
formal stress testing methodologies.

The following charts represent a summary of the daily principal trans-
actions revenues and reflect a combination of trading revenues, net
interest revenues for certain trading areas and other revenues for the fis-
cal year ended November 30, 2002 and the fiscal year ended
November 30, 2001, respectively. These charts represent a historical
summary of the results generated by the Company's trading activities as
opposed to the probability approach used by the VaR model. The average
daily trading profit was $10.1 million and $9.1 million for the fiscal years
ended November 30, 2002 and November 30, 2001, respectively. Daily
trading losses exceeded the reported average VaR amounts less than 1%
of the total trading days during the fiscal years ended November 30,
2002 and 2001. The frequency distribution of the Company’s daily net
trading revenues reflects the Company’s historical ability to manage its
exposure to market risk and the diversified nature of its trading activi-
ties. No guarantee can be given regarding future net trading revenues or
future earnings volatility. The Company believes that these results are
indicative of its commitment to the management of market trading risk.
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DISTRIBUTION OF DAILY NET TRADING REVENUES

FISCAL YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2002
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CREDIT RISK

Credit risk arises from potential non-performance by counterparties, cus-
tomers, borrowers, or debt security issuers. The Company is exposed to
credit risk as trading counterparty to dealers and customers, as direct
lender, as holder of securities and as member of exchanges and clearing
organizations. The Company has established policies and procedures to
manage credit risk.

The Credit Policy Committee delegates credit approval authority to the
Global Credit Committee, approves exposure measurement standards,
reviews concentrations of credit risk, sets documentation and credit sup-
port standards and considers new or unusual credit-related transactions.
The Global Credit Committee, which includes several members of the
Credit Policy Committee, implements policy through its review and
approval of counterparty credit limits. The Company'’s Principal Activities
Committee, consisting of senior investment banking, capital markets,
credit and risk management professionals, reviews and approves loan
underwriting proposals. Certain leveraged loan commitments, as well as
large or unusual credit extensions, are referred for approval to the
Company's Executive Committee. Dedicated professionals in several
departments contribute to the administration of the Company's credit
policies and procedures. The responsible groups include Global Credit,
Operations and Administration (Margin), Correspondent Clearing (Prime
Brokerage), Risk Management and Investment Bénking.

The Global Credit Department monitors and controls extensions of
credit to counterparties of the Company. The department’s profession-
als assess the creditworthiness of the Company's counterparties and
assign or recommend credit limits and requirements. In addition, credit
and quantitative analysts assess the quality and acceptability of collat-
eral, measure potential credit exposure associated with certain
transactions, monitor compliance with credit limits, obtain appropriate
legal documentation and provide comprehensive credit risk reporting
for senior management.

Credit analysts and managers are based in Company offices in New York,
San Francisco, London, Dublin and Hong Kong and specialize by industry
within the US and otherwise by country or region. Each analyst provides
rating and limit recommendations to senior credit officers who either
take action or refer recommendations to the Global Credit Committee or
the Credit Policy Committee. All counterparties are assigned internal

credit ratings reflecting the Global Credit Department’s quantitative and
qualitative assessment of the counterparty’s relative probability of
default. The internal rating process may include review of audited finan-
cial statements, review of opinions of major statistical rating agencies,
assessment of industry or sovereign factors, review of market develop-
ments, meetings with management and analysis of the risk of
transactions with the counterparty.

The Company measures its actual credit exposure (the replacement cost
of counterparty contracts) on a daily basis. Master netting agreements,
collateral and credit insurance are used to mitigate counterparty credit
risk. The credit exposures reflect these risk-reducing features to the
extent they are legally enforceable. The Company's net replacement cost
of derivative contracts in a gain position at November 30, 2002 and
November 30, 2001 approximated $4.2 billion and $2.9 billion, respec-
tively. These amounts are net of counterparty credit reserves, which are
estimated by applying counterparty-specific market-based credit spreads
to the expected exposure of derivatives and foreign exchange transac-
tions, after giving effect to collateral. Exchange-traded financial
instruments, which typically are guaranteed by a highly rated clearing
organization, have margin requirements that substantially mitigate risk
of credit loss.

The Company establishes potential exposure limits across a variety of
financing and trading products for all counterparties on a group and indi-
vidual entity basis. Potential exposure is the statistically estimated net
credit exposure associated with adverse market moves over the life of
transactions at a 97.7% confidence interval. For over-the-counter deriva-
tive and foreign exchange contracts, the potential exposure is estimated
daily using sophisticated, internally developed risk models that employ
Monte Carlo simulations. Potential exposure estimates consider the size
and maturity of contracts; the volatility of, and correlations among, the
underlying assets, indices and currencies; settlement mechanisms; rights
to demand additional collateral; and other legally enforceable credit mit-
igants such as third-party guarantees or insurance. For other
credit-sensitive fixed income products, potential exposure limits are con-
verted to notional amounts using appropriate risk factors.

The Company establishes country concentration limits and monitors
actual and potential exposures, including both position and counterparty
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exposures, in emerging markets. The Sovereign Risk Unit evaluates inter-
national macroeconomic conditions and recommends country
concentration limits. The Company limits and monitors its exposure to
sovereign default, devaluation and inconvertibility of local currencies.

The Margin Department is responsible for evaluating the risk of extending
loans to the Company'’s customers secured by certain marketable securi-
ties. The department evaluates the creditworthiness of the borrower as
well as the acceptability of collateral and actively monitors to ensure
that collateral received meets regulatory and internal requirements.
Internal (or "house”) margin requirements generally exceed minimum
regulatory requirements and may be adjusted for specific securities
based on volatility or liquidity. The Special Credit Services unit of the
Global Credit Department evaluates and sets terms for loans secured by
restricted or control stock, emerging markets securities and concentrated
or less liquid securities.

The Risk Management Department is responsible for monitoring the
market risk of the Company's proprietary positions. As part of its duties,
the group evaluates the credit quality of securities positions held in
inventory to quantify and limit the risk to the Company of issuer default
or changes in credit spreads. In a similar manner, the department also
evaluates the credit quality of reference issuer obligations associated
with derivatives contracts whose values are linked to the credit quality or
credit spread trading level of reference issuers. The department monitors
issuer credit exposures across the various cash and derivative trading
desks that trade in securities or derivatives of the same or related issuers
to monitor aggregate exposures. This process also aggregates counter-
party credit exposures with issuer exposures to produce a more
comprehensive perspective on the Company's exposure to credit risks.

The Risk Department of Global Clearing Services is responsible for
extensions of credit to correspondents (broker-dealers and other profes-
sional investors) and their customers, The department uses sophisticated
computer simulations to project adverse moves in the value of certain
correspondents’ or their customers’ assets held by the Company on an
individual security and portfolio basis.

The Company is subject to concentration risk by holding large positions
or committing to hold large positions in certain types of securities, secu-
rities of a single issuer, including sovereign governments, issuers located
in a particular country or geographic area or engaged in a particular

industry. Positions taken and commitments made by the Company,
including underwriting, often involve substantial amounts and significant
exposure to individual issuers and businesses, including non-investment-
grade issuers. The Company seeks to limit concentration risk through the
use of the systems and procedures described in the preceding discussions
of market and credit risk.

The Company, through BSSC and BSIL, transacts with professional clients,
including floor traders and specialists, arbitrageurs, broker-dealers, hedge
funds and fund of funds groups. These clients employ a wide variety of
trading styles including option hedging, market-neutral statistical arbi-
trage, risk arbitrage and hedged convertible strategies to multiple fixed
income strategies. Trading strategies are employed in both domestic and
international markets. The extension of credit, via margin debt for a given
customer, is determined by the systematic analysis of the securities held
and trading strategy that such customer employs. The Company has
established a risk-based, margin-tending policy under which the minimum
capital requirement may be greater than the applicable regulatory capital
requirement. In other words, customers can only achieve maximum regu-
latory leverage if their portfolios satisfy the internal risk parameters.

Client portfolios are analyzed and evaluated daily through extensive
simulation analysis designed to estimate market-related risk. Using its
internally developed risk management system known as RACS (Risk
Analytic Control System), the Risk Department is able to analyze every pro-
fessional client's portfolio prior to each market open as well as on an
intra-day basis. RACS uses scenario analysis to estimate market risk
through extensive stress testing. Client positions are simulated across more
than 200 different scenarios resulting in a wide variety of potential profit
and loss possibilities. Some basic assumptions used in the analysis are min-
imum portfolio moves of 20% as well as minimum moves in individual
securities of 25% or more. Other scenarios include price movement tests
of 1and 2 standard deviations, fixed percentage moves, beta-weighted and
market-capitalization-driven extreme price moves. Scenarios are con-
structed in such a way as to assess position and portfolio sensitivities to
changes in underlying prices, volatilities, interest rates, credit spreads, cross-
currency rates and forward time horizons. Experienced managers review
the results of the stress testing to determine whether additional margin is
necessary. In addition to client-level security and portfolio analysis, the sys-
tem produces over 40 various reports that provide multi-dimensional
views, which include industry exposures, country/region exposures and
security concentration and liquidity risk.

THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES INC.




page 57
RISK MANAGEMENT

continued

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the potential for loss arising from limitations in the
Company's financial systems and controls, deficiencies in legal docu-
mentation, non-compliance with the execution of legal and fiduciary
responsibilities, deficiencies in technology and the risk of loss attributa-
ble to operational problems. In particular, the Company is an active
participant in over-the-counter markets, including derivative, commer-
cial and residential mortgage loans, leveraged loans and Chapter 13 and
other credit card receivables. The nature of many of these financial
instruments is such that they are valued through the use of models. The
complexities and reduced transparency inherent in financial instruments
valued using models, as compared with exchange-traded prices or other
quoted market valuations, introduce a particular element of operationa[
risk into the Company’s business. These risks are less direct than credit
and market risk, but managing them is critical, particularly in a rapidly
changing environment with increasing regulation and transaction vol-
umes. In an effort to reduce or mitigate these risks, the Company has
established and maintains an internal control environment which incor-
porates various control mechanisms at different levels throughout the
organization and within such departments as Controllers, Operations,
Legal, Compliance and Internal Audit. These control mechanisms are
designed to better ensure that operational policies and procedures are
being followed and that the Company’s various businesses are operating
within established corporate policies and limits.

Management has established and maintains an effective internal controt
structure over financial seporting, the primary goal of which is to ensure
that policies and procedures have been established regarding authoriza-
tion, access to assets and asset accountability. This provides a high degree
of assurance that assets are acquired and safeguarded and that liabilities
are incurred and discharged in accordance with management’s decisions.
In addition, an effective internal control structure ensures that financial
information is accurately maintained in the books and records of the
Company. The Company also has effective risk controls in place to ensure
that operational functions such as transaction initiation, transaction pro-
cessing and settiement/clearance are functioning properly.

The Company has invested heavily in technology over the years to have
the ability to gather and process information efficiently and to handle
the wide variety of products and services the Company offers. In addition,
the Company’s investment in technology allows the Company to com-
municate information efficiently and securely to customers and to
groups within the Company.

The Management and Compensation Committee, together with the
Operations Committee, has oversight responsibilities for operational and
other matters that affect the Company’s day-to-day activities. These
committees also review new products and businesses to ensure that pro-
cedures, policies and safeguards are in place before activities commence.

LEGAL RISK

Legal risk includes the risk of non-compliance with applicable legal and
regulatory requirements and the risk that a counterparty will not per-
form on its obligations due to non-credit-related conditions, including
counterparty legal authority and capacity. The Company is generally
subject to extensive regulation in the various jurisdictions in which it
conducts its business. The Company has established procedures based

on legal and regulatory requirements on a worldwide basis that are
designed to ensure compliance with applicable statutory and regulatory
requirements. The Company has established policies and procedures in
an effort to mitigate the risk that counterparty performance obligations
will be unenforceable.

OTHER RISKS

Other risks encountered by the Company include political, terrorist, reg- | transactions. In an effort to mitigate these risks, the Company seeks to

ulatory and tax risks. These risks reflect the potential impact that
changes in local and international laws, regulatory requirements or tax
statutes have on the economics and viability of current or future

continuously review new and pending regulations and legislation and
participates in various special interest groups.
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THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

REVENUES
Commissions $1,110,974 $1,116,731 $ 1,207,122
Principal transactions 2,537,799 2,282,797 2,225,018
Investment banking 833,480 772,125 1,021,969
Interest and dividends 2,232,159 4,339,298 5,642,361
Other income 176,404 190,082 151,494
Total revenues 6,890,816 8,701,033 10,247,964
Interest expense 1,762,580 3,793,998 4,772,286
Revenues, net of interest expense 5,128,236 4,907,035 5,475,678

NON-INTEREST EXPENSES

Employee compensation and benefits 2,508,197 2,528,852 2,788,638
Floor brokerage, exchange and clearance fees 197,266 161,363 158,940
Communications and technology 382,857 453,261 449,691
Occupancy 152,523 146,620 134,596
Advertising and market development 102,984 126,669 125,153
Professional fees 132,927 175,249 190,871
Other expenses 340,519 380,577 456,266
Total non-interest expenses 3,817,273 3,972,591 4,304,155
Income before provision for income taxes and
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 1,310,963 934,444 1,171,523
; Provision for income taxes 432,618 309,479 398,340
| Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 878,345 624,965 773,183
! Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax - (6,273) -
Net income $ 878,345 $ 618692 $ 773183
Net income applicable to common shares $ 842,739 $ 579,579 $ 734,070
Basic earnings per share $ 7.00 $ 4.49 $ 537
Diluted earnings per share $ 6.47 $ 4.27 $ 5.35
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic 132,798,359 142,643,018 151,437,116
Diluted 146,346,111 152,216,936 152,034,249

See Notes to Consaolidated Financial Statements.
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THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

As of November 30, 2002 2001
(in thousands, except share data)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,520,285 S 7,332,747
Cash and securities deposited with clearing organizations or segregated in compliance with federal regulations 7,100,138 9,287,673
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 36,505,447 41,742,485
Securities received as collateral 5,669,811 3,037,956
Securities borrowed 53,116,267 51,911,092
Receivables:
Customers 18,105,196 17,558,956
Brokers, dealers and others 1,358,377 2,828,081
Interest and dividends 297,980 277,246
Financial instruments owned, at fair value
Pledged as collateral 30,752,090 23,562,448
Not pledged as collateral 22,692,578 24,348,803
Property, equipment and leasehold improvements, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of
$722,690 and $952,014 in 2002 and 2001, respectively 483,827 519,089
Other assets 3,252,427 3,123,652
Total Assets $184,854,423 $185,530,228
LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Short-term barrowings $ 14,409,826 $ 13,658,510
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 44,469,414 50,135,295
Obligation to return securities received as collateral 5,669,811 3,037,956
Payables:
Customers 53,814,105 53,590,217
Brokers, dealers and others 8,550,450 7,879,469
Interest and dividends 515,228 575,645
Financial instruments sold, but not yet purchased, at fair value 24,421,273 24,749,040
Accrued employee compensation and benefits 1,158,699 1,284,397
Other liabilities and accrued expenses 1,219,635 799,624
154,228,441 155,710,147
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)
Long-term borrowings 23,681,399 23,429,054
Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interests in Company Subordinated Debt Securities 562,500 762,500
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock 692,832 800,000
Common stock, $1.00 par value; 500,000,000 shares authorized as of November 30, 2002 and
November 30, 2001; 184,805,848 shares issued as of November 30, 2002 and November 30, 2001 184,806 184,806
Paid-in capital 2,866,290 2,728,981
Retained earnings 3,909,272 3,118,635
Employee stock compensation plans 2,213,979 2,015,375
Unearned compensation {208,588) (230,071)
Treasury stock, at cost —
Adjustable Rate Cumulative Preferred Stock Series A:
2,520,750 shares as of November 30, 2002 and November 30, 2001 (103,421) (103,421}
Common stock: 84,781,479 and 84,763,780 shares as of November 30, 2002 and
November 30, 2001, respectively (3.173,087) (2,885.778)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 6,382,083 5,628,527
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $184,854,423 $185,530,228

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Years Ended November 30,

(in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income $ 878,345 $ 618,692 $ 773183
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash (used in}
provided by operating activities:
Noncash items included in net income:
Depreciation and amortization 161,879 208,822 153,616
Deferred income taxes (24,374) (232,916) (263,693)
Employee stock compensation plans 533,240 355,612 676,920
Other 16,043 16,423 17,559
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Cash and securities deposited with clearing organizations
or segregated in compliance with federal regulations 2,187,535 (5,514,441) (2,584,444)
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 5,237,038 (6,243,253) 500,766
Securities borrowed (1,205,175) 9,848,739 (1,330,534)
Receivables from customers (546,240) (243,724) (476,192)
Receivables from brokers, dealers and others 1,469,704 (2,038,030) (248,013)
Financial instruments owned (5,130,001) (4,424,247) (3,888,357)
Other assets (217,640) 584,722 (1,472,789)
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (5,665,881} {1,552,833) (1,634,987)
Payables to customers 223,888 6,804,906 3,941,554
Payables to brokers, dealers and others 673,646 3,431,849 (1,142,985)
Financial instruments sold, but not yet purchased (327,767) 5,743,264 (699,145)
Accrued employee compensation and benefits (120,267) (191,910) 746,176
Otbher liabilities and accrued expenses 487,722 (105,665) 671,659
Cash (used in) provided by operating activities (1,368,305) 7,066,010 (6,259,700)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from (payments for) short-term borrowings 751,316 (2,973,254) 3,923,988
Net proceeds from issuances of long-term borrowings 5,006,611 6,574,299 8,500,596
Redemption of preferred stock issued by a subsidiary (200,000) - -
Issuance of common stock 26,436 288 -~
Net proceeds from issuance of subsidiary securities - 254,231 ~
Redemption of preferred stock (91,336) - ~
Proceeds from put option premium - ~ 1,065
Payments for retirement of long-term borrowings (5,239,816) (4.250,313) (4,359,932)
Treasury stock purchases-common stock (629,664) (1,048,015) (726,836)
Cash dividends paid (97,544) (100,206) {(99,329)
Cash {used in) provided by financing activities (473,997) (1,542,970) 7,239,552
CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, equipment and leasehold improvements (126,617) (185,298) {192,189)
Business acquisition - (242,983) ~
Purchases of investment securities and other assets (107,502) (101,891) (178,014)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities and other assets 263,959 19,905 139,842
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities 29,840 (510,267) (230,361)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,812,462) 5,012,773 749,491
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 7,332,747 2,319,974 1,570,483
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 5,520,285 $7,332,747 $2,319,974

See Notes to Consalidated Financfal Statements.

Note: Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts to conform to the current year's presentation.

SFAS No. 140and SFAS No. 125, as applicable, require balance sheet recognition for collateral related to certain secured transactions which are non-cash activities and did not have an impact on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
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THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’

Common Stock

Preferred Stock $1 Par Value Paid-In Capital

Employee Stock
Retained Compensation
Earnings Plans

EQUITY

Treasury Stock

Adjustable Rate
Cumulative
Preferved Stock,
Series A-$50
Liquidation
Preference

Unearned

Compensation Common Stock

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

BALANCE, NOVEMBER 26, 1999 $800,000 $184,806  $2,509,801
Net income
Cash dividends dectared -
Common {$0.55 per share)
Preferred
Treasury stock —
Common stock purchased
(16,933,597 shares)
Common stock issued out of treasury
(7,491,085 shares)
Income tax benefit related to distributions
from employee stock compensation plans
Put option premium
Unearned employee stock compensation
Employee stock compensation awards

Amortization of preferred stock issue costs

1,099

72,973
1,065

(1,300)

$1,916,516  $1,179,101

773,183

(60,215)
(29.339)

{158,104)

89571

$ 0 $(103,421) $(1,544,856)

(723,530)

159,585

(218,791)

BALANCE, NOVEMBER 30, 2000 800,000 184,806 2,583,638
Net income
Cash dividends declared -
Common ($0.60 per share)
Preferred
Treasury stock —
Common stock purchased
(19,723,837 shares)
Common stock issued out of treasury
(10,734,551 shares)
income tax benefit related to distributions
from employee stock compensation plans
Unearned employee stock compensation, net
Employee stock compensation awards, net

Amortization of preferred stock issue costs

3,256

143,387

(1,300)

2,600,149
618,692

1,916,708

(61,093)
(39,113)

(268,224)

366,891

(218791} (103,421) (2,108,801)

(1,045,350)

268,373

{11.280)

BALANCE, NOVEMBER 30, 2001 $800,000 $184,806  $2,728,981

$3,118635  $2,015,375

$(230,071)  $(103,421) $(2,885,778)
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Treasury Stock
Adjustable Rate
Cumulative
Preferred Stock,
i Employee Stock Series A-$50
} Common Stock Retained Compensation Unearned Liquidation
Preferred Stock $1 ParValue Paid-In Capital Earnings Plans Compensation Preference Common Stock

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

BALANCE, NOVEMBER 30, 2001 $800,000 $184,806 $2,728,981 $3,118,635 $2,015375 $(230,071)  $(103,421) $(2,885,778)

Net income 878,345 j
. Cash dividends declared - |
| Common {$0.62 per share) (61,144) !
! Preferred (36,400)

Dividend equivalents (5.996)

Treasury stock —

Common stock purchased

‘ (10,490,940 shares) (626,999)
| Common stock issued out of treasury |
| (10,473,241 shares) 11,320 (319,148) 339,690 \

Redemption of preferred stock (107,168) 15,832 ‘

Income tax benefit related to distributions

from employee stock compensation plans 128,128

Unearned employee stock compensation, net 21,483
i Employee stock compensation awards, net 517,752 ‘
| Amortization of preferred stock issue costs (2,139) ‘\
| BALANCE, NOVEMBER 30, 2002 $692,832 $184,806 $2,866,290 $3,909,272 $2,213,979 $(208,588)  $(103,421) $(3,173,087)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Bear
Stearns Companies Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Company”). All material
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in con-
solidation. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform
to the current year'’s presentation.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. These principles require management to make certain esti-
mates and assumptions, including those regarding inventory valuations,
stock compensation, certain accrued liabilities and the potential out-
come of litigation, which may affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual
results could differ materially from these estimates.

The Company, through its principal operating subsidiaries, Bear, Stearns &
Co. Inc. ("Bear Stearns”), Bear, Stearns Securities Corp. {"BSSC"), Bear,
Stearns International Limited ("BSIL") and Bear Stearns Bank plc (*BSB”),
is primarily engaged in business as a securities broker-dealer and operates
in three principal segments: Capital Markets, Global Clearing Services and
Wealth Management. Capital Markets is composed of the institutional
equities, fixed income and investment banking areas. Global Clearing
Services is composed of clearance and commission-related areas which
concentrate on the execution of trades for customers. Wealth
Management is composed of the Private Client Services ("PCS”) and
asset management areas. See Note 16, “Segment and Geographic Area
Data,” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Proprietary securities, futures and other derivatives transactions
are recorded on a trade date basis. Financial instruments owned and finan-
cial instruments sold, but not yet purchased, including contractual
commitments for futures, forward and option contracts, interest rate
swaps and other derivative contracts, are recorded at fair value with the
resulting net unrealized gains and losses reflected in principal transactions.

Fair value is generally based on quoted market prices. If quoted market
prices are not available, or if liquidating the Company’s position is
reasonably expected to affect market prices, fair value is determined
based on other relevant factors, including dealer price quotations, price

activity for equivalent instruments and valuation pricing models.
Valuation pricing models consider time value, yield curve and volatility
factors, prepayment speeds, default rates, loss severity, current market
and contractual prices for the underlying financial instruments, as well
as other economic measurements.

Equity securities acquired as a result of leveraged acquisition trans-
actions are reflected in the consolidated financial statements at their
initial costs until significant transactions or developments indicate that
a change in the carrying value of the securities is appropriate. Generally,
the carrying values of these securities will be increased only in those
instances where market values are readily ascertainable by reference to
substantial transactions occurring in the marketplace or quoted market
prices. Reductions to the carrying value of these securities are made
when the Company’s estimate of net realizable value has declined below
the carrying value.

CUSTOMER TRANSACTIONS

Customer securities transactions are recorded on a settlement date
basis, which is generally three business days after trade date, while the
related commission revenues and expenses are recorded on a trade date
basis. Receivables from and payables to customers include amounts
related to both cash and margin transactions. Securities owned by cus-
tomers, including those that collateralize margin or other similar
transactions, are generally not reflected in the Consolidated Statements
of Financial Condition.

COLLATERALIZED SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

Transactions involving purchases of securities under agreements to
resell {"reverse repurchase agreements”) or sales of securities under
agreements to repurchase ("repurchase agreements”) are treated as col-
lateralized financing transactions and are recorded at their contracted
resale or repurchase amounts plus accrued interest. Resulting interest
income and expense is generally included in “Principal Transactions” rev-
enues in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Reverse repurchase
agreements and repurchase agreements are presented on a net-by-
counterparty basis, where appropriate. It is the Company's general
policy to take possession of securities with @ market value in excess of
the principal amount loaned plus the accrued interest thereon, to collat-
eralize reverse repurchase agreements. Similarly, the Company is
generally required to provide securities to counterparties to collateralize
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repurchase agreements. The Company's agreements with counter-
parties generally contain contractual provisions allowing for additional
collateral to be obtained, or excess collateral returned. It is the
Company's policy to value collateral daily and to obtain additional col-
lateral, or to retrieve excess collateral from counterparties, when
deemed appropriate.

Securities borrowed and securities loaned are recorded based on the
amount of cash collateral advanced or received. Securities borrowed
transactions facilitate the settlement process and require the Company
to deposit cash, {etters of credit or other collateral with the lender. With
respect to securities loaned, the Company receives collateral in the form
of cash or other collateral. The amount of collateral required to be
deposited for securities borrowed, or received for securities loaned, is an
amount generally in excess of the market value of the applicable securi-
ties borrowed or loaned. The Company monitors the market value of
securities borrowed and loaned on a daily basis, with additional collat-
eral obtained, or excess collateral retrieved, when deemed appropriate.

FIXED ASSETS

Depreciation of property and equipment is provided by the Company
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset.
Amortization of leasehold improvements is provided on a straight-line
basis over the lesser of the estimated useful life of the asset or the
remaining life of the lease.

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
year-end rates of exchange, while income statement items are translated
at daily average rates of exchange for the fiscal year. Gains or losses
resulting from foreign currency transactions are included in net income.

INCOME TAXES

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal
income tax return. The Company accounts for income taxes under the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS")
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under SFAS No. 109, deferred
income taxes are based on the net tax effects of temporary differences
between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities. In
addition, deferred income taxes are determined by the enacted tax rates
and laws expected to be in effect when the related temporary differ-
ences are expected to be reversed.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share (“EPS") is computed in accordance with SFAS
No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” Basic EPS is computed by dividing net
income applicable to common shares, adjusted for costs related to
vested shares under the Capital Accumulation Plan for Senior Managing
Directors, as amended (the "CAP Plan"), as well as the effect of the
redemption of preferred stock, by the weighted average number of com-
mon shares outstanding. Common shares outstanding includes vested
units issued under certain employee stock compensation plans, which
will be distributed as shares of common stock. Diluted EPS includes the
determinants of basic EPS and, in addition, gives effect to dilutive poten-
tial common shares related to employee stock compensation plans.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For purposes of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, the Company
has defined cash equivalents as liquid investments not held for sale in the
ordinary course of business with original maturities of three months or
less. Cash payments for interest approximated interest expense for the fis-
cal years ended November 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000. Income taxes paid
totaled $221.5 million, $55.0 million and $985.0 million for the fiscal
years ended November 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” encourages,
but does not require, companies to record compensation cost for stock-
based employee compensation plans at fair value. The Company has
elected to account for its stock-based compensation plans using the
intrinsic vatue method prescribed by Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, “"Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” ("APB No.
25"}, as permitted by SFAS No. 123. Under the provisions of APB No. 25,
compensation cost for stock options is measured as the excess, if any, of
the quoted market price of the Company's common stock at the date of
grant over the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock.
Accordingly, no compensation expense has been recognized for stock
option awards because the exercise price was at the fair market value of
the Company's common stock on the grant dates. Commencing with
stock options granted after November 30, 2002, the Company will begin
to expense the fair value of stock options issued to employees over the
related vesting period. Compensation expense related to restricted stock
units is recognized over the applicable service period.
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INVESTMENT BANKING AND ADVISORY SERVICES

Underwriting revenues and fees for mergers and acquisitions advisory
services are accrued when services for the transactions are substantially
completed. Transaction expenses are deferred until the related revenue
is recognized.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” as amended by SFAS No. 138, "Accounting for Certain
Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities,” establishes
accounting and reporting standards for stand-alone derivative instru-
ments, derivatives embedded within other contracts or securities, and
hedging activities. It requires that all derivatives, whether stand-alone or
embedded within other contracts or securities (except in narrowly defined
circumstances), be carried on the Company’s Consolidated Statement of
Financial Condition at their then fair value, with such changes in fair value
recorded in current earnings. It also requires hedged items not carried at
fair value to be marked (to the extent of the profit or loss on the deriva-
tive) for the risk being hedged, with such changes in the fair value recorded
in current earnings.

TRANSFERS AND SERVICING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
EXTINGUISHMENTS OF LIABILITIES

The Company follows SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities — a
Replacement of FASB Statement No. 125,” to account for securitizations
and other transfers of financial assets and collateral. SFAS No. 140 estab-
lishes accounting and reporting standards with a financial-components
approach that focuses on control. Under this approach, financial assets or
liabilities are recognized when control is established and derecognized
when control has been surrendered or the liability has been extinguished.
In addition, specific implementation guidelines have been established to
further distinguish transfers of financial assets that are sales from transfers
that are secured borrowings.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
In October 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF"} issued guidance
on Issue No. 02-3, “Issues Involved in Accounting for Derivative Contracts

Held for Trading Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and

Risk Management Activities.” This guidance would generally eliminate the
practice of recognizing profit at the inception of a derivative contract
unless the fair value of the derivative is obtained from a quoted market

price in an active market or is otherwise evidenced by comparison to
other observable current market transactions or based on a valuation
technique that incorporates observable market data. The guidance was
effective for contracts entered into subsequent to November 22, 2002
and did not materially affect the consolidated financial statements. The
effect in future financial statements will depend on the nature of deriva-
tive transactions entered into in the future.

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB”)
issued FASB Interpretation ("FIN") No. 45, “Guarantors Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness of Others.” FIN No. 45 requires a guarantor to recognize, at
the inception of the guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obliga-
tion undertaken in issuing the guarantee. It also provides additional
guidance on the disclosure of guarantees. The recognition and measure-
ment provisions are effective for guarantees made or modified after
December 31, 2002. The disclosure provisions are effective for fiscal peri-
ods ending after December 15, 2002. The Company will adopt FIN No. 45
as required in fiscal 2003 and does not expect a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148 “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” which amends SFAS
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” SFAS No. 148 pro-
vides three alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to fair
value accounting for stock-based compensation as permitted under SFAS
No. 123. It also requires prominent disclosures about the method of
accounting for stock-based compensation and its effect on reported
results.The three alternatives are: 1) the prospective method in which fair
value expense would be recognized for all awards granted in the year of
adoption, but not previous awards, 2) the modified prospective method in
which fair value expense would be recognized for the unvested portion of
all prior stock options granted and those granted in the year of adoption,
and 3) the retroactive restatement method which is similar to the modi-
fied prospective method, except that all prior periods are restated. The
Company will adopt fair value accounting for stock-based compensation
in fiscal 2003 using the prospective method provided by SFAS No. 148.As
a result, the Company will begin to expense the fair value of stock
options issued to employees over the related vesting period, starting with
stock options granted after November 30, 2002.

fn January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities — an Interpretation of ARB No. 51.” FIN No. 46 provides
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guidance on the consolidation of certain entities in which equity investors
do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not
have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without
additional subordinated financial support. Such entities are referred to as
variable interest entities ("VIEs”). FIN No, 46 requires the primary benefi-
ciary of a VIE to consolidate the entity. For existing entities, FIN No. 46 is
effective for fiscal periods begirnning after June 15, 2003. For new entities,
FIN No. 46 was effective after January 31, 2003. The Company will adopt
FIN No. 46 as required in fiscal 2003 and is currently evaluating its effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

The transition provisions of FIN No. 46 require certain disclosures in the
financial statements issued after January 31, 2003. Although the
Company is still evaluating the effect of FIN No. 46, it is reasonably pos-
sible that FIN No. 46 will require consolidation of, or additional
disclosures related to, the entities described below.

The Company acts as portfolio manager in several collateralized debt obli-
gation transactions. In these transactions, the Company establishes a trust
that purchases a portfolic of assets and issues trust certificates that repre-
sent interests in the portfolio of assets. In addition to receiving variable
compensation for managing the portfolio, the Company also may retain
certain trust certificates. The assets in these trusts at November 30, 2002
approximated $1.3 billion. The Company’s maximum exposure to loss as a
result of its relationship with these trusts is approximately $11.9 million,
which represents the fair value of its interests.

The Company owns subordinated interests in several entities related to
collateralized debt obligation transactions in which it does not act as
portfolio manager. It may own these interests as a result of its under-
writing activities or by direct proprietary investment. These entities may
qualify as VIEs. At November 30, 2002, the total assets of those entities
in which the Company owned significant variable interests were $1.6
billion. As owners of significant variable interests, the Company may be
required to make additional disclosures related to these entities, but will
not be required to consolidate them. The Company’s maximum expo-
sure to loss related to these entities is approximately $14.5 million,
which represents the fair value of its interests at November 30, 2002.

The Company has entered into a lease arrangement for its world head-
quarters at 383 Madison Avenue with an entity that may be a VIE. The
Company makes periodic LIBOR-based payments to this entity and

guarantees a portion of the value of the building to the creditors of the
entity. As a result of its involvement with this entity, the Company’s
maximum exposure to loss is $570 million, which represents the
guarantee to the entity's creditors. The entity’s sole asset is the building,
which was completed in 2002 at a cost of approximately $670 million.

In 1997, the Company established a program whereby it has created a
series of municipal securities trusts in which it has retained interests.
These trusts purchase fixed-rate, long-term, highly rated, insured or
escrowed municipal bonds financed by the issuance of trust certificates.
Certain of the trust certificates entitle the holder to receive future
payments of principal and variable interest and to tender such certificates
at the option of the holder on a periodic basis. The Company acts as place-
ment agent for the trust certificates and as liquidity provider to the trust.
The purpose of the program is to allow the Company'’s clients to purchase
synthetic short-term, floating-rate municipal debt that does not other-
wise exist in the marketplace. In the Company's capacity as liquidity
provider to the trusts, the maximum exposure to loss at November 30,
2002 was approximately $2.7 billion, which represents the outstanding
amount of all trust certificates. This exposure to loss is mitigated by the
underlying municipal bonds. The underlying municipal bonds in the trusts
are either AAA- or AA-rated, insured or escrowed to maturity. Such bonds
had a market value approximating $2.7 billion at November 30, 2002.

At November 30, 2002, the Company had an approximate 40% equity
interest in Liquid Funding, Ltd. ("LFL"), a AAA-rated special purpose vehicle
established to participate in the repurchase agreement and total return
swap markets. A subsidiary of the Company acts as investment manager.
The Company accounts for such investment under the equity method of
accounting. At November 30, 2002, the total assets of this entity approxi-
mated $900 million. The Company's maximum exposure to loss as a result
of its investment in this entity is approximately $5.0 million.

The Company regularly creates or transacts with entities that may be
VIEs. These entities are an essential part of its securitization, asset
management and structured finance businesses. In addition, the
Company may purchase and sell instruments that may be variable
interests. Given the short period of time from the issuance of FIN No. 46
and its effective date, at this time the Company cannot definitively
quantify the effect of FIN No. 46.
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2 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Substantially all of the Company'’s assets and liabilities are carried at fair
value or contracted amounts that approximate fair value.

Assets that are recorded at contracted amounts approximating fair value
consist largely of short-term secured receivables, including reverse repur-
chase agreements, securities borrowed, customer receivables and certain
other receivables. Similarly, the Company's short-term liabilities such as
bank loans, commercial paper, medium-term notes, repurchase agree-
ments, securities loaned, customer payables and certain other payables
are recorded at contracted amounts approximating fair value. These
instruments generally have variable interest rates and short-term maturi-

ties, in many cases overnight, therefore their fair values are not materially
affected by changes in interest rates.

The estimated fair value of the Company's long-term borrowings, based
on market rates of interest and current foreign exchange rates available to
the Company at November 30, 2002 for debt obligations of similar matu-
rity, approximate carrying value. The Company hedges the economic risks
associated with its long- and short-term debt. The Company generally
enters into interest rate swaps and other transactions designed to either
convert its fixed-rate debt into floating-rate debt or otherwise hedge its
exposure to interest rate movements.

3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments owned and financial instruments sold, but not yet
purchased, consisting of the Company’s proprietary trading inventories,
at fair value, as of November 30, were as follows:

2002 2001

(in thousands)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS OWNED:

US government and agency $ 5754144 S 7,182,008

Other sovereign governments 1,064,850 1,337,042

Corporate equity and convertible debt 7,746,419 6,977,353

Corporate debt and other 7,337,940 9,087,306

Mortgages, mortgage- and asset-backed 20,019,289 16,051,753

Derivative financial instruments 11,522,026 7,275,789
$53,444,668  $47,911,251

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS SOLD,

BUT NOT YET PURCHASED:

US government and agency $ 8,206,597 $12,596,768

Other sovereign governments 1,209,421 1,327,125

Corporate equity 4,935,396 3,279,875

Corporate debt and other 2,213,984 2,532,224

Derivative financial instruments 7,855,875 5,013,048

$24,421,273  $24,743,040

As of November 30, 2002 and 2001, all financial instruments owned
that were pledged to counterparties where the counterparty has the
right, by contract or custom, to rehypothecate these securities are clas-
sified as “Financial Instruments Owned, Pledged as Collateral” in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.

Financial instruments sold, but not yet purchased, represent obligations
of the Company to deliver the specified financial instrument at the
contracted price and thereby create a liability to purchase the financial
instrument in the market at prevailing prices. These transactions result in
off-balance-sheet risk as the Company’s ultimate obligation to purchase
such securities may exceed the amount recognized in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Condition.
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4 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

The Company obtains short-term borrowings, the majority of which are
unsecured, through the issuance of commercial paper, medium-term
notes (“MTNs"} and bank loans. The interest rates on such short-term bor-

rowings reflect market rates of interest at the time of the transactions.

Borrowings made under the Company's commercial paper programs
were $7.3 billion and $5.5 billion at November 30, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. During the fiscal years ended November 30, 2002, 2001
and 2000, the weighted average interest rates on such borrowings were
1.89%, 4.55% and 6.34%, respectively. The weighted-average rates on
commercial paper outstanding at November 30, 2002 and
November 30, 2001 were 1.52% and 2.28%, respectively.

At November 30, 2002 and November 30, 2001, the Company had out-
standing $1.9 billion and $3.2 billion, respectively, in the principal

amount of short-term MTNs. MTNs generally bear interest at variable
rates based on LIBOR. During the fiscal years ended November 30,2002,
2001 and 2000, the weighted average interest rates on MTNs were
2.05%, 4.85% and 6.63%, respectively. The weighted average rates on
MTNSs outstanding at November 30, 2002 and November 30, 20071 were
1.60% and 2.57%, respectively.

Short-term borrowings at November 30, 2002 and November 30, 2001
included $5.2 billion and $5.0 billion, respectively, in bank loans and
other borrowings. During the fiscal years ended November 30, 2002,
2001 and 2000, the weighted average interest rates on such short-term
borrowings were 2.41%, 3.60% and 5.86%, respectively. The weighted
average rates on such short-term borrowings outstanding at November
30, 2002 and November 30, 2001 were 1.96% and 2.54%, respectively.

5 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Long-term borrowings (which have original maturities of at least
12 months) at November 30 consisted of the following:

2002 2001

(in thousands)
Fixed-rate notes due 2003 to 2014:(7)

US-dollar-denominated $ 8,997,716 $ 8,151,168
Floating-rate notes due 2003 to 2007:

US-dollar-denominated 2,807,525 3,368,678

Non-US-dollar-denominated 49,750 44,800
Medium-term notes and other borrowings:(2)

US-dollar-denominated 7,756,837 8,519,451

Non-US-dollar-denominated 4,069,571 3,344,957
Total long-term borrowings $23,681,399 $23,429,054

(1) At Noverber 30, 2002, US-dollar-denominated fixed-rate notes are at interest rates ranging from 5.70%
t08.75%.
(2) Included are various equity-linked or indexed instruments.

The Company has entered into interest rate swaps and other transac-
tions to convert its fixed-rate notes into floating rates based on LIBOR.
The weighted average effective interest rates on the Company'’s fixed-
rate notes, after giving effect to the swaps, during the fiscal years ended
November 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, were 2.69%, 5.29% and 6.94%,
respectively. The weighted average effective interest rates on the
Company'’s fixed-rate notes outstanding at November 30, 2002 and
November 30, 2001 were 2.24% and 3.05%, respectively.

The floating-rate notes bear interest at rates primarily related to LIBOR.
For floating-rate notes that are not based on LIBOR, the Company has
entered into interest rate swaps and other transactions to convert them
into floating rates based on LIBOR. During the fiscal years ended
November 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the weighted average effective
interest rates on the floating-rate notes were 2.45%, 5.24% and 6.90%,
respectively. The weighted average effective interest rates on the float-
ing-rate notes outstanding at November 30, 2002 and November 30,
2001 were 2.18% and 2.99%, respectively.

At November 30, 2002, the Company’s MTNs have initial maturities
ranging from 12 months to 30 years from the date of issue and
bear interest at either a fixed rate or a variable rate primarily based on
LIBOR. The Company has entered into interest rate swaps and certain
other transactions to convert substantially all of its fixed-rate MTNs
into floating rates based on LIBOR. During the fiscal years ended
November 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the weighted average interest
rates on the MTNs, after giving effect to the swaps, were 2.53%, 4.91%
and 6.63%, respectively. The weighted average interest rates on the
Company's MTNs at November 30, 2002 and November 30, 2001 were
2.08% and 2.79%, respectively.
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Long-term borrowings at November 30, 2002 mature as follows:

(in thousands)

FISCAL YEAR AMOUNT
2003 $ 4,889,068
2004 4,552,115
2005 3,825,958
2006 2,492,817
2007 3,270,677
Thereafter 4,650,764
Total $23,681,399

Amounts include fair value adjustments in accordance with SFAS No. 133.

Instruments governing certain indebtedness of the Company contain
various financial covenants, including maintenance of minimum levels
of stockholders’ equity of the Company. At November 30, 2002, the
Company was in compliance with all financial covenants contained in
these debt agreements.

6 INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for the fiscal years ended November 30
consisted of the following:

Significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets (liabilities)
as of November 30 were as follows:

2002 2001 2000 2002 2001

(in thousands) (in thousands)

CURRENT: DEFERRED TAX ASSETS:

Federal $ 342,982 $ 400,343 $ 402,410 Deferred compensation $ 955619 $ 852,637

State and local 85,954 108,191 137,841 Liability reserves 181,895 177,733

Foreign 28,056 33,861 121,782 Valuation reserves 7,392 9,125

Total current 456,992 542,395 662,033 Depreciation/amortization 331 30,873

e el

Federal (16,364)  (166,718)  (185477) P ' '

State and local (6452)  (67.752)  (78.216) | 2her 31,803 12,596

Foreign (1.558) 1554 _ Total deferred tax assets 1,257,122 1,219,792

Total deferred (24,374)  (232916)  (263693) | DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES:

Total provision for income taxes $432,618 $ 309,479 $ 398,340 Unrealized appreciation (56.845) (48,488)
Other (9,118) (4,519)
Total deferred tax liabilities (65,963) (53,007)

As of November 30, 2002, the Company had approximately $454 mil- | Neat deferred tax assets $1.191.159 $1166.785

lion in accumulated earnings permanently reinvested overseas. If such
income were repatriated, additional federal income tax (net of available
tax credits) at current tax rates would be approximately $47 million.

No valuation allowance has been established against deferred tax assets
since it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized.
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A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rates to the

Company's effective tax rates for the fiscal years ended November 30

was as follows:

2000
35.0%

2001
35.0%

Statutory rate
State and local income taxes,
net of federal benefit . 28 33
Tax-exempt interest income and
dividend exclusion 2.4
Domestic tax credits (3.2)
Other, net 08
Effective tax rate 33.0%

(1.3)
(2.6)
(0.4)
34.0%

7 REGULATORY

Bear Stearns and BSSC are registered broker-dealers and, accordingly, are
subject to Rule 15¢3-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Net
Capital Rule”) and the capital rules of the New York Stock Exchange, Inc.
(“NYSE"), the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC") and
other principal exchanges of which Bear Stearns and BSSC are members.
Included in the computation of net capital, as defined, of Bear Stearns is
$435.9 million, which is net capital of BSSC in excess of 5.5% of aggre-
gate debit items arising from customer transactions. At November 30,
2002, Bear Stearns’ net capital of $1.46 billion exceeded the minimum
requirement by $1.41 billion.

BSIL and Bear Stearns international Trading Limited ("BSIT"), London-based
broker-dealer subsidiaries, are subject to the regulatory capital require-

ments of the Financial Services Authority.

Not included in the reconciliation table is the effect of approximately
$128.1 million, $143.4 million and $73.0 million in income tax benefits
attributable to the distribution of common stock under the CAP Plan
and other deferred compensation plans, credited directly to paid-in cap-
ital, for fiscal 2002, 2007 and 2000, respectively.

REQUIREMENTS

BSB, an Ireland-based bank principally involved in the trading and sales of
fixed income products, is registered in Ireland and is subject to the regula-
tory capital requirements of the Central Bank of Ireland.

At November 30, 2002, Bear Stearns, BSSC, BSIL, BSIT and BSB were in
compliance with their respective regulatory capital requirements.

These regulatory rules, and certain covenants contained in various instru-
ments governing indebtedness of the Company, Bear Stearns and other
regulated subsidiaries, may restrict the Company's ability to withdraw cap-
ital from its regulated subsidiaries, which in turn could limit the Company's
ability to pay dividends. At November 30, 2002, approximately $2.2 billion
in equity capital of Bear Stearns, BSSC, BSIL, BSIT and BSB were restricted
as to the payment of cash dividends and advances to the Company.

8 PREFERRED STOCK

PREFERRED STOCK ISSUED BY

THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES INC.

The Company issued 3.0 million shares of Adjustable-rate Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series A ("Preferred Stock”). The Preferred Stock has
a liquidation preference of $50 per share and is entitled to dividends,
on a cumulative basis, at a rate equal to 135 basis points below the
highest of the Treasury Bill Rate, the 10-year Constant Maturity Rate
and the 30-year Constant Maturity Rate, as defined; however, the div-
idend rate for any dividend period may not be less than 5.50% per
annum, nor greater than 11.00% per annum. The Company may
redeem the Preferred Stock, either in whole or in part, at a redemp-
tion price of $50 per share plus accumulated and unpaid dividends.

The weighted average dividend rate on the Preferred Stock was 5.50%
during the fiscal year ended November 30, 2002. The Company did
not repurchase any shares during the fiscal year ended November 30,
2002. At November 30; 2002, the Company held 2,520,750 shares of
Preferred Stock in treasury.

The Company has outstanding 3,817,850 depositary shares represent-
ing 954,463 shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series E ("Series E
Preferred Stock”), having an aggregate liquidation preference of
$190.9 million as of November 30, 2002. Each depositary share repre-
sents a one-fourth interest in a share of Series E Preferred Stock.
Dividends on the Series E Preferred Stock are payable at an annual rate
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of 6.15%. Series E Preferred Stock is redeemable at the option of the
Company at any time on or after January 15, 2008, in whole or in part,
at a redemption price of $200 per share (equivalent to $50 per deposi-
tary share), plus accrued but unpaid dividends to the redemption date.
During the fiscal year ended November 30, 2002, the Company
redeemed and retired 1,182,150 depositary shares.

The Company has outstanding 3,293,800 depositary shares represent-
ing 823,450 shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series F (“Series F
Preferred Stock”), having an aggregate liquidation preference of
$164.7 million as of November 30, 2002. Each depositary share repre-
sents a one-fourth interest in a share of Series F Preferred Stock.
Dividends on the Series F Preferred Stock are payable at an annual rate
of 5.72%. Series F Preferred Stock is redeemable at the option of the
Company at any time on or after April 15, 2008, in whole or in part, at a
redemption price of $200 per share (equivalent to $50 per depositary
share), plus accrued but unpaid dividends to the redemption date.
During the fiscal year ended November 30, 2002, the Company
redeemed and retired 706,200 depositary shares.

The Company has outstanding 3,745,000 depositary shares represent-
ing 936,250 shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series G ("Series G
Preferred Stock”), having an aggregate liquidation preference of
$187.3 million as of November 30, 2002. Each depositary share repre-
sents a one-fourth interest in a share of Series G Preferred Stock.
Dividends on the Series G Preferred Stock are payable at an annual rate
of 5.49%. Series G Preferred Stock is redeemable at the option of the
Company at any time on or after july 15, 2008, in whole or in part, at a
redemption price of $200 per share (equivalent to $50 per depositary
share), plus accrued but unpaid dividends to the redemption date.
During the fiscal year ended November 30, 2002, the Company
redeemed and retired 255,000 depositary shares.

PREFERRED STOCK ISSUED BY SUBSIDIARIES

Bear Stearns Capital Trust | ("Trust”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, had outstanding $200.0 million of Guaranteed
Preferred Beneficial Interests in Company Subordinated Debt
Securities (“Capital Securities”). The Capital Securities are fixed- or
adjustable-rate capital securities, which have a liquidation value of
$1,000 per capital security. Holders of the Capital Securities were
entitled to receive semiannual preferential cumulative cash distribu-
tions at an annual rate of 7.0% through January 2002. Thereafter, the

distributions were made at a variable rate based on the three-month
LIBOR plus a margin of 1.75%. The proceeds of the issuance of the
Capital Securities were used to purchase fixed- or adjustable-rate
junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures (“Subordinated
Debentures”) issued by the Company. The Subordinated Debentures
are 'the sole assets of the Trust. The Subordinated Debentures had a
maturity date of January 15, 2027. The interest rate on the
Subordinated Debentures is the same as the rate on the Capital
Securities. The Company's guarantee of the Capital Securities, consid-
ered together with the other obligations of the Company with respect
to Capital Securities, constitutes a full and unconditional guarantee
by the Company of the Trust’s obligation under the Capital Securities
issued by the Trust. On January 15, 2002, the Company prepaid all of
the outstanding Subordinated Debentures, resulting in the correspon-
ding redemption of $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of
Capital Securities plus accrued distributions.

Bear Stearns Capital Trust !l (“Capital Trust II”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, has outstanding $300.0 million of Guaranteed Preferred
Beneficial Interests in Company Subordinated Debt Securities ("Preferred
Securities"). The Preferred Securities are fixed-rate securities, which have a
liquidation value of $25 per security. Holders of the Preferred Securities are
entitled to receive quarterly preferential cash distributions at an annual
rate of 7.5% through December 15, 2028. The proceeds of the issuance of
the Preferred Securities were used to purchase junior subordinated
deferrable interest debentures (“Debentures”) issued by the Company. The
Debentures have terms that correspond to the terms of the Preferred
Securities and are the sole assets of Capital Trust [1. The Preferred Securities
will mature on December 15, 2028. The Company, at its option, may
redeem the Preferred Securities at their principal amount plus accrued dis-
tributions beginning December 15, 2003. The Company'’s guarantee of the
Preferred Securities, considered together with other obligations of the
Company with respect to the Preferred Securities, constitute a full and
unconditional guarantee by the Company of Capital Trust II's obligation
under the Preferred Securities issued by Capital Trust I1.

On May 3, 2001, Bear Stearns Capital Trust IHl (“Capital Trust 111"}, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, issued $262.5 million
(10,500,000 shares) of Guaranteed Preferred Beneficial Interests in
Company Subordinated Debt Securities (“Preferred Securities”). The
Preferred Securities are fixed-rate securities, which have a liquidation
value of $25 per security. Holders of the Preferred Securities are enti-
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tled to receive quarterly preferential cash distributions at an annual
rate of 7.8% through May 15, 2031. The proceeds of the issuance of
the Preferred Securities were used to acquire junior subordinated
deferrable interest debentures (“Debentures”) issued by the
Company. The Debentures have terms that correspond to the terms
of the Preferred Securities and are the sole assets of Capital Trust |Il.
The Preferred Securities will mature on May 15, 2031. The Company,
at its option, may redeem the Preferred Securities at their principal

amount plus accrued distributions beginning May 15, 2006. The
Company's guarantee of the Preferred Securities, considered together
with other obligations of the Company with respect to the Preferred
Securities, constitute a full and unconditional guarantee by the
Company of Capital Trust IlI's obligation under the Preferred
Securities issued by Capital Trust Il

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE

EPS is computed in accordance with SFAS No. 128, "Earnings Per Share.”
Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income applicable to common
shares, adjusted for costs related to vested shares under the CAP Plan, as
well as the effect of the redemption of preferred stock, by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding. Common shares out-
standing includes vested units issued under certain employee stock
compensation plans that will be distributed as shares of common stock.

Diluted EPS includes the determinants of Basic EPS and, in addition,
gives effect to dilutive potential common shares related to employee
stock compensation plans.

The computations of Basic and Diluted EPS for the fiscal years ended
November 30 are set forth below:

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Net income $878,345 $ 618,692 $773,183
Preferred stock dividends (35,606) (39,113) (39,113)
Redemption of preferred stock 15,832 - -
Income adjustment (net of tax) applicable to deferred compensation arrangements—vested shares 70,428 60,197 79,484
Net earnings used for basic EPS 928,999 639,776 813,554
Income adjustment (net of tax) applicable to deferred compensation arrangements—non-vested shares 17,536 9,797 -
Net earnings used for diluted EPS $946,535 $ 649,573 $813,554
Total basic weighted average common shares outstanding(7) 132,798 142,643 151,437
Effect of dilutive securities:

Employee stock options 1,593 917 372

CAP and restricted units 11,955 8,657 225
Dilutive potential common shares 13,548 9,574 597
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding and dilutive potential common shares 146,346 152,217 152,034
Basic EPS $ 7.00 $  4.49(2) $ 537
Diluted EPS $ 647 $ 42702 $ 535

(1) includes 34,083,394, 41,612,857 and 35,201,719 vested units for the fiscal years ended November 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, issued under certain employee stock compensation plans, which will be distributed as

shares of common stock.
(2) Netof a $.04 per share loss due to the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has a qualified non-contributory profit sharing plan cover-
ing substantially all employees. Contributions are made at the discretion
of management in amounts that relate to the Company’s level of
income before provision for income taxes. The Company's expense
related to the profit sharing plan for the fiscal years ended November

30, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $26.2 million, $13.5 million and $18.9
million, respectively.

The Company maintains a non-qualified defined contribution retire-
ment plan covering substantially all account executives. The plan
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provides for retirement benefits to be paid based on a percentage of
each participant's compensation and the performance of certain
participant-selected investment options for benefits accrued. No firm
contributions were made for the fiscal years ended November 30, 2002
and 2001 as such plan benefits have been replaced by the Restricted

Stock Unit Plan discussed in Note 11, "Stock Compensation Plans,” in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company’s
expense related to the defined contribution retirement plan for the fis-
cal year ended November 30, 2000 was $11.9 million.

11 STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company has various stock compensation plans designed to
increase the emphasis on stock-based incentive compensation and align
the compensation of our key employees with the long-term interests of
stockholders. These plans are summarized below.

CAPITAL ACCUMULATION PLAN

Pursuant to the CAP Plan, certain key executives receive a portion of their
total annual compensation in the form of CAP units. Beginning with
fiscal 2007, the number of CAP units credited is a function of the dollar
amount awarded to each participant and the closing fair market value of
the Company’s common stock on the date of the award. Such CAP units
generally must be deferred for a minimum of five years from the date of
the award. The CAP units awarded under the CAP Plan subsequent to June
30, 1999 are generally subject to vesting. The total number of CAP units
that may be issued under the CAP Plan during any fiscal year may not
exceed 15% of the sum of issued and outstanding shares of common
stock and CAP units outstanding determined as of the last day of the cur-
rent fiscal year.

Each CAP unit gives the participant an unsecured right to receive, on an
annual basis, an amount equal to the Company’s pre-tax income or loss
per share, as defined by the CAP Plan, less the value of certain changes
in the Company's book value per common share during such fiscal year
resulting from increases or decreases in the Company's consolidated
retained earnings ("earnings adjustment”). The earnings adjustment
will be credited to each participant’s deferred compensation account in
the form of additional CAP units, subject to certain limitations, based
on the number of CAP units in such account at the end of each fiscal
year, The number of CAP units credited depends on the amount
awarded to each participant and the average per share cost of common
stock acquired by the Company. On completion of the deferral period,
participants are entitled to receive shares of common stock equal to
the number of CAP units then credited to their respective deferred
compensation accounts.

During the fiscal years ended November 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the
Company expensed $245.1 million, $167.8 million and $307.8 million,
respectively, attributable to CAP units granted to participants in each of
these years. In addition, during the fiscal years ended November 30, 2002,
2001 and 2000, the Company recognized expense of $154.0 million,
$123.0 million and $140.0 million, respectively, attributable to CAP units
with respect to the earnings adjustment. Compensation deferred pursuant
to the CAP Plan is credited to participants’ deferred compensation
accounts in the form of CAP units and included in stockholders’ equity.

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT PLAN

The Restricted Stock Unit Plan ("RSU Plan”) provides for the deferral of a
portion of certain key employees' compensation, with allocations made to
participants’ deferred compensation accounts in the form of restricted
stock units ("RSUs"). Under the RSU Plan, RSUs granted to employees have
various vesting provisions and generally convert to common stock within
four years. Such units are restricted from sale, transfer or assignment until
the end of the restricted period. Holders of restricted stock units generally
may forfeit ownership of a portion of their award if employment is termi-
nated before the end of the vesting period. Holders of RSUs are entitled to
receive a dividend in the form of additional RSUs, based on dividends
declared on the Company's common stock. The total number of RSUs that
may be granted under the RSU Plan may not exceed 10,000,000. As of
November 30, 2002, the total number of RSUs outstanding were
5,299,657 and 214,187 RSUs have been converted to common stock.

The Company measures compensation cost for RSUs based on the fair
market value of its common stock at the award date. A portion related to
current service is expensed in the year of the award and that portion relat-
ing to future service is amortized over the vesting period. Amounts
awarded and deferred pursuant to the RSU Plan and the unamortized por-
tion of these amounts are shown as separate components of stockholders’
equity. During the fiscal years ended November 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
the Company recognized compensation expense of $108.4 million, $84.7
million and $92.3 million, respectively, related to these awards.
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STOCK AWARD PLAN

Pursuant to the Stock Award Plan, certain key employees may be offered
the opportunity to acquire common stock through the grant of options.
Stock options generally vest three years after the date of grant and have a
10-year expiration. The total number of stock options that may be issued
under the Stock Award Plan may not exceed 35,000,000. As of November
30, 2002, the total number of stock options outstanding was 20,454,067,
and 556,166 stock options have been converted to common stock.

NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS’ STOCK OPTION AND

STOCK UNIT PLAN

Pursuant to the Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option and Stock Unit
Plan (“Directors’ Plan"), members of the Board of Directors of the
Company who are not employees of the Company or any of its sub-
sidiaries (“Non-Employee Directors”) may be offered the opportunity to
acquire common stock through the grant of options and will receive com-
mon stock on the vesting of RSUs. Non-Employee Directors may elect to
exchange a portion of their annual cash retainer paid by the Company for
services rendered as a director, for stock options or RSUs. Stock options
and RSUs issued under the plan generally vest six months after the date of
issuance and stock options have a 10-year expiration. The total number of
stock options and RSUs combined that may be issued under the Directors’
Plan may not exceed 300,000. The total number of stock options and
RSUs outstanding combined was 64,176, and 686 RSUs have been con-
verted to common stock as of November 30, 2002.

The following is @ summary of CAP units and RSUs outstanding:

Cap Units Rsus(2)
Balance, November 26, 1999 42,261,696 -
Granted(7) 14,287,046 6,402,562
Forfeited - -
Distributed (7,491,085) -
Balance, November 30, 2000 49,057,657 6,402,562
Granted(7) 5,280,746 2,684,220
Forfeited (999,238) (952,404)
Distributed (10,663,459) (65,283)
Balance, November 30, 2001 42,675,706 8,069,095
Granted!(7) 6,615,127 2,540,522
Forfeited (175,259) (522,861)
Distributed (9.644,990) (209,914)
Balance, November 30, 2002 39,470,584 9,876,842

(1) Average market price for shares granted was $60,32, $55.27 and $43.86 for fiscal years ended November
30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

(2) Inciudes 4,573,030, 4,473,301 and 4,333,811 R5Us outstanding as of November 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively, which were granted under ane-time awards.

Activity with respect to stock options for the fiscal years ended
November 30 is presented below:

2002 2001 2000

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of Exercise Number of Exercise Numberof  Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Beginning
balance 17,474,422 $50.23 12,800,450 $46.76 3,886,334 $38.75
Granted 4,315,153 $63.78 6038092 $56.81 9,211,831 $49.88
Exercised (550,357) $48.03 (5809) $49.63 - -
Forfeited (785,151) $51.10 (1,358311) $46.73 (297,715) $38.75

Ending

balance 20,454,067(7) $53.12 17,474,422(1)$50.23 12,800,450 $46.76

(1) 267,559 and 308,613 stock options were exercisable with a weighted average exercise price of $52.76 and
$47.53 at November 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. There were no stock options exercisable at Navember
30, 2000.

Information for the Company's stock options as of November 30, 2002 is
presented in the following table:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Average Weighted

Weighted ~ Remaining Average

Range of Number Average  Contractual ~ Number Exercise
Exercise Prices Qutstanding Exercise Price  Life (Years) Exercisable Price

$38.75-545.99 3,074,188 $38.82 72 7245 $38.82

$46.00-$54.99 7,144,423 $49.65 80 139760 $5002

$55.00-$64.99 10,235,456 $59.83 94 120554 $56.77

Total 20,454,067 $53.12 86 267559 $52.76

PRO FORMA EFFECT OF SFAS NO. 123

The Company accounts for its stock compensation plans using the intrin-
sic value method prescribed by APB No. 25, as permitted by SFAS
No. 123. Under the provisions of APB No. 25, compensation cost for stock
options is measured as the excess, if any, of the quoted market price of
the Company's common stock at the date of grant over the amount an
employee must pay to acquire the stock. Accordingly, no compensation
expense has been recognized for stock option awards because the exer-
cise price was at the fair market value of the Company's common stock
on the grant date.

SFAS No. 123 requires companies that have elected to continue to
account for stock compensation plans using the intrinsic value method
to provide pro forma disclosures of net income and earnings per share in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as if the fair value of
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stock-based compensation had been recorded. Fair value was estimated
at grant date based on a modified Black-Scholes option-pricing model.
The weighted average fair value of options granted related to the fiscal
years ended November 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $21.19, $19.29 and
$14.18 per option, respectively. These amounts reflect adjustments for
vesting requirements and potential maturity shortening.

The following table highlights the assumptions used for the fiscal years
ended November 30:

2002 2001 2000
Risk-free interest rate 4.21% 5.20% 6.40%
Option life 10 years 10 years 10 years
Stock price volatility 33% 33% 37%
Dividend yield 1.06% 1.00% 1.45%

if the Company had elected to account for its stock compensation plans
using the fair value method prescribed by SFAS No. 123, pro forma net
income and earnings per share would have been as presented in the fol-
lowing table for the fiscal years ended November 30:

2002 2001 2000
(in millions, except per share amounts)
Net income, as reported $ 8783 S 6187 § 7732
Add: Stock-based employee

compensation plans

expense included in

reported net income,

net of related tax effects 216.7 153.7 224.4
Deduct: Total stock-based

employee compensation

plans expense determined

under the fair value

based method, net of

related tax effects (263.0) (181.4) (230.3)
Pro forma net income $832.0 $591.0 $7673
Earnings per share:

Basic — as reported $ 7.00 $ 449 § 537

Basic - pro forma $ 6.65 $ 429 $ 533

Diluted - as reported $ 647 S 427 $ 535

Diluted — pro forma $ 6.15 $ 409 $ 531

12 DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

In its capacity as a dealer in over-the-counter derivative financial instru-
ments and its proprietary market-making and trading activities, the
Company enters into transactions in a variety of cash and derivative
financial instruments to manage its exposure to market and credit risk.
These risks include interest rate, exchange rate, equity price and com-
modity price. risk. A derivative is defined as a financial contract whose
value is based on underlying reference interest rates, currencies, com-
modities, market indices or securities. This includes futures, forward,
swap or option contracts, as well as caps, floors and collars. Generally,
these financial instruments represent future commitments or rights to
exchange interest payment streams or currencies or to purchase or sell
other securities at specific terms at specified future dates. Option con-
tracts provide the holder with the right, but not the obligation, to
purchase or sell a financial instrument at a specified price on or before
an established date or dates. These financial instruments may result in
market and/or credit risk in excess of amounts recorded in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.

MARKET RISK
Derivative financial instruments involve varying degrees of off-balance-
sheet market risk whereby changes in the level or volatility of interest

rates, foreign currency exchange rates or market values of the underly-
ing financial instruments may result in changes in the value of the
financial instrument in excess of the amounts currently reflected in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. The Company'’s expo-
sure to market risk is influenced by a number of factors, including the
relationships among and between financial instruments with off-bal-
ance-sheet risk, the Company's proprietary securities, futures and
derivatives inventories as well as the volatility and liquidity in the mar-
kets in which the financial instruments are traded. In many cases, the
use of financial instruments serves to modify or offset market risk asso-
ciated with other transactions and, accordingly, serves to decrease the
Company’s overall exposure to market risk. The Company attempts to
control its exposure to market risk through the use of hedging strategies
and various statistical monitoring techniques.

CREDIT RISK

Derivative financial instruments represent contractual commitments
between counterparties that derive their value from changes in an
underlying interest rate, currency exchange rate, index (e.g., S&P 500),
reference rate (e.g., LIBOR), or asset value referenced in the related con-
tract. Some derivatives, such as futures contracts, certain options and
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indexed referenced warrants, can be traded on an exchange. Other
derivatives, such as interest rate and currency swaps, caps, floors, collars,

swaptions, equity swaps and options, credit derivatives, structured notes
and forward contracts, are negotiated in the over-the-counter markets.
Derivatives generate both on- and off-balance-sheet risks depending on
the nature of the contract. The Company is engaged as a dealer in over-

the-counter derivatives and, accordingly, enters into transactions
involving derivative instruments as part of its customer-related and pro-
prietary trading activities.

The Company's dealer activities require it to make markets and trade a
variety of derivative instruments. In connection with these activities, the
Company attempts to mitigate its exposure to market risk by entering
into hedging transactions which may include over-the-counter deriva-
tive contracts or the purchase or sale of interest-bearing securities,
equity securities, financial futures and forward contracts. In this regard,
the utilization of derivative instruments is designed to reduce or miti-
gate market risks associated with holding dealer inventories or in
connection with arbitrage-related trading activities. The Company also
utilizes interest rate and currency swaps as well as futures contracts and
US treasury positions to hedge its debt issuances as part of its asset and
liability management.

Credit risk arises from the potential inability of counterparties to per-
form in accordance with the terms of the contract. At any point in time,
the Company’s exposure to credit risk associated with counterparty
non-performance is generally limited to the net replacement cost of
over-the-counter contracts net of the value of collateral held. Such
financial instruments are reported at fair value on a net-by-counter-
party basis pursuant to enforceable netting agreements.
Exchange-traded financial instruments, such as futures and options,
generally do not give rise to significant unsecured counterparty expo-
sure due to the Company’s margin requirements, which may be greater
than those prescribed by the individual exchanges. Options written gen-
erally do not give rise to counterparty credit risk since they obligate the
Company (not its counterparty) to perform.

The Company has controls in place to monitor credit exposures by
assessing the future creditworthiness of counterparties and limiting
transactions with specific counterparties. The Company also ‘seeks to
control credit risk by following an established credit approval process,
monitoring credit limits and requiring collateral where appropriate.

The following table summarizes the counterparty credit quality of the
Company’s exposure with respect to over-the-counter derivatives
{including foreign exchange and forward-settling mortgage trans-
actions) as of November 30, 2002:

Over-the-Counter Derivative Credit Exposure(7)

Percentage

Exposure, of Exposure,
Rating(z) Exposure Collateral(3)  Net of Coliateral{*)  Net of Coliateral
(in millions)
AAA $2,420 $1,012 $1,509 36%
AA 2,256 717 1,565 37%
A 1,287 660 842 20%
BBB 185 298 96 2%
BB and lower 540 1,013 191 5%
Non-rated 1 0 1 0%

(1) Excluded are covered transactions structured to ensure that the market values of collateral will at all times
equal or exceed the related exposures. The net exposure for these transactions will, under ail circum-
stances, be zero.

(2) Internal counterparty credit ratings, as assigned by the Company's Credit Department, converted to rating
agency equivalents.

(3) For tower-rated counterparties, the Company generally receives collateral in excess of the current market
value of derivatives contracts.

{4} In calculating exposure net of collateral, collareral amounts are limited to the amount of current exposure
for each counterparty. Excess collateral is not applied to reduce expasure because such excess in one
counterparty portfolio cannot be applied to deficient collateral in a different counterparty portfolio.

CONCENTRATION RISK

The Company is subject to concentration risk by holding or committing
to hold large positions in certain types of securities, securities of a single
issuer (including governments), issuers located in a particular country or
geographic area, or issuers engaged in a particular industry. Positions
taken and commitments made by the Company, including underwrit-
ings, often involve substantial amounts and significant exposure to
individual issuers and businesses, including non-investment-grade
issuers. In addition, substantially all of the collateral held by the
Company for reverse repurchase agreements consists of securities
issued by the US government and agencies. The Company seeks to limit
concentration risk through the use of the systems and procedures
described in the preceding discussions of market and credit risk.

NON-TRADING DERIVATIVES ACTIVITY

To modify the interest rate characteristics of its long- and
short-term debt, the Company also engages in non-trading derivatives
activities. The Company has issued US-dollar- and foreign currency-
denominated debt with both variable- and fixed-rate interest payment
obligations. The Company has entered into interest rate swaps, primarily
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based on LIBOR, to convert fixed-rate interest payments on its debt
obligations into variable-rate payments. In addition, for foreign currency
debt obligations that are not used to fund assets in the same currency,
the Company has entered into currency swap agreements that effec-
tively convert the debt into US dollar obligations. Such transactions are
accounted for as fair value hedges. Interest payment obligations on vari-
able-rate debt obligations may also be modified through interest rate
swaps, which may change the underlying basis or reset frequency.

These financial instruments are subject to the same market and credit
risks as those that are traded in connection with the Company's market-
making and trading activities. The Company has the same controls in
place to monitor these risks.

Interest rate swap agreements reduced net interest expense on the
Company'’s long- and short-term debt obligations by $630.4 million and
$164.4 million during the fiscal years ended November 30, 2002 and
2001, respectively, and increased net interest expense by $29.5 million
for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2000.

SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” as amended by SFAS No. 138, "Accounting for Certain
Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities,"establishes

accounting and reporting standards for stand-alone derivative instru-
ments, derivatives embedded within other contracts or securities and
for hedging activities. It requires that all derivatives, whether stand-
alone or embedded within other contracts or securities (except in very
defined circumstances) be carried on the Company’s Statement of
Financial Condition at their then fair value. The Company adopted SFAS
No. 133 on December 1, 2000. As a result of adopting the statement,
the Company recognized a cumulative after-tax loss of $6.3 million. This
loss is reported separately in the Consolidated Statement of income for
fiscal 2001 as a "cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.”

SFAS No. 133 requires that all derivatives be carried at fair value, includ-
ing those used as hedges. SFAS No. 133 also requires items designated
as being hedged, previously carried at accrued values now be marked to
market for the risk being hedged, provided that the intent to hedge is
fully documented. Any resultant net change in value for both the hedg-
ing derivative and the hedged item is recognized in earnings
immediately, such net effect being deemed the “ineffective” portion of
the hedge. The gains and losses associated with the ineffective portion
of the fair value hedges are included in "Principal Transactions” revenues
in the Consolidated Statements of Income. In fiscal 2002 and 2001, the
Company recognized a net gain of $5.6 million and $9.7 million, respec-
tively, for the ineffective portion of all fair value hedges.

13 CUSTOMER ACTIVITIES

CUSTOMER ACTIVITIES

The Company's clearance activities for both clearing clients and cus-
tomers involve the execution, settlement and financing of customers’
securities and futures transactions. Customers’ securities activities are
transacted on either a cash or margin basis, while customer futures
transactions are generally transacted on a margin basis, subject to
exchange regulations.

In connection with these activities, the Company executes and clears
customers’ transactions involving the sale of borrowed securities (“short
sales”) and the writing of option contracts. These transactions may
expose the Company to loss if customers are unable to fulfill their con-
tractual obligations and customers’ margin deposits are insufficient to
fully cover their losses. If customers fail to satisfy their obligations, the
Company may be required to purchase or sell financial instruments at
prevailing market prices to fulfill the customers’ obligations.

The Company seeks to control the risks associated with its customers’
activities by requiring them to maintain margin collateral in compliance
with various regulatory and internal guidelines. The Company monitors
required margin levels daily and, pursuant to such guidelines, may
require customers to deposit additional cash or collateral or reduce posi-
tions when deemed necessary. The Company also establishes credit
limits for customers engaged in futures activities and monitors credit
compliance daily. Additionally, with respect to the Company's corre-
spondent clearing activities, introducing correspondent firms
guarantee the contractual obligations of their customers. Further, the
Company seeks to reduce credit risk by entering into netting agree-
ments with customers, which permits receivables and payables with
such customers to be offset in the event of a customer’s default.

In connection with the Company's customer financing and securities
settlement activities, the Company may pledge certain customers' secu-
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rities collateral to satisfy exchange margin deposit requirements or to
support various secured financing sources such as bank loans, securities
lcaned and repurchase agreements. If the counterparties are unable to
meet their contractual obligations to return customer securities pledged
as collateral, the Company may be exposed to the risk of acquiring the
securities at prevailing market prices to satisfy its obligations to cus-
tomers. The Company seeks to control this risk by monitoring the
market value of securities pledged on a daily basis and by requiring
adjustments of collateral levels in the event of excess exposure.
Moreover, the Company establishes credit limits for such activities and
monitors credit compliance daily.

CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Company is engaged in various securities underwriting, brokerage
and trading activities. These services are provided to a diverse group of
domestic and foreign corporations and partnerships, governments and
individual and institutional investors. A substantial portion of the
Company's transactions are collateralized and are executed with, or
made on behalf of, institutional investors, including other brokers and
dealers, commercial banks, insurance companies, pension plans, mutual
funds, hedge funds and other financial institutions. The Company’s
exposure to credit risk, associated with the nonperformance of cus-
tomers in fulfilling their contractual obligations pursuant to securities
and futures transactions, can be directly affected by volatile or illiquid

trading markets, which may impair customers’ ability to satisfy their
obligations to the Company. The Company attempts to minimize credit
risk associated with these activities by monitoring customers’ credit
exposure and collateral values on a daily basis and requiring, when
deemed necessary, additional collateral to be deposited with or returned
to the Company.

A significant portion of the Company's securities processing activities
includes clearing transactions for hedge funds, specialists, market makers,
risk arbitrageurs and other professional traders. Due to the nature of their
operations, which may include significant levels of credit extension such
as leveraged purchases, short selling and option writing, the Company
may have significant credit exposure should these customers be unable
to meet their commitments. The Company seeks to control these risks by
monitoring collateral levels on a daily basis for compliance with both reg-
ulatory and internal guidelines. Additional collateral is obtained when
necessary. To further control this risk, the Company has developed com-
puterized risk control systems that analyze customers’ sensitivity to
major market movements. The Company will require customers to
deposit additional margin collateral or reduce positions if it is determined
that their activities may be subject to above-normal market risks.

14 TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

SECURITIZATIONS

The Company regularly securitizes commercial and residential mortgages,
consumer receivables and other financial assets. Interests in these securi-
tized assets may be retained in the form of senior or subordinated
securities or as residual interests. These retained interests are included in
“Financial Instruments Owned” in the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Condition and are carried at fair value. Securitization transac-
tions are generally treated as sales, with resulting gain or loss included in
“Principal Transactions” revenue in the Consolidated Statements of
Income. Consistent with the valuation of similar inventory, fair value is
determined by broker-dealer price quotations and internal valuation pric-
ing models that utilize variables such as yield curves, prepayment speeds,
default rates, loss severity, interest rate volatilities and spreads. The
assumptions used for pricing variables are primarily based on observable
transactions in similar securities and are often further verified by external
pricing sources, when available. During fiscal 2002 and fiscal 2001, the

Company executed securitization transactions of approximately $112.7
billion and $109.0 billion, including securitizations of its own assets of
approximately $78.6 billion and $62.9 billion. Securitizations of its own
assets include $55.0 billion and $39.4 billion, respectively, in agency mort-
gage-backed securities; $19.6 billion and $17.3 billion, respectively, in
non-agency mortgage-backed securities; and $4.0 billion and $6.2 billion,
respectively, in other asset-backed securities. The Company is an active
market maker in these securities and therefore may retain interests in
assets it securitizes, predominantly highly rated or government agency-
backed securities. Retained interests in assets the Company securitized,
including senior and subordinated securities, approximated $2.3 billion
and $3.8 billion at November 30, 2002 and November 30, 2001, respec-
tively. As of November 30, 2002 and November 30, 2001, retained
interests include $1.7 billion and $2.2 billion in agency mortgage-backed
securities, respectively; $0.4 billion and $1.5 billion in non-agency mort-
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gage-backed securities, respectively, and $0.2 billion and $0.1 billion in
other asset-backed securities, respectively.

The models employed in the valuation of retained interests use discount
rates that are based on the swap curve. Key points on the swap curve at
November 30, 2002 were 2.45% for two-year swaps and 4.72% for 10-
year swaps. These models also consider prepayment speeds, as well as
credit losses. Credit losses are considered through option-adjusted spreads
that also utilize additional factors such as liquidity and optionality.

Key valuation assumptions used in measuring the current fair value of
retained interests in assets the Company securitized at November 30,
2002 were as follows:

The previous table should be viewed with caution since the changes in a
single variable generally cannot occur without changes in other variables
or conditions that may counteract or amplify the effect of the changes
outlined in the table. In addition, the table does not consider the change in
fair value of hedging positions which would generally offset the changes
detailed in the table, nor does it consider any corrective action that the
Company may take in response to changes in these conditions. The effect
of hedges is not presented because hedging positions are established on a
macro level and allocating the effect would not be practicable.

The following table summarizes cash flows from securitization trusts
related to securitization transactions during the fiscal year ended
November 30, 2002:

Agency Other Agency Other
Mortgage-Backed Mortgage-Backed Other Mortgage-Backed Mortgage-Backed Other
Weighted average life (years) 3.26 7.90 2.68 (in millions)
Average prepayment Cash flows received from
speeds (annual rate) 12%—61% 0%—76% n/a retained interests $74.1 $733 $54
Credit losses 0.0%% 10.85% 0.65% Cash flows from servicing n/a $ 60 nfa

The following hypothetical sensitivity analysis as of November 30, 2002
illustrates the potential change in fair value of these retained interests due
to a specified change in the key valuation assumptions. The interest rate
changes represent a parallel shift in the swap curve. This shift considers the
effect on other variables, including prepayments. The remaining valuation
assumptions are changed independently.

Agency Other
Mortgage-Backed Mortgage-Backed Other
(in millions}
Interest rates
50 basis point increase $(27.8) $(2.5) $(0.5)
100 basis point increase (58.9) (5.8) (1.0)
50 basis point decrease 219 29 0.5
100 basis point decrease 40.0 7.1 10
Prepayment speeds
10% adverse change
(increase in prepayments) (o7 (o7 nf/a
20% adverse change (1.3) (13) n/a
10% favorable change 0.7 08 n/a
20% favorable change 1.7 1.7 n/a
Credit losses
10% adverse change (2.9) (8.6) (1.2)
20% adverse change (5.8) (16.3) (2.3)
10% favorable change 29 98 1.2
20% favorable change 59 211 26

COLLATERALIZED FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

The Company enters into secured borrowing or lending agreements to
obtain collateral necessary to effect settlements, finance inventory posi-
tions, meet customer needs or re-lend as part of its dealer operations.

The Company receives collateral under reverse repurchase agreements,
securities borrowing transactions, derivative transactions, customer mar-
gin loans and other secured money-lending activities. In many instances,
the Company is permitted to rehypothecate such securities. The Company
also pledges financial instruments owned to collateralize certain financing
arrangements. These securities are recorded as "Financial Instruments
Owned, Pledged As Collateral” in the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Condition.

At November 30, 2002 and November 30, 2001, the Company had
received securities pledged as collateral that can be repledged, delivered or
otherwise used with a fair value of approximately $184 billion and $192
biltion, respectively. This collateral was generally obtained under reverse
repurchase, securities borrowing or margin lending agreements. Of these
securities received as collateral, those with a fair value of approximately
$116 billion and $134 billion were delivered or repledged, generally as col-
lateral under repurchase or securities lending agreements or to cover short
sales at November 30, 2002 and November 30, 2001, respectively.
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15 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

LEASES
The Company occupies office space under leases that expire at various
dates through 2018.

At November 30, 2002, future minimum aggregate annual rentals

payable under non-cancelable leases (net of subleases), including
383 Madison Avenue in New York City, for fiscal years 2003 through
2007 and the aggregate amount thereafter, are as follows:

(in thousands)

FISCAL YEAR
2003

2004

2005

2006

2007
Thereafter

$ 55,113
52,794
44345
42,611
35872

106,478

The various leases contain provisions for periodic escalations resulting
from increased operating and other costs. Rental expense, including
escalations and net of sublease rental income, under these leases was
$113.2 million, $100.5 million and $96.6 million for the fiscal years
ended November 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

383 MADISON AVENUE

The Company has entered into a lease arrangement for its new world-
wide headquarters at 383 Madison Avenue. Under the terms of the
arrangement, the Company is obligated to make monthly payments
based on the lessor’s underlying interest costs. The arrangement expires
on May 20, 2007, after which the Company may request a renewal. If
the lease renewal cannot be negotiated, the Company has the right to
purchase the building for the amount of the then outstanding indebted-
ness of the lessor or to arrange for the sale of the property with the
proceeds of the sale to be used to satisfy the lessor’s debt obligation. If
the sale of the property does not generate enough proceeds to satisfy
the lessor’s debt obligation, the Company is required to fund the short-
fall up to a maximum residual value guarantee. As of November 30,
2002, there was no expected shortfall and the residual value guarantee
approximated $570 million.

| Inthe ordinary course of business, the Company has commitments in con-
nection with various activities, the most significant of which are as follows:

COMMERCIAL LENDING

In connection with certain of the Company's business activities, the
Company provides financing or financing commitments to investment-
grade and non-investment-grade companies in the form of senior and
subordinated debt, including bridge financing. Commitments have varying
maturity dates and are generally contingent on the accuracy and validity of

to the borrower. Commercial lending commitments to investment-grade
borrowers aggregated approximately $1.2 billion at November 30, 2002
(gross commitments of $1.9 billion less $0.7 billion of associated hedges).
Commercial lending commitments to non-investment-grade borrowers
totaled $867.9 million at November 30, 2002.

PRIVATE EQUITY-RELATED INVESTMENTS AND PARTNERSHIPS

In connection with the Company’s merchant banking activities, the
Company has commitments to invest in merchant banking or private
equity-related investment funds as well as commitments to invest
directly in private equity-related investments. At November 30, 2002,
such commitments aggregated $668.5 million. These commitments
will be funded, if called, through the end of the respective investment
periods, primarily ending in 2011.

UNDERWRITING

In connection with the Company's mortgage-backed securitizations, the
Company has commitments to purchase and sell new issues of securi-
ties aggregating $1.3 billion at November 30, 2002.

LETTERS OF CREDIT

At November 30, 2002, the Company was contingently liable for
unsecured letters of credit of approximately $1.9 billion and letters of
credit of $986.7 million secured by financial instruments, primarily used
to provide collateral for securities borrowed and to satisfy margin
requirements at option and commodity exchanges.

BORROW VERSUS PLEDGE
At November 30, 2002, the Company had pledged securities, primarily
US government and agency securities with a market value of approxi-
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mately $1.4 billion as collateral for securities borrowed, with an approx-
imate market value of $1.4 billion.

MUNICIPAL SECURITIES

As part of the Company’s municipal securities business, the Company
acts as placement agent for municipal securities trust certificates (“Trust
Certificates”). Certain of the Trust Certificates entitle the holder to
receive future payments of principal and variable interest and to
tender such certificates at the option of the holder on a periodic basis.
As placement agent for the Trust Certificates, the Company has an obli-
gation to remarket the certificates. The Company also serves as liquidity
provider to the trusts. Consequently, if the Trust Certificates were unable
to be remarketed, the Company would be required to acquire such cer-
tificates, which approximated $2.7 billion at November 30, 2002. The
underlying securities in the trusts are either AAA- or AA-rated, insured or
escrowed to maturity municipal bonds. The market value of the underly-
ing securities was in excess of $2.7 billion at November 30, 2002.

OTHER

The Company participates in the acquisition, securitization, servicing,
financing and disposition of commercial and residential loans. At
November 30, 2002, the Company had entered intc commitments to
purchase and finance mortgage loans of $466.4 million.

The Company had commitments to purchase Chapter 13 and other
credit card receivables of $127.8 million at November 30, 2002.

The Company has entered into agreements with providers of hardware,
software, data processing and systems consulting services. At November
30, 2002, minimum fee commitments over the remaining life of these
agreements aggregated $53.0 million.

With respect to certain of the commitments outlined above, the
Company utilizes various hedging strategies to actively manage its mar-
ket, credit and liquidity exposures. Additionally, since these
commitments may expire unused, the total commitment amount does
not necessarily reflect the actual future cash funding requirements.

LITIGATION

In the normal course of business, the Company has been named as a
defendant in various lawsuits that involve claims for substantial
amounts,

Included among these is an action that was originally filed in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York by Henryk de
Kwiatkowski, a former customer of Bear Stearns. During the year, the
United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit overturned a dis-
trict court decision that upheld a jury verdict awarding Henryk de
Kwiatkowski approximately $163.8 million in damages and interest in
May 2000 and ordered that the complaint be dismissed. On December
5, 2002, the Second Circuit denied the plaintiff's motions for reargu-
ment and rehearing of this decision.

Also, the Company is involved from time to time in investigations and
proceedings by governmental agencies and self-regulatory organiza-
tions. Included among these is an industry-wide investigation by the
Securities and Exchange Commission {"SEC"), the National Association
of Securities Dealers, the New York Stock Exchange and several state
attorney generals’ offices of certain research and initial public offering
practices of major brokerage firms, including Bear Stearns. Bear Stearns
is cooperating fully with the investigation. On December 20, 2002, these
regulatory agencies announced an agreement in principle, subject to
approval of the governing bodies of these regulatory and/or governmen-
tal authorities, including the SEC, with 10 brokerage firms, including
Bear Stearns (and shortly thereafter an additional two brokerage firms)
to resolve the investigation concerning research practices. The agree-
ment requires, among other things, that Bear Stearns pay $80 million in
penalties, restitution and money for investor education.

Although the ultimate outcome of the various matters cannot be ascer-
tained at this time, it is the opinion of management, after consultation
with counsel, that the resolution of the foregoing matters will not have
a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Company,
taken as a whole; such resolution may, however, have a material effect
on the operating results in any future period, depending on the level of
income for such period. Litigation charges are reflected in "Other
Expenses” in the Consolidated Statements of income.

THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES INC.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

16 SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA DATA

The Company operates in three principal segments — Capital Markets,
Global Clearing Services and Wealth Management. These segments offer
different products and services and are managed separately as different
levels and types of expertise are required to effectively manage the seg-
ments' transactions.

The Capital Markets segment comprises the institutional equities, fixed
income and investment banking areas. It operates as a single integrated
unit to provide sales, trading and origination for various fixed income,
equity and advisory products and services to corporate and institu-
tional clients.

Institutional equities combines the efforts of sales, trading and research
in such areas as block trading, convertible bonds, over-the-counter equi-
ties, equity derivatives and risk arbitrage. Fixed income includes the
efforts of sales, trading and research for institutional clients in a variety
of products such as mortgage- and asset-backed securities, corporate
and government bonds, municipal and high yield securities and foreign
exchange and fixed income derivatives. Investment banking provides
capabilities in capital raising, strategic advisory, mergers and acquisi-
tions and merchant banking. Capital raising encompasses the
Company's underwriting of equity, investment-grade and high yield
debt products.

The Global Clearing Services segment provides execution, clearing, mar-
gin lending and securities borrowing to facilitate customer short sales to

clearing clients worldwide. Prime brokerage clients include hedge funds
and clients of money managers, short sellers, arbitrageurs and other pro-
fessional investors. Fully disclosed clients engage in either the retail or
institutional brokerage business.

The Wealth Management segment is composed of the PCS and asset
management areas. PCS provides high-net-worth individuals with an
institutional level of investment service. Asset management serves
the diverse investment needs of corporations, municipal govern-
ments, multi-employer plans, foundations, endowments, famity
groups and high-net-worth individuals for which it earns manage-
ment and performance fees on the institutional and high-net-worth
products it offers.

The three business segments comprise many business areas with
interactions among each. Revenues and expenses include those that
are directly related to each segment. Revenues from intersegment
transactions are based on specific criteria or agreed-upon rates with
such amounts eliminated in consolidation. Individual segments also
include revenues and expenses relating to various items, including
corporate overhead and interest, which are internally allocated by
the Company primarily based on balance-sheet usage or expense
levels. The Company generally evaluates performance of the seg-
ments based on net revenues and profit or loss before provision for
income taxes.
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Fiscal Years Ended November 30
2002 2001 2000

(In thousands)
NET REVENUES
Capital Markets

Institutional equities $1,117,762 $1,131,124 $1,417,592

Fixed income 1,938,045 1,602,034 1,092,568

Investment banking 883,717 752,473 1,000,079
Total Capital Markets 3,939,524 3,485,631 3,510,239
Global Clearing Services 778,087 810,601 1,074,498
Wealth Management 498,411 543,495 683,791
Other(1} (87,786) 67,308 207,150
Total net revenues $5,128,236 $4,907,035 $5,475,678
PRE-TAX INCOME
Capital Markets $1,343,912 $ 867,166 $ 899,101
Global Clearing Services 265,327 249,754 466,217
Wealth Management 11,616 40,314 127,856
Other(?) (309,892) (222,790) (321,651)
Total pre-tax income $1,310,963 $ 934,444 $1,171,523

As of November 30
2002 2001 200012

SEGMENT ASSETS
Capital Markets $123,332,776 $137,845,003 $111,304,589
Global Clearing Services 60,754,131 52,137,242 54,802,650
Wealth Management 3,555,762 3,860,954 3,250,866
Other(7) (2,788,246) (8312,971) (726,503)
Total segment assets $184,854,423 $185,530,228 $168,631,602

(1) includes consolidation and elimination entries, unallocated revenues (predominantly interest) and certain corporate administrative functions, including certain legal costs and costs related to the CAP Plan, which approxi-
mated $154.0 million, $123.0 million and §140.0 million for the fiscal years ended November 30, 2002, 2007 and 2000, respectively.
(2) Restated in accordance with SFAS No. 140.
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The operations of the Company are cenducted primarily in the United States of America. The Company also maintains offices in Europe, Asia and
Latin America. The following are net revenues, income before provision for income taxes and assets by geographic region for the fiscal years ended

November 30:

{in thousands)

US net revenues $ 4,663,264 $ 4,355,784 $ 4,698,562
Non-US net revenues 464,972 551,251 777,116
Consolidated net revenues $ 5,128,236 $ 4,907,035 $ 5475678
US income before provision for income taxes and cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle $ 1,296,656 $ 912443 $ 791,349
Non-US income before provision for income taxes and cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle 14,307 22,001 380,174
Consolidated income before provision for income taxes and cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle $ 1,310,963 $ 934444 $ 1,171,523
US assets $222,453,066 $199,597,987 $188,095,521
Non-US assets 39,965,312 33,858,496 34,251,804
Eliminations (77,563,955) (47,926,255) (53,715,723)
Consolidated assets $184,854,423 $185,530,228 $168,631,602

Because of the international nature of the financial markets and the
resultant integration of US and non-US services, it is difficult to pre-
cisely separate foreign operations. The Company conducts and
manages these activities with a view toward the profitability of the
Company as a whole. Accordingly, the foreign operations information
is, of necessity, based on management judgments and internal alloca-
tions. The decrease in non-US income before provision for income

taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle in fiscal

2002 and 2001 as compared with fiscal 2000 was primarily due to
decreased trading profits and increased compensation and other
expenses for certain non-US entities. The fiscal 2002 and 2001
expense base was significantly higher compared with fiscal 2000 due
to an expansion of the London investment banking platform. During
fiscal 2000, a favorable trading environment benefited international
equity sales and trading, derivatives and investment banking revenues
for certain non-US entities.
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17 BUSINESS ACQUISITION

At the close of business on April 20, 2001, the Company, through a joint ven-
ture, completed an acquisition of the assets (including specialist rights) and
the assumption of certain liabilities of Wagner Stott Mercator. The Company
participates, together with its joint venture partner, in specialist activities on
the NYSE, AMEX and International Securities Exchange, through a limited
liability company in which the Company has just less than a 50% profit and
loss interest. For fiscal 2002 and 2001, net revenues from these specialist
activities are reflected in "Principal Transactions” revenues in the

Consolidated Statements of Income. The combination was accounted for
under the purchase method of accounting for business combinations. The
purchase price resulted in recordation of tangible and identifiable intangible
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values
as of the effective date of the combination. The portion of goodwill/identifi-
able intangible assets allocable to the Company at acquisition was
approximately $238 million and the carrying value of such assets at
November 30, 2002 was approximately $217 miillion.
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18 QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Total
{in thousands, except per share data)
FISCAL YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2002
Revenues $1,718,144 $2,070,404 $1,581,397 $1,520,871 $6,890,816
i Interest expense 478,966 462,738 427,013 393,863 1,762,580
i Revenues, net of interest expense 1,239,178 1,607,666 1,154,384 1,127,008 5,128,236
i Non-interest expenses
‘ Employee compensation and benefits 633,642 713,569 595,616 565,370 2,508,197
: Other 332,009 374,645 313,564 288,858 1,309,076
‘ Total non-interest expenses 965,651 1,088,214 909,180 854,228 3,817,273
i Income before provision for income taxes 273,527 519,452 245,204 272,780 1,310,963
: Provision for income taxes 93,001 176,600 80,786 82,231 432,618
Net income § 180,526 $ 342852 $ 164,418 $ 190,549 $ 878,345
‘ Basic earnings per share(7) $ 1.39 $ 2.80 $ 132 $ 1.48 $ 7.00
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.29 $ 2.59 $ 1.23 $ 1.36 $ 6.47
Cash dividends declared per common share $ 0.15 $ 0.15 $ 0.15 $ 0.17 $ 0.62
First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Total
(in thousands, except per share data)
FISCAL YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2001
Revenues $2,136,176 $2,449,382 $2,301,805 $1,813,670 $8,701,033
Interest expense 922,389 1.080,724 1,097,047 693,838 3,793,998
Revenues, net of interest expense 1,213,787 1,368,658 1,204,758 1,119,832 4,907,035
Non-interest expenses
Employee compensation and benefits 635,125 735,641 635,034 523,052 2,528,852
Other 325,698 366,188 365,038 386,815 1,443,739
1 Total non-interest expenses 960,823 1,101,829 1,000,072 909,867 3,972,591
income before provision for income taxes and
‘ cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 252,964 266,829 204,686 209,965 934,444
‘ Provision for income taxes 87,010 97,336 70,114 55,018 309478
‘ Income before cumulative effect of change in
| accounting principle 165,954 169,493 134,572 154,946 624,965
; Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle,
net of tax (6,273) - - - (6,273)
Net income $ 159,681 $ 169,493 $ 134,572 $ 154,946 $ 618,692
Basic earnings per share(?) $ 1@ $ 1.23 $ 1.00 $ 1.14 § 44902
Diluted earnings per share $ .06 $ 1.18 $ 0.95 $ 1.08 $ 42709
Cash dividends declared per common share $ 0.15 $ 0.15 $ 0.15 $ 0.15 $ 0.60

(1) Due to rounding, the sum of the quarters’ earnings per share amounts does not equal the full fiscal year amount.
(2) Net of a $.04 per share loss due to the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’

REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS OF THE BEAR STEARNS COMPANIES INC.

Deloitte
& Touche

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of finan-
cial condition of The Bear Stearns Companies Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of November 30, 2002 and November 30, 2001, and the
related consolidated statements of income, cash flows and changes in
stockholders’ equity for the fiscal years ended November 30, 2002,
2001 and 2000. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards gener-
ally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall finan-
cial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such conselidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of The Bear Stearns Companies
Inc. and subsidiaries at November 30, 2002 and November 30, 2001, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for the fiscal years
ended November 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000 in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Dedotte v Towcte

\_LP

New York, New York
January 15,2003
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Frank T. Nickell(2)
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Chief Executive Officer,
Kelso & Company

Paut A. Novelly
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All members of the Board of Directors of Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc. hold the title senior managing director.
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| WORLDWIDE
" HEADQUARTERS

‘ New York

' 383 Madison Avenue
New York, NY 10179
(212) 272-2000

DOMESTIC

i Atlanta

‘ 3424 Peachtree Road, NE
Suite 1700
Atlanta, GA 30326
(404) 842-4000
Toll-free in the US:
(800) 444-2327

Boston

One Federal Street

Boston, MA 02110
| (617)654-2800
i Toll-free in the US:
‘ (800) 333-2327

Chicago

Three First National Plaza
Chicago, IL 60602

(312) 580-4000
Toll-free in the US:

(800) 753-2327

| Dallas
300 Crescent Court
; Suite 200
Dallas, TX 75201
(214) 979-7900
Toll-free in the US:
(800) 766-2327

Denver

3200 Cherry Creek
South Drive

Suite 260

Denver, CO 80209
(720) 570-2327
Toll-free in the US:
(866) 221-2447

Los Angeles

1999 Avenue of the Stars
Los Angeles, CA 90067
(370) 201-2600
Toll-free in the US:
(800) 777-1234

San Francisco
Citicorp Center

One Sansome Street
San Francisco, CA 94104
(415) 772-2900
Toll-free in the US:
(800) 688-2327

OUTSIDE
CONTINENTAL US

San Juan

270 Murioz Rivera Avenue
2nd Floor

Hato Rey, Puerto Rico 00918
(787) 753-2327

INTERNATIONAL

Beijing

Representative Office
Room 1608

China World Tower

No. 1 Jian Guo Men

Wai Avenue

Beifing 100004

People’s Republic of China
011-86-10-6505-5101

Dublin

Bear Stearns Bank plc
Block 8, Harcourt Centre
Floor3

Charlotte Way

Dublin 2 ireland
011-353-1-402-6200
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Herzliya
Representative Office
Ackerstein Towers —
East Wing

11 Hamenofim Street
9th Floor

Herzliya 46725 Israel
011-972-9-951-2770

Hong Kong

Bear Stearns Asia Limited
26th Floor, Citibank Tower
Citibank Plaza

3 Garden Road, Hong Kong
011-852-2593-2700

London

Bear, Stearns
International Limited
One Canada Square
London E14 5AD
England
011-44-20-7516-6000

Lugano

Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc.
Corso Elvezia 14
P.0.Box 2168

6907 Lugano
Switzerland
017-41-91-971-7333

Milan

Bear, Stearns
International Limited
Via Pietro Verri 6

20121 Mitano

Italy
011-39-02-3030-1730

Sao Paulo

Representative Office

Bear Stearns do Brasil Ltda.
Rua joaquim Floriano, 72

8" andar-cjA3 Room-itaim Bibi
S&o Paulo, SP

Brazil 04534-000
071-55-11-3457-3200
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Shanghai

Shanghai Representative
Office

Suite 27-043, HSBC Tower
107 Yin Cheng East Road
Pudong, Shanghai 200120
People’s Republic of China
011-86-21-6841-3606

Singapore

Bear Stearns

Singapore Pte Limited
30 Raffles Place #21-017
Caltex House
Singapore 048622
017-65-6437-3300

Tokyo

Bear Stearns (Japan), Ltd.
Shiroyama Hills
3-1Toranomon 4-chome
Minato-ku

Tokyo 105-6022

Japan
017-813-3437-7800

CUSTODIAL TRUST
COMPANY

101 Carnegie Center
Princeton, Nj 08540
(609) 951-2300

BEAR,STEARNS
SECURITIES CORP.
GLOBAL CLEARING
SERVICES OFFICES

Boca Raton

225 NE Mizner Blvd.
Suite 500

Boca Raton, FL 33432
(561) 672-4600

Boston

One Federal Street
Boston, MAO2170
{617) 574-6000

Chicago

440 South LaSalle Street
Suite 1021

Chicago, IL 60605

(372) 663-3300

London

Bear, Stearns
International Limited
One Canada Square
London E14 5AD
England
011-44-207-516-6000

Los Angeles

1999 Avenue of the Stars
Los Angeles, CA 90067
(310) 207-3900

New York

One MetroTech
Center North
Brooklyn, NY 112017
(347) 643-1000

Philadelphia

1900 Market Street
Sufte 705

Philadelphia, PA 19103
(275) 496-1800

San Francisco

220 Bush Street

Suite 845

San Francisco, CA 94104
(415) 445-6600

and

One Sansome Street
39th Floor

San Francisco, CA 94104
(415) 288-2300

Tampa

Hidden River
Corporate Center Three
14055 Riveredge Drive
Suite 350

Tampa, FL33637

(813) 558-3400
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK AND DIVIDENDS

The common stock of the Company is traded on the NYSE under the
symbol BSC. The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the
closing high and low prices for the common stock and the cash divi-
dends declared on the common stock.

As of February 10, 2003, there were 2,012 holders of record of the
Company's common stock. On February 10, 2003, the last reported
sales price of the Company’s common stock was $59.97.

Dividends are payable on January 15, April 15, July 15 and October 15 in
each year on the Company’s outstanding Adjustable Rate Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series A; Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series E;

Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series F; and Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series G (collectively, the "Preferred Stock”). The terms of the Preferred
Stock require that all accrued dividends in arrears be paid prior to the
payment of any dividend on the common stock.

Since the Company is a holding company, its ability to pay dividends is
limited by the ability of its subsidiaries to pay dividends and to make
advances to the Company. See the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements under the caption "Regulatory Requirements” and
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations under the caption “Regulated Subsidiaries” for a

further description of the restrictions on dividends.

Cash Dividends
Declared Per
Common Share

FISCAL YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2002

First Quarter (through February 28, 2002) $62.10 $53.87 $0.15
Second Quarter (through May 31, 2002) 66.53 56.16 0.15
Third Quarter {through August 31, 2002} 67.39 52.70 0.15
Fourth Quarter (through November 30, 2002} 66.05 5192 0.17
FISCAL YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2001
First Quarter (through February 23, 2001) $64.04 $45.25 $0.15
Second Quarter (through May 25, 2001) 57.90 42.06 0.15
Third Quarter (through August 31, 2001) 60.60 51.65 0.15
Fourth Quarter {through November 30, 2007) 61.75 43.50 0.15
The Bear Stearns Companies Inc. A copy of the Company’s Annual ~ MEDIA RELATIONS LEGAL COUNSEL
383 Madison Avenue Report on Form 10-K for fiscal  ElizabethVentura Cadwalader, Wickersham & Taft
New York, NY 10179 2002 is available on request  (212)272-9251 100 Maiden Lane
www.bearstearns.com by writing: Russell Sherman New York, NY 10038
_ | Relati 312 i (212) 504-6000
INVESTOR RELATIONS nvestor Relations Departr_nent ( ‘) 292-5219
; The Bear Stearns Companies inc. media@bear.com AUDITORS
(Eélg??;z\g;t; 1ra 383 Madison Avenue INFORMATION CENTER Deloitte & Touche LLP
New York, NY 10179 2 World Financial Center
. (212) 272-3939
Kerri Kelly or by calling our automated New York, NY 10281
(212) 272-2529 Y § our au TRANSFER AGENT (212) 436- 2000
service for financial informa-
ir@bear.com tion requests: AND REGISTRAR
: ' Melton Investor Services L.L.C.

(866) 299-9331

Overpeck Centre
Ridgefield Park, NJ 07660
(800) 279-1229
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